Date:
TO:

All Members of the Audit and
Governance Committee
FOR ATTENDANCE

TO:

All Other Members of the Council
FOR INFORMATION

20 June 2008

Dear Sir/Madam
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
to be held in THE GUILDHALL, ABINGDON on MONDAY, 30TH JUNE, 2008 at 6.30 PM.
Yours faithfully
Terry Stock
Chief Executive

Members are reminded of the provisions contained in the Code of Conduct adopted on 30
September 2007 and Standing Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and
Prejudicial Interests.

AGENDA
Open to the Public including the Press

A large print version of this agenda is available. In addition any background
papers referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact Steve
Culliford, Democratic Services Officer, on telephone number (01235) 540307 /
steve.culliford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk.
Map and Vision
(Pages 7 - 8)
A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting, together with a copy the Council
Vision are attached.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 1

Audit and Governance Committee

1.

Monday, 30th June, 2008

Chair and Vice-Chair
To note that at the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 21 May 2008, Councillor
Dudley Hoddinott and Councillor Andrew Crawford were appointed as Chair and ViceChair respectively of the Audit and Governance Committee for the 2008/09 Municipal
Year.

2.

Notification of Substitutes and Apologies for Absence
To record the attendance of Substitute Members, if any, who have been authorised to
attend in accordance with the provisions of Standing Order 17(1), with notification
having been given to the proper Officer before the start of the meeting and to receive
apologies for absence.

3.

Minutes
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 19 March
2008 (circulated with the Council Summons and Agenda dated 21 May 2008).

4.

Declarations of Interest
To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect
of items on the agenda for this meeting.
Any Member with a personal interest or a personal and prejudicial interest in accordance
with the provisions of the Code of Conduct, in any matter to be considered at a meeting,
must declare the existence and nature of that interest as soon as the interest becomes
apparent in accordance with the provisions of the Code.
When a Member declares a personal and prejudicial interest he shall also state if he has a
dispensation from the Standards Committee entitling him/her to speak, or speak and vote
on the matter concerned.
Where any Member has declared a personal and prejudicial interest he shall withdraw
from the room while the matter is under consideration unless:
(a)
His/her disability to speak, or speak and vote on the matter has been removed by a
dispensation granted by the Standards Committee, or
(b)
Members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or
answer questions about the matter by statutory right or otherwise. If that is the
case, the Member can also attend the meeting for that purpose. However, the
Member must immediately leave the room once he/she has finished; or when the
meeting decides he/she has finished whichever is the earlier and in any event the
Member must leave the room for the duration of the debate on the item in which
he/she has a personal and prejudicial interest.

5.

Urgent Business and Chair's Announcements
To receive notification of any matters, which the Chair determines, should be

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 2

Audit and Governance Committee

Monday, 30th June, 2008

considered as urgent business and the special circumstances, which have made the
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the Chair.
6.

Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32
Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made
or presented at the meeting.

7.

Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32
Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the
meeting.

8.

Internal Audit Activity Report Quarter 1 2008/09
(Pages 9 - 170)
To receive and consider report 38/08 of the Audit Manager.
Introduction and Report Summary
The purpose of this report is: to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit
activity for the Committee to consider. The Committee is asked to review the report
and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been taken
where necessary.
The Contact Officer for this report is Adrianna Penn, Audit Manager for South
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, telephone
(SODC) 01491 823544 and (VWHDC) 01235 547615.
Recommendation
that Members note the content of the report.

9.

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 2006/07
(Pages 171 - 187)
The Annual Audit and Inspection Letter, issued in March 2008 by the Audit
Commission, provides an overall summary of the Commission’s assessment of the
Council following the most recent Comprehensive Performance Assessment, the
findings and conclusions from the audit of the Council for 2006/07 and from any
inspections undertaken since the last Annual Audit and Inspection Letter. A copy of the
Letter has been sent to all Councillors and is available on the Council’s website. The
letter is attached as this needs to be formally placed before the Committee.
Recommendation
that the Committee is asked to formally receive the report and indicate whether any
specific actions are required.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 3

Audit and Governance Committee

10.

Monday, 30th June, 2008

Audit and Inspection Plan 2007/08
(Pages 188 - 190)
The Audit Commission’s Audit and Inspection Plan for 2007/08 was placed before the
Committee at its meeting on the 27 June 2007. The Plan provided details of the work
to be undertaken by the Audit Commission during 2008/09 relating to the 2007/08
accounts and also provided a summary of the fees payable.
The Audit Commission have now issued a Supplementary Letter dated 2 June 2008
which is attached. The letter advises that since the original Plan was produced
additional risks have been identified and therefore the fees stated in the original Plan
will be insufficient to cover the extra work that will be required. The District Auditor will
provide an update on the revised cost when she has further information.
Recommendation
that the Committee is asked to note the supplementary letter and the likelihood of
increased audit fees this year.

11.

Approval of the 2007/08 Statement of Accounts
The Council has a statutory duty to publish annual audited accounts. The accounts
must be signed by the Chief Finance Officer and approved by the appropriate
committee of the Council. Under the Council’s Constitution the Audit and Governance
Committee has the responsibility “to consider and determine on behalf of the Council all
aspects of the Accounts of the Authority including the approval of the Statement of
Accounts”.
Officers have prepared the draft accounts which will be stapled as a separate
document, which will follow this agenda.
If there are any amendments made to the draft accounts between circulation of the
agenda and the meeting, the Chief Finance Officer will explain these at the meeting.
The Audit Commission will carry out an onsite audit of the approved accounts in order
to provide an opinion on their accuracy and completeness. This may result in
amendments to the accounts, which will be reported at the September meeting.
Recommendations

12.

(a)

That the Committee approves the 2007/08 Statement of Accounts, subject to
subsequent amendments agreed with the external auditor;

(b)

That the Chair of the Committee signs and dates the Statement of Accounts.

Introduction of the new Annual Governance Statement
Members are asked to note that the Governance reporting requirements for councils

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 4

Audit and Governance Committee

Monday, 30th June, 2008

have changed again. As from the 2007/08 accounts year (ending 31 March 2008),
councils are now required* to produce an 'Annual Governance Statement' instead of
the previous Statement on Internal Control. The Annual Governance Statement should
set out the Council's arrangements for directing and controlling the organisation, its
decision-making processes and the ways in which it leads the community.
The statutory timetable for publishing the new Annual Governance Statement is the
same as that for publishing the annual statement of accounts, i.e. 30 September 2008
in respect of the 2007/08 accounts year. The Annual Governance Statement must be
as up-to-date as possible at the publication date. Therefore the Annual Governance
Statement will be presented to the Committee at its next meeting on 24 September
2008 for its formal approval.
The Committee is asked to note a related matter. The Executive considered report
24/08 on Council Aspirations for Future Performance Inspections at its meeting on 6
June 2008. The Executive resolved that officers should not expend any additional
effort than that already provided for in Service Plans on the annual use of resources
assessment and production of the Annual Governance Statement. In practice this
means that the Annual Governance Statement will be drafted to meet the minimum
statutory requirements (minute Ex.18 refers).
* Required by Accounts & Audit Regulations (Amendment) Regulations 2006 statutory Instrument
564/2006; Circular 03/2006 from the Department for Communities and Local Government;
CIPFA/SOLACE Governance Framework; and, CIPFA Statement of Recommended Practice 2007 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.

13.

Internal Audit Annual Report 2007/08
(Pages 191 - 200)
To receive and consider report 39/08 of the Audit Manager.
Introduction and Report Summary
The purpose of this report is to report on the work of Internal Audit in the year ended
31st March 2008, and to advise the Committee of the Audit Manager’s opinion on the
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment.
The Contact Officer for this report is Adrianna Penn, Audit Manager for South
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, telephone
(SODC) 01491 823544 and (VWHDC) 01235 547615.
Recommendation
that Members note the content of the report.

14.

Internal Audit Management Report Quarter 1 2008/09
(Pages 201 - 208)
To receive and consider report 40/08 of the Audit Manager.
Introduction and Report Summary

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 5

Audit and Governance Committee

Monday, 30th June, 2008

The purpose of this report is:
• to report on management issues
• to summarise the progress of internal audit against the 2008/2009 audit plan
up to the 16th June 2008.
• to summarise the priorities and planned audit work for quarter 2 2008/2009.
The Contact Officer for this report is Adrianna Penn, Audit Manager for South
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, telephone
(SODC) 01491 823544 and (VWHDC) 01235 547615.
Recommendation
that Members note the content of the report.

Exempt Information Under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972
None

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 6

A44

Vale of White Horse District Council
Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE

Kidlington

Tel: 01235 520202
Fax: 01235 532217
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Aylesbury
9

M40

A40

A418

A40

Oxford

STRANAER

M11

Bicester

9

A34

Hemel
Hempstead

8a
8
7

A419

Abingdon

A420

Faringdon

A40

A415
A34 Didcot

A417

Wallingford

A4130

A413

A4010

4

Wantage

A3 4 TO
OXFO RD &
M4 0 J CT 9

16

M4

A4

N

M40

Maidenhead Slough
M4

A417

A34

A338

18 3

A 4183 TO
A 34 , OXFO R D

8/9

NO

RM

A34

15

HEATHROW
AIRPORT

10

12
11

A4

Newbury
A338

Reading

M4

13

14

A4

20

High
Wycombe M25

M40

A4074

8

12

M3

A339

AN

M25

AV
EN

UE

RD

N

OX

CU

A

TO

N

LA

WH ITE HO RS E
LE I S URE AN D
TE NN IS CE NTR E

NE

A B BE Y ME A D OW

1

WATE R
FE ATURE

ABBEY CL
O

B
R
ID

G

E

ST

AY T

R

SE

W

N
O
TT

RA
ST

RD
ORIA
VICT

SPRING R
D

C LO S E

RD

E

4

BU

RG

ESS

C LO S E

2
DIS TRICT
CO UNCIL

ST

ON

AV

BE Y

ST

DR

C

RD

TO WN
CO UNCIL

01
7

THA

A 4 15

ER

B4

RIV
MES

A 415 TO
A 40 7 4,
R EA D ING

G UILDHALL

A B B E Y C LO
SE

KEY: Car Parks

2008.

By rail – the nearest main line railway stations to Abingdon are either Didcot Parkway (seven miles) or Oxford (eight miles). Radley railway station is located on the main line between
Oxford and Didcot and is three miles from Abingdon town centre. For details of train times visit www.nationalrail.co.uk or call 08457 484950
By bus – there are a number of bus routes serving Abingdon town centre. For details of services and timetables, visit Oxfordshire County Council’s website at
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk. Contact details for bus operators can be found on the travel information pages on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk
Parking – details of car parks charges can be found on our website

www.giveway.co.uk 2008
TM

Tel: 0800 019 0027.

OS data. PU100040256. Crown

2008.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Agenda Annex

4

IS

M RD

A3

R IVE

RT

B

D

OPEN AIR
S WI M MI NG P O O L

OLD
GAOL

EN

LDE

T
OT

Tel: 0800 019 0027.

OS data. PU100040256. Crown

T

WILSHA

TM

T

5
CA

www.giveway.co.uk 2008

VE

AB

STERT

EL
T SAINT H

RIVER OCK

RI
TT D

6
CA L D ECOT T R D

A 3 4 TO
M4 J CT 13

2
ABBEY
GA RD E N S

WES

8

E

L

7

A 4 15

MARCHAM RD

TE S C O

4

HIG H S T

RD

WA

T
OCK S

DUIT

D

BOS

AU D L E

7

WAI TRO S E

BU RY S T
S HO P P I NG
P RE CI NCT

RD

D

01

AY

3

Y

AU

B4

CON

IVE
L DR

IEL

A 41
5

RD
TO C K

LE

TH E

D

OT
M

R

TE

WEL

FF

FAI RA C R E S
R E TA IL
PA R K

ABINGDON
C OMMUN ITY
H OS P ITA L

P OLIC E
HQ

RAD

FO

4

T TO

A3

RD

ABINGDON

COL

NU

A 4 15

Y

Page 7

A 415 TO
FAR IN G DO N ( A 4 2 0 ) &
WAN TAGE ( A 3 3 8 )

OT T

RD

WOO

ABB

Abbey Close
Cattle Market
Charter Multi-storey
Civic
Rye Farm
Hales Meadow
Audlett Drive
West St Helen Street

The Council’s Vision Statement
The Vale of White Horse District Council exists to serve its Citizens across all of its
three Towns and sixty-five Parishes. This new Constitution sets out the detail of how
this is to be managed. Our guiding principles will continue to be as set out in our
"Vision Statement", adopted by the Council on 16th November 2005.
Our Vision and AimsOur Vision is to build and safeguard a fair, open and compassionate
community
The Vale of White Horse District Council aims to:
Strengthen local democracy and public involvement through access to
information, consultation, and devolution of power so that everyone can take
part in our community and contribute to the decisions which affect our lives
Create a safer community and improve the quality of life among Vale residents
Encourage a strong and sustainable economy which benefits all who live in,
work in or visit the Vale
Help disadvantaged groups and individuals within the Vale to realise their full
potential
Provide and support high quality public services which are effective, efficient
and responsive to the needs of people within the Vale
Protect and improve our built and natural environment
It will be through the efforts of our staff, our Councillors, our Town and Parish
Councils and by all members of our Vale community that we can, together, seek to
turn this Vision into action.

Adopted by the Vale of White Horse District Council
16th November 2005

Page 8

Agenda Item 8
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report No. 38/08
Wards Affected – All

REPORT OF THE AUDIT MANAGER
TO THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
30 JUNE 2008
Internal Audit Activity Report Quarter 1 2008/2009
1.0

Introduction and Report Summary

1.1

The purpose of this report is: to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit
activity for the Committee to consider. The Committee is asked to review the report
and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been taken
where necessary.

1.2

The Contact Officer for this report is Adrianna Penn, Audit Manager for South
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, telephone
(SODC) 01491 823544 and (VWHDC) 01235 547615.

2.0

Recommendations
that Members note the content of the report.

3.0

Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies
(a)
(b)
(c)

Vision strands A and C.
No specific strategy.
Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy; and all Policies indirectly.

4.0

Background

4.1

Internal Audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes
the achievements of the Councils’ objectives. It assists the Councils by evaluating the
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary. After each
audit assignment, Internal Audit has a duty to report to management its findings on
the control environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for
improvements where applicable. Managers are responsible for considering audit
reports and taking the appropriate action to address control weaknesses.

4.2

Assurance ratings given by Internal Audit indicate the following:
Full Assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet the
system objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.
Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control
although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of
non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk.

Page 9

Limited Assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal
control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of noncompliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.
Nil Assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse
and/or there Is significant non-compliance with basic controls.
4.3

Each recommendation is given one of the following ratings:
High: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action
Medium: Other control weakness for local management action
Low: Recommended best practice to improve overall control

5.0

2007/08 Audit Reports

5.1.1 Since the last Audit and Corporate Governance Committee meeting, the following
planned audits have been completed:
Planned Audits

Assurance
Rating
Limited

No. of Recs

High Recs.

No. Agreed

Medium Recs.

No. Agreed

Low Recs.

No. Agreed

Full Assurance: 3
Satisfactory: 8
Limited: 5
Nil: 0

18

3

2

7

7

8

8

Treasury
Management

Full

0

0

N/A

0

N/A

0

N/A

Elections

Satisfactory

6

0

N/A

4

4

2

2

Main Accounting

Satisfactory

5

0

N/A

0

N/A

5

5

Capital
Accounting

Satisfactory

1

0

N/A

0

N/A

1

1

White Horse
Tennis & Leisure
Centre

Limited

4

0

N/A

3

2

1

0

Abingdon LSP

Satisfactory

11

0

N/A

9

9

2

2

Data Protection

Limited

7

4

3

3

3

0

N/A

Concessionary
Fares

Satisfactory

6

0

N/A

2

2

4

4

Land & Property

Limited

5

1

1

4

4

0

N/A

ICT

Satisfactory

11

0

N/A

4

3

7

6

Community

Full

0

0

N/A

0

N/A

0

N/A

Creditor
Payments

Page 10

Grants
Affordable
Housing

Satisfactory

5

0

N/A

3

2

2

1

NNDR

Limited

7

0

N/A

6

2

1

1

Agresso

Full

0

0

N/A

0

N/A

0

N/A

Housing &
Council Tax
Benefits

Satisfactory

6

0

N/A

5

5

1

1

Partly
Implemente
d
Not
Implemente
d
Ongoing

No. of Recs

Assurance
Given

Implemente
d

Follow Up Reviews

Refuse Collection
& Street
Cleansing

Satisfactory

8

3

2

3

0

Recycling

Satisfactory

12

5

3

4

0

Excess Charges

Good (now
Full)

2

2

0

0

0

Health & Safety

Satisfactory

17

10

5

2

0

Insurance

Satisfactory

5

1

0

4

0

Cash

Satisfactory

9

7

0

2

0

Environmental
Protection

Good (now
Full)

4

3

1

0

0

SOLL Leisure

Satisfactory

6

6

0

0

0

Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the
completed audits
5.2

Members of the Committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit report
and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken
where necessary.

5.3

A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate Service Manager, the relevant
Strategic Director, the relevant Section 151 Officer and the relevant Member Portfolio
Holder.

5.4

A 6 month follow up is undertaken on all audits undertaken to establish the
implementation status of agreed recommendations.
ADRIANNA PENN
AUDIT MANAGER

Page 11

APPENDIX A
CREDITOR PAYMENTS 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 11th March 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Implementation of agreed recommendations from previous audits
Procedures
Review performance against BVPI 8
Verify that refunds are dealt with appropriately
Verify that invoices are bona fide and contain all relevant details
Verify that VAT is being dealt with appropriately
Verify the procedures relating to duplicate payments

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council spends £millions each year buying in goods and services from a
wide range of suppliers and contractors, some of whom are local and others
national. As a major player in the local and regional marketplace the Council
has a responsibility to pay its suppliers on time. The Government has
consistently applied pressure on local authorities to pay its (undisputed)
invoices on time, i.e. within the time limits agreed with individual suppliers or
where there are no such agreed time limits, 30 days.

2.2

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has
monitored local authorities’ performance in paying suppliers on time by way
of a Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI 8). The Council’s Performance
Plan for 2007 – 2010 reported outturn for BVPI 8 as 94.76% for 2006/07 and
set a target of 95.94% for 2007/08.

2.3

In April 2007 the Ridgeway Shared Service Partnership (RSSP) and its
financial services provider (contractor), Capita, implemented a new financial
management system (Agresso version 5.5) at both Councils. Agresso is a
fully integrated computerised financial management system, incorporating
electronic processing of suppliers’ invoices.

2.4

Implementation of the Agresso system has not been without problems
associated with the introduction of the ‘workflow’ arrangements, resulting in a
number of suppliers being paid more than once and some having to wait a
considerable time for payment. As a result of the implementation problems
VWHDC BVPI 8 performance has deteriorated.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Creditor Payments was last subject to an internal audit review in
February 2007 and nine (9) recommendations were raised. A
satisfactory opinion was issued.

Page 12

4. 2007/08 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Limited Assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2

Eighteen (18) recommendations have been raised in this review: Three High,
seven Medium and eight Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Previous Audit Recommendations

5.2

Two recommendations agreed following the 2006/2007 audit have not been
fully implemented. The areas covered by the recommendations are BACS
rejections and User IDs. The recommendations have been re-drafted to
reflect the implications of the financial services contract with Capita. Two
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.3

Procedures

5.4

Implementation of the new Agresso financial management system
represented a major change at VWHDC, and introduced electronic ‘workflow’
comprising the raising of requisitions and purchase orders and approval and
authorisation of invoices.

5.5

Internal Audit found that neither the Council nor Capita had produced
documented procedure guidance notes to accompany the implementation of
Agresso 5.5. This is compounded by the Council’s Financial Regulations
being out of date. Although the Council’s Intranet carries a link to Guidance
Notes for Payments - Accounts Payable, there are no guidance notes
available. Four recommendations have been made as a result of our work in
this area.

5.6

BVPI 8

5.7

The Council published its 2006/2007 BVPI 8 outturn in its 2007 – 2010
Performance Plan, as having paid 94.76% of its suppliers’ invoices
(undisputed) within 30 days or within payment terms agreed with individual
suppliers.

5.8

The Council has acknowledged that BVPI 8 outturn will deteriorate in
2007/2008 due to the problems associated with the implementation of the
Agresso 5.5, but had accepted Capita’s monthly outturn data as correctly
stated. Internal Audit found that the outturn reported by Capita to the Council
for October 2007 is flawed and potentially over-stated by almost 10%
(72.27% to 66.47%), arising from items being included in the calculation that
the BVPI 8 definition requires to be excluded. Five recommendations have
been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.9

Refunds

Page 13

5.10

Internal Audit has two areas of concern regarding the procedures for
processing refunds using Agresso 5.5. Firstly, due to the problems with the
Agresso system staff are unable to see transactions within Agresso and the
workflow progress to confirm when refunds are generated. Secondly, Internal
Audit noted that individual BACS payments over £10,000 are bypassing the
counter-signatory process. Two recommendations have been made as a
result of our work in this area.

5.11

Bona Fide Invoices

5.12

Internal Audit noted that the well-documented Agresso 5.5 implementation
problems had affected the efficiency and effectiveness of invoice handling,
resulting in delays between invoice registration and authorisation. Walkthrough testing by Internal Audit noted that copies of invoices, requested by
officers or sent in by suppliers, were being scanned as original documents,
thus creating the potential for duplicate payments.

5.13

Internal Audit is concerned that under the current Agresso 5.5 workflow
arrangements, an officer raising a Requisition Note is able to approve it and
the Purchase Order that is subsequently generated. This undermines internal
control. Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in
this area.

5.14

VAT

5.15

Internal Audit noted that the Council has recently had a VAT Control visit from
HMRC that found no anomalies relating to Creditor Payments.

5.16

During a review of documentation used to request payments involving
transactions pre-Agresso, i.e. not already registered within the Creditor
Payments system, Internal Audit noted potential weaknesses in the way that
Capita records the checks it carries out. One recommendation has been
made as a result of our work in this area.

5.17

Duplicate Creditors and Payments

5.18

Internal Audit noted that inadequate checks for duplicate payments are being
made. In the light of the Agresso 5.5 implementation problems, Internal Audit
would expect Capita to introduce additional checks for possible duplicates to
demonstrate to the Council that the checks are being undertaken on a weekly
basis.

5.19

Internal Audit considers that periodic review of the supplier database would
assist and minimise the capacity for duplicate or erroneous payments. Two
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
PREVIOUS AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
1. BACS Rejections
Recommendation

(Low)
Rationale

Responsibility

Page 14

Capita should draft a
procedure
note
requiring Capita to
notify the Financial
Assistant
(Accountancy) at the
earliest opportunity if
the
bank
has
identified a BACS
rejection.

Best Practice
As soon as a BACS rejection is
identified the appropriate members
of staff should be alerted.

Capita

Findings
The
Finance
Assistant
(Accountancy) indicated that she
still does not receive notification
from Capita of BACS rejections.

Risk
Additional work is created in
identifying amounts received in the
Council’s bank account as a result
of a rejected BACS payment and
suppliers do not get paid.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Capita are currently documenting all the procedures for
Creditors. The requirement to notify Accountancy regarding
BACS rejections will be a part of these procedures.

Implementation Date
In
progress
–
completion due April
2008.

2. User IDs
Recommendation
Capita
should
introduce a procedure
whereby User IDs are
rendered invalid as
soon as possible after
a member of staff
leaves
Capita’s
employment.

(Low)
Rationale
Best Practice
As soon as a member of staff
leaves employment with Capita their
User ID is rendered invalid.

Responsibility
Capita

Findings
Capita regularly reviews user ids,
and removes anyone that has left.
The only exception to this at the
moment is the Agresso Project
Manager (N Carrelli) who left Capita
employment in September 2007, as
it is his User ID that is running all
the automatic proposals. This is
unsatisfactory.

Risk
There is a potential risk that an exmember of staff could continue to
have access to the Council’s data
after employment has ceased.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
The recommendation should be extended to cover Capita
staff and Council staff. However, it is acknowledged that
there continues to be one Capita user ID left open since this
is where the reports run from. Once the recovery plan is

Page 15

Implementation Date
At completion of the
recovery plan – April
2008.

complete this will be reviewed to ensure that all the reports
running through this user ID are changed.
PROCEDURES
3. Designated Officer
Recommendation
The Chief Accountant
at VWHDC should be
appointed as contact
and custodian of
VWHDC’s
Creditor
system to enable
both
Councils
to
adopt
consistent
arrangements
for
monitoring
the
creditors function with
Capita.

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
A designated officer should be
given responsibility to liaise with
Capita to discuss any issues
arising.
Findings
During the course of the review
Internal Audit noted differences in
the
reporting
arrangements
operating at both Councils. SODC
has appointed the Chief Accountant
as the custodian of the creditors
function, however Internal Audit
noted that an equivalent officer has
not been identified for the VWHDC.

Risk
No designated officer is appointed
that could escalate issues, and
therefore the appropriate action is
not taken.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed.

4. Financial Regulations
Recommendation
The
Council’s
Financial Regulations
should be updated to
reflect the operational
changes
resulting
from
the
implementation of the
Agresso
financial
management system.

Responsibility
Chief Accountant

Implementation Date
Implemented
14th
February 2008.
(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Financial Regulations should be
accurate and up to date reflecting
operational changes associated
with both the commencement of the
Ridgeway
Shared
Services
Partnership
(RSSP)
and
implementation of the Agresso
Financial Management system.
Findings
The Agresso financial management
system has been in operation since
November 2002 however no
reference is made to the Agresso
system, the current workflow

Page 16

Responsibility
Monitoring Officer

arrangements or best practice in the
Council’s Financial Regulations.
Risk
Staff do not know the correct
procedures,
therefore
inconsistencies in treatment may
occur.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Following the recovery plan and the full implementation of
the system it will be possible to identify how and where the
Financial Regulations need to be amended.
Areas
particularly for review will be 12. Orders for Work, Goods
and Services, 13. Payment of invoices. Accountancy will
need to review and propose the new wording for approval
by the monitoring officer.

Implementation Date
Post April completion
of recovery plan. By
July 2008.

5. Creditors Function

(Medium)

Recommendation

Rationale

Responsibility

Procedures relating
to
the
Creditors
function
including
requisitions, purchase
orders and payment
of supplier invoices
should
be
documented, updated
and expanded as
necessary to reflect
the
operational
changes
resulting
from
the
implementation of the
Agresso
financial
management system.

Best Practice
Staff have access to up-to-date and
comprehensive
operational
procedures to facilitate consistent
and effective working practices.

Capita/
Accountant

Chief

Findings
Capita staff have user notes to
assist them in delivering the
creditors system. Internal Audit
found that these notes are
inadequate. Internal Audit noted
that the Council’s Intranet indicates
a link within Financial Services to
Guidance Notes for Payments –
Accounts Payable. When activated
the link refers to guidance notes but
there are none.

Risk
Staff are not aware of the correct
procedures
therefore
inconsistencies in treatment may
occur.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
All documentation is being updated as per the recovery
plan. Draft documents around control and raising purchase
requisitions have been distributed for comment by the
Council.

Page 17

Implementation Date
By
conclusion
of
recovery plan – April
2008.

6. Authorised Signatories
Recommendation
The
authorised
signatory
listing/Agresso
Approval List are
updated and matched
to show the correct
and
appropriate
financial limits for
those who approve
orders and supplier
invoices.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
All invoices are validated against
the authorised signatory and
appropriate approval levels.

Responsibility
Accountancy/Capita

Findings
Internal Audit noted that this
recommendation is outstanding
from previous Accounts Payable
audit.
The
recovery
plan
acknowledges that this is one of the
areas that need to be developed
and corrected due to the problems
associated
with
coding
and
approval.

Risk
Payment could be made without the
appropriate approval.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
Such a list has been superseded by workflow and online
controls. All payments over £10k have to be authorised by
a second approver in Finance.

Implementation Date
Implemented

BVPI 8
7. Local Performance Target
Recommendation
For 2008/2009 the
Client should require
Capita
to
report
outturn against a
Local
Performance
Target
for
the
payment of suppliers’
invoices.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
Suppliers’ invoices should be paid
promptly, within a 30-day period.

Responsibility
Client
Manager
Capita

&

Findings
The government has announced
plans to replace BVPIs with
National Indicators from 1 April
2008. There is no corresponding
National Indicator for BVPI 8.

Risk
Suppliers may withdraw credit
facilities if the Council is late in
making payments.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Local performance targets are still to be agreed following
the withdrawal of BVPI8. Capita have been reporting
against this PI to date but discussions are in progress to

Page 18

Implementation Date
May 2008

agree on new performance targets.

8. Supporting Data
Recommendation
Capita should be
required to provide
the Client with the
data that support
each month’s BVPI 8
outturn.

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
The Client should be provided with
a copy of the monthly data that
support Capita’s outturn.

Responsibility
Client
Manager
Capita

&

Findings
Despite reminders Capita had not
supplied monthly data to the Client
Manager to support BVPI 8 outturn
reports.
Incorrect data have been included
in the calculation of the monthly
outturn for October 2007.

Risk
The Council could be embarrassed
by having to publish corrections to
prior year outturn reports.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
This data is now being distributed.
9. Use of Correct Dates
Recommendation
The Client should
check a sample of
invoices from the
BVPI 8 data to
confirm
that
the
correct dates have
been applied.

Implementation Date
Implemented
Ongoing basis.
(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
The Client is able to test check
monthly data to verify the outturn
reported by Capita.

Responsibility
Client Manager

Findings
Incorrect data have been included
in the calculation of the monthly
outturn for October 2007.

Risk
The Council could be embarrassed
by having to publish corrections to
prior year outturn reports.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
This data is now being provided to Paul Howden. Random
checks are possible to be made on accuracy of the data.
Review of the PI’s to be used will need to ensure that
access to data is available.

Page 19

Implementation Date
Implemented
19th
March 2008 – ongoing
basis.

10. Definition
Recommendation
The Client should
require Capita to
apply the criteria set
out in the BVPI 8
definition and to recalculate the monthly
2007/2008 BVPI 8
outturn for the year to
date.

(High)
Rationale
Best Practice
There is a prescribed definition that
should be applied.

Responsibility
Client
Manager
Capita

&

Findings
Incorrect data have been included
in the calculation of the monthly
outturn for October 2007. Internal
Audit found it to be 66.47 but the
declared figure was 72.27.
The October outturn is incorrect; it
is over-stated.

Risk
The Council could be embarrassed
by having to publish corrections to
prior year outturn reports.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation Date
Implemented.

11. 2006/07 Outturn
Recommendation
The Client should
require Capita to
provide evidence to
confirm
that
the
declared outturn for
2006/07 for BVPI 8 is
fairly stated.

(High)
Rationale
Best Practice
The Council has to publish annual
BVPI 8 outturn in a local
newspaper.

Responsibility
N/A

Findings
Incorrect data have been included
in the calculation of the monthly
outturn for October 2007.
Capita took over responsibility for
providing BVPI 8 outturn with effect
from 1 August 2006. It is possible
that the outturn for 2006/07 is not
fairly stated.

Risk
The Council could be embarrassed
by having to publish corrections to
prior year outturn reports.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed
Capita have said they could do this if required. The data on
this year would be pre-Agresso – Powersolve and Civica.
Consequently, this would be a very time consuming piece of
work and the diversion of scarce resource into this activity

Page 20

Implementation Date
N/A

would not be in the best interests of the Council given the
need to complete the recovery plan as a priority.
REFUNDS
12. Agresso
Recommendation
Training is provided
to assist officers to
track refunds
transactions through
the Agresso system.

(Low)
Rationale
Best Practice
Officers should be able to track
refunds through the Agresso
system.

Responsibility
Accountancy/Capita

Findings
Due to the problems with the
Agresso system, service area staff
are unable to see transactions
within Agresso after authorisation
and therefore are unable to confirm
when refunds are generated.
Risk
Refunds could be made more than
once.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Training is being provided as a part of the recovery plan.
13. Payments Over £10,000
Recommendation
Capita
should
produce a weekly
report which denotes
all payments over
£10,000 (£10k) to
enable
the
designated officer to
review and validate
transactions
over
£10k.

Implementation Date
In progress
(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Each payment in excess of £10k
should be countersigned by an
appropriate officer.
Findings
Staff with the responsibility for the
weekly creditors run have been
unable to provide a report that lists
all payments/refunds over £10k.
Internal Audit noted that for
suppliers who received an email
remittance for their £10k payments,
the designated officer receives no
supporting documentation which
would assist him in validating the
payment.
Risk
Payments in excess of £10k may be
made without the appropriate
approval.

Page 21

Responsibility
Capita/ Accountancy

Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Capita currently provide a full list of payments made which
is checked by the appropriate officer for payments over
£10k. Capita have been requested to highlight those
payments over £10k in the same way that is currently being
done for SODC.

Implementation Date
March 2008.

BONA FIDE INVOICES
14. Accompanying documentation
Recommendation
Each document that
accompanies
a
supplier’s
invoice
should
be
datestamped
and
scanned at the time
of receipt.

Rationale
Best Practice
Each invoice and any supporting
document that accompanies it
should be date-stamped at receipt
and scanned on to the Agresso
system immediately.

(Low)
Responsibility
Capita staff

Findings
Generally, only invoices are datestamped, although accompanying
documents
are
subsequently
scanned. Internal Audit noted that
for some invoices the background
information provides clarification of
the amounts due.
Risk
The process could be held up if
documents are not kept together
physically and electronically and
therefore late payments could be
made.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
All documents should be date stamped on receipt.
Scanning timetables are to be agreed as a part of the
Service Level Agreement.
15. Segregation of Duties
Recommendation
It is recommended
that
the
person
approving
a
Requisition
should
not
approve
the
Purchase Order to
which the Requisition
relates in order to
maintain segregation

Implementation Date
In progress

(High)

Rationale
Best Practice
There should be segregation of
duties in the Requisition and
Purchase Order processes so that
the same person cannot approve
and authorise the same transaction.
Findings
During a walk-through test Internal

Page 22

Responsibility
Chief
Accountant/
Service Area

of duties.

Audit noted that the person
approving the Requisition can also
approve the related Purchase Order

Risk
Lack of internal control and no
segregation of duties can result in
expenditure being incurred without
authority.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
Need to clarify to what extent this process is necessary
following the introduction of workflow.

Implementation Date
April 2008

VAT
16. Payment Documentation
Recommendation
Within the ‘Capita
Use Only’ section of
documents used for
Accounts
Payable
purposes,
the
narrative should show
the nature of the task
being undertaken and
the name of the
person undertaking
the task as well as
their initials and date.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
It should be easily recognised what
task has been performed by
reference to the certificate provided
within the ‘Capita Use Only’ section.
It would be good practice to have
the
task
(i.e.
input/authorised/checked, etc.) and
the name of the member of staff
identified.

Responsibility
Capita

Findings
Payment Vouchers and similar
documents used to make payments
have provision for Capita staff to
insert the transaction number, initial
& date the document. It is not clear,
i.e. whether capita is checking,
authorising or otherwise signing for
data input, what function is being
performed by Capita in this regard.

Risk
Controls may be duplicated and as
a result resource time could be
wasted.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Capita staff have been reminded to complete the
transaction number box on all occasions. This may require
a re-design of the form since the transaction number had
been entered in the top right hand side of the form for easy
access once filed.

Page 23

Implementation Date
Immediate

DUPLICATE CREDITORS AND PAYMENTS
17. Checking Process
Recommendation
To prevent duplicate
payments
Capita
should be required to
provide evidence that
demonstrates
that
embedded checks are
in
place
at the
Remittance
Proposal/Confirmation
stage prior to each
creditor’s
payment
run.

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
The Client should have confidence
that embedded checks are in place
to prevent duplicate payments.

Responsibility
Capita

Findings
There is no evidence that adequate
checks are being carried out for
duplicate payments other than
checking the Agresso screen, no
weekly listing is produced against
which checks can be made and
signed off.

Risk
Duplicate payments could be made
if checks are not properly carried
out and recorded.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
Documented procedures have been distributed and are In progress
awaiting comments. Capita are actively chasing duplicate
payments.
18. Duplicate Suppliers
Recommendation
Capita
should
undertake
periodic
reviews of suppliers
in conjunction with
service
areas
to
maintain a robust
database
and
minimise the risk of
erroneous
or
duplicate payments.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
The client should have confidence
that the supplier’s database is
reviewed periodically.

Responsibility
Capita

Findings
There is no current process
undertaken to review possible
duplicate
creditors/suppliers,
although Capita recognise that this
should be undertaken on a periodic
basis.

Risk
Suppliers may be duplicated or
incorrectly stated.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
As a part of the control documents that Capita have
distributed includes the maintenance of the supplier
database.

Page 24

Implementation Date
In progress.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 11th March 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Previous Audit Recommendations
Review the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy regarding the
investment of funds
Regular Monitoring of Treasury Management Performance
Sampling of Transactions
Adherence to CIPFA Code of Practice
Access Controls to Computerised Systems
Adequate Separation of Duties

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Treasury Management Policy, agreed by the Council in December 2001,
requires the approval of an annual Treasury Management and Investment
Strategy before the beginning of each financial year. This sets the borrowing
limits, investment objectives approved organisations for investment,
guidelines and the performance criteria for the in-house operation.

2.2

In accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting
(CIPFA) code of practice and the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM)
guidance under section 15 of the Local Government Act 2003, a report went
to the Executive Committee in March 2007 giving details of the Treasury
Management and Investment Strategy for 2007/2008.

2.3

Treasury Management falls under the remit of the Strategic Director (S151
Officer). He is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the Authority obtains
the optimum return on investments consistent with the risks and policies laid
down in the Treasury Management Policy. The Head of Asset Management
(now Principal Accountant – Technical since the 1 January 2008) has day to
day responsibility for the management of the whole of the Authority’s assets
and for ensuring adequate resources are available in order to implement and
maintain this procedure. The Principal Accountant (now Accountant since the
1 January 2008) has responsibility for operating within the Treasury
Management Strategy and for ensuring that activities relating to Treasury
Management are carried out in accordance with documented quality system
requirements.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORT
3.1

Treasury Management was last subject to an internal audit review in
December 2006. No recommendations were made from this audit review.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Full Assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to
meet the system objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.

Page 25

No recommendations have been made from this audit review.
5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Previous Audit Recommendations

5.2

The previous Internal Audit report was issued in December 2006. The
Management Summary states ‘All recommendations from previous audits
have been implemented and there are no recommendations for improvement
arising from this audit review.’.

5.3

Review the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy

5.4

A copy of the current strategy 2007/2008 was obtained from the Head of
Asset Management. Review of this documentation affirmed that the Council
has established an Investment Strategy and Policy. This was presented to
the Executive 2nd March 2007 and approved at that meeting.

5.5

Each of the staff involved in Treasury Management – Strategic Director, Head
of Asset Management and each of the Principal Accountants (3) are aware
and have access to the Strategy and Policy documentation.
No
recommendations have been made.

5.6

Regular Monitoring of Treasury Management Performance

5.7

Management and Members are provided with details of In-House Investment
Performance, External Fund Mangers Performance and an Investment
Income Review with conclusions and summary of the year’s activities.
Internal Audit obtained and reviewed the Activities Report to the Executive
dated 13th July 2007. The content of the report established that all areas of
the Treasury Management are reported and published. The information
contained within the document also identified that poor returns are reported
along with any borrowing that has taken place during the period covered
since the last report.

5.8

Internal Audit is satisfied that there is regular monitoring and reporting of the
Treasury Management investment performance. No recommendations have
been made.

5.9

Adherence to CIPFA Code of Practice

5.10

A copy of the Council’s current Treasury Management Policy was requested
and obtained from the Head of Asset Management. Examination of the
documentation together with copies of the CIPFA Code of Practice and
Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes and the Guidance for Smaller Public Service
Organisations on the Applications of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury
Management in the Public Services, indicates that the Treasury Management
Policy is drawn up and operating in accordance with the CIPFA Code of
Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services. No recommendations
have been made.

5.11

Sampling of Investment Transactions

Page 26

5.12

The files containing the documentation to support the temporary investment of
funds for the months of August and September 2007 and the Call Account for
April and May 2007 were extracted and examined. Following review of this
sampling, Internal Audit was able to confirm that adequate documentation is
maintained to record investment activity, the transactions had been accurately
recorded, and the correct interest and principal sums had been received by
the Authority at the appropriate time. The records reviewed in the sampling
were complete and accurate.

5.13

It is the opinion of Internal Audit that the Treasury Management function for the
placing and monitoring of funds for investment is well organised and managed.
The files and documentation are well maintained with a good management and
audit trail. No recommendations have been made.

5.14

Access Controls to Computerised Systems

5.15

It was established and confirmed by Internal Audit that back up of the
systems takes place daily. The ‘Financial Director’ system automatically
backs up data on to the hard disk at close down each day. The following day
the data is backed up on to the main frame. This also includes the excel
spreadsheets maintained by the Principal Account which contains the daily
transaction information.

5.16

Review of the documentation and speaking with staff within the service area,
Internal Audit are of the opinion controls, systems, and procedures are in
place to protect data from unauthorised access, and data is backed up
regularly and held securely. No recommendations have been made.

5.17

Adequate Separation of Duties

5.18

Internal Audit review of the operation of the service is of the opinion that there
is adequate separation of duties between those with responsibility for the dayto-day operations, monitoring performance, checking and authorising
transactions and reconciliation.

5.19

Review of the International Standards Organisation (ISO) documentation and
the working practices and procedures within Treasury Management, it is the
opinion of Internal Audit that adequate separation of duties are in place, and
that these are clearly documented and defined. No recommendations have
been made.

Page 27

ELECTIONS 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 17th March 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•

•

•

•

•

•

To ensure that adequate procedures and monitoring arrangements are
in place to ensure that any electoral registration process is conducted
in accordance with the relevant legislation.
To ensure that roles and responsibilities are clearly clarified in relation
to the Electoral Registration and Returning Officer and his/her clerks,
presiding officers at polling stations and polling/counting agents.
To ensure that the Council agreed a scale of payments for the
Electoral Registration and his/her agents in fulfilling their statutory
duties at the May 2007 district elections.
To ensure that appropriate recharges were made following the May
2007 district election to the necessary individual parish councils for
administering their elections.
To ensure that a clear budget for the May 2007 district elections was
established and that the cost of and accounting arrangements for the
elections were documented, signed off and reported appropriately.
To ensure that the Electoral Registration and Returning Officer
conducted a post-elections performance review, and developed an
action plan to address areas of improvement for future elections.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council has a statutory duty under a range of acts including the Local
Government Act 1972, the Electoral Administration Act 2006 and the
Representation of the People Act 1983 to maintain a Register of Electors and
conduct Parliamentary, European, District and Parish elections as and when
required. Each Council is required to appoint an officer of the Council to be
the Returning Officer for all elections.

2.2

The Electoral Registration Officer is the official with responsibility for the
preparation and maintenance of the register of electors and list of absent
voters within their area. The appointment of the Electoral Registration Officer
is prescribed in Section 8 of the Representation of the People Act 1983, in
England every Council is required to appoint an officer of the Council to be
the Electoral Registration Officer. The Returning Officer Head of Democratic
Services and the Electoral Services Manager all take joint responsibility for
managing the elections function on behalf of the Council.

2.3

At the time of the audit, the Election section currently have three members of
staff, an Election Services Manager, an Election Services Officer and one
part time Election Services Officer, all officers demonstrated considerable
knowledge and experience within this area of work.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Elections were last subject to an internal audit review in July 1995 and no

Page 28

recommendations were raised.
4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal
control although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence
that the level of non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at
risk.

4.2

Six recommendations have been raised in this review. Four Medium and
Two Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Procedures

5.2

Internal Audit considered that Electoral Services are well versed in the
legislation that informs their procedures and work instructions. Whilst Internal
Audit acknowledges that modifications are required to the internal procedures,
the service area rely mainly on the Electoral Commission published guidance
to ensure their working arrangements are compliant with legislation. Internal
Audit has made one recommendation as a result of the work undertaken in
this area.

5.3

Roles and Responsibilities

5.4

Internal Audit having reviewed the roles and responsibility of the various posts
attached to the Election process has no concerns regarding this area of the
review. Officers have clarity in terms of their tasks, duties and responsibilities
attached to the election services; furthermore they offer guidance and training
to Presiding Officers and Poll Clerks which enables elections to be carried out
in an efficient manner. No recommendations have been made as a result of
the work undertaken in this area.

5.5

Electoral Registration
Internal Audit can conclude from the review of the arrangements regarding
electoral registration that the procedures in place are adequate. However
Internal Audit has identified that Elections Services are not compliant with the
arrangements already in place throughout the Council to request petrol
receipts to support travel claims and the Council’s VAT claim. To
accommodate this requirement Internal Audit has recommended that the
election mileage form be amended to reflect this requirement and for Election
Services to capture receipts where necessary.

5.6

Internal Audit has also noted the arrangements regarding the non payment of
tax for election duties and would advocate that official HMRC documentation
is obtained and supplied to the appropriate election staff prior to any
elections. Distribution of the appropriate form could be incorporated as part of
the training process undertaken by all officers. Two recommendations have
been made as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.7

Recharges

Page 29

5.8

Internal Audit is aware of problems with the Agresso system following the
upgrade to Agresso in April 2007. At the time of the election in May 2007,
Election Services dealt with problems relating to duplicate payment and
unpaid invoices, these issues have since been resolved and cheques
returned where necessary. However the authorising process has only
recently been resolved. All these issues have been detailed in the Agresso
recovery plan and it is anticipated that they will be resolved fully by the end of
March 2008.

5.9

Internal Audit has confirmed that the arrangements regarding the calculation
of recharges to the parishes for the May 2007 election were adequate,
accurate and supported by an extensive range of invoices and appropriate
charges. Furthermore the recharges were issued in a timely manner together
with a comprehensive breakdown of the charges to enable the Parish
Councils to agree the charge and discharge the payments swiftly. The
Election team has experienced difficulties in authorising the recharge invoice
for Abingdon Town Council, which resulted in a delay in the issue of the
invoice until 8th February 2008. All other recharge accounts relating to the
May 07 elections have now been settled fully. One recommendation has
been made as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.10

Budget Arrangements

5.11

Internal Audit was able to confirm from the review that the budget and
monitoring arrangements for the May 2007 election were executed thoroughly
and in a timely manner. However Internal Audit noted the requirement to
present accounts for all parliamentary elections which are dully approved and
signed off by the Department for Communities and Local Government.
Internal Audit is of the view that to assist with best practice this process of
approval could be adopted for local elections. The election team maintains the
election records in a manner which support the production of final accounts;
however consideration should be given to an appropriate officer to carry out
this task. One recommendation has been made as a result of the work
undertaken in this area.

5.12

Post Election Review

5.13

The Chief Executive confirmed that a post election review was conducted
with key election staff directly after the conclusion of the election on 7th June
2007. Internal Audit has noted that the feedback received stated that the May
2007 election was considered by all involved in the process to have gone well
with only minor criticisms being levied; however Internal Audit would
advocate a formal review process is adopted to assist in demonstrating
accountability with regards to the election process. One recommendation has
been made as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.14

Proactive Fraud and Anti Corruptions Arrangements

5.15

Internal Audit considers that Election officers are proactive in identifying
possible fraud cases and furthermore that adequate arrangements are in
place to escalate cases should they be identified as potential fraudulent
cases. No recommendations have been made as a result of the review

Page 30

carried out in this area.
OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
PROCEDURES AND MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS
1. Procedures
Recommendation
All
procedures
relating to Electoral
Services should be
updated
and
expanded
as
necessary to reflect
changes
in
legislation.
Furthermore officers
should operate a
system of version
control to denote
when revisions to
procedures
have
been made.

(Low)
Rationale
Best Practice
Procedures
should
be
reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in
legislation; furthermore the introduction
of version control should assist in
identifying when the review process
should take place to facilitate a review
timetable.

Responsibility
Electoral Services
Manager

Findings
Internal Audit noted that only one of the
six procedures obtained denoted that
the procedure had been reviewed and
updated. The procedures do not reflect
revision dates.

Risk
If procedures are not in accordance with
relevant legislation then they may not
comply with legislation covering Human
Rights and Data Protection
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation
Date
Implemented
29/02/2008

ELECTORAL REGISTRATION
2. Scale of Fees
Recommendation
The Election Section
should
review
whether
petrol
receipts should be
acquired to support
mileage
claims/vat
reimbursement for all
staff employed to
carry out election
duties. Claim forms
should be amended
to
reflect
this
requirement.

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
That all mileage claims are supported
by a VAT receipt, which also supports
the Council Vat claim.
Findings
The Council VAT officer has stated that
a vat receipt should be produced to
support mileage claims. Internal Audit
considers that the Council may be
required to state on the mileage claim
form that petrol receipt should be
obtained where possible to support the

Page 31

Responsibility
Electoral Services
Manager

Furthermore
this
information should be
documented
and
conveyed to all staff
prior to an election.

reclaiming of VAT.

Risk
The Council VAT claim could be
considered invalid as it is not supported
by the appropriate documentation.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

3. Tax Documentation
Recommendation
Election staff should
ensure
adequate
supplies of tax forms
are
available
to
distribute,
furthermore election
staff
should
be
informed
of
the
requirement
to
complete the relevant
tax
documentation
before the election to
enable
the
information to be
captured in a timely
manner.

Implementation
Date
Implemented for
recent by-election
13/03/2008
(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
The official HMRC tax forms should be
obtained prior to the Elections with a
view to distributing and informing
election staff of the requirement to
ensure the relevant tax documentation
is completed and sent to the Tax office.

Responsibility
Electoral Service
Manager

Findings
Internal Audit noted there had been
some confusion regarding the issue and
control of the relevant tax forms at the
time of the May elections. There are two
forms that could be used in these
circumstances a P527 and P528,
Internal Audit noted that the Election
office had put together their own version
of these forms; (Election/Referendum
earnings certificate of taxable income).
Internal Audit would advocate that they
use the official HMRC forms.

Risk
Failure to ensure election staff are
supplied with the appropriate tax forms
could result in erroneous election
payments being made.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation
Date
Implemented for
recent by-election
13/03/2008

RECHARGES
4. Outstanding Debtors Reports
Recommendation

(Medium)

Rationale

Responsibility

Page 32

The Election Services
Manager
should
undertake training to
enable her to review
the
outstanding
debtors report on a
monthly
basis
to
enable her to assist
with debt recovery for
election purposes.

Best Practice
Election staff should review the
outstanding debtor reports on a regular
basis with a view to assisting with debt
recovery where possible.

Electoral Services
Manager

Findings
Internal Audit highlighted difficulties that
staff have in tracking debtor’s invoices
on the Agresso system, the absence of
regular outstanding debtor’s reports has
also impacted on Election staff not being
able to resolve invoice queries.

Risk
If debts are not recovered promptly then
the Council may incur inappropriate
costs.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation
Date
June 2008

BUDGET ARRANGEMENTS
5. Accounting Arrangements
Recommendation
That final accounts
similar
to
those
presented
for
parliamentary
elections should be
prepared for District
elections and signed
off by a designated
officer to support all
expenditure relating
to such elections.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
That final accounts similar to those
prepared for the Parliamentary elections
are prepared, reviewed and signed off
following closure of an election.
Findings
The Election Services Manager stated
that final accounts are prepared for the
parliamentary elections as they are
required to be sent off to the Dept of
Communities and Local Government for
scrutiny and approval. The same
process of account approval does not
occur for the local elections. Staff
considers it would be helpful to have a
formal process for the signing off of the
accounts relating to local elections, the
information is retained in a format that
supports the presentation of final
accounts.
Risk
Failure to review the budget following
closure of an election could result in
variances not being identified or

Page 33

Responsibility
Electoral Services
Manager/ Head of
Democratic
Services/
Returning Officer

explained so they could be replicated in
future years with a detrimental effect on
the Council’s reputation.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation
Date
Agreed for next
District Election or
By Election.

POST ELECTION REVIEW
6. Post Election Review
Recommendation
It is recommended
that following each
election a formal post
audit review report
should be drafted
with a formal action
plan, this process will
assist
in
demonstrating
accountability
with
regards to the lection
process.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Formal post election review and action
plan are drafted to inform and assist
with the development of any future
elections.

Responsibility
Electoral Services
Manager/ Head of
Democratic
Services

Findings
The Chief Executive confirmed that his
office
doesn’t
retain
formal
documentation of these post election
meetings,
however
the
Election
Services Manager stated that notes of
the meetings had been taken by the
Democratic Services Manager.

Risk
Failure to review the election process
can result in issues not being addressed
for future elections. Therefore mistakes
could be replicated in future years with
a detrimental effect on the Council’s
reputation.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Page 34

Implementation
Date
Review
meeting
held
on
the
17/03/2008
and
notes taken for
recent by-election.
All future elections
review to be held
within 2 weeks of
election

MAIN ACCOUNTING 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 20th March 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Previous Audit Recommendations
Financial Information and Feeder Systems
Accuracy of Coding
Journal Transfers
Bank Reconciliation
Suspense and Holding Accounts

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The main accounting system should provide complete and accurate data for
the production and publication of the annual accounts and financial returns.
The system should be geared to meet statutory accounting requirements,
recommended accounting practices and the requirement for financial returns.
The final accounts should be prepared and presented in a form which follows
the accounting recommendations as published by the appropriate body.

2.2

The Vale of White Horse District Council and South Oxfordshire District
Council entered in to a shared service agreement for their respective
Financial Services on the 1st October 2007. At the time of the audit the
revised structure had not been fully implemented. Prior to the shared service
agreement Accountancy at the Council consisted of seven staff; a Chief
Accountant, four Principal Accountants, and two Finance Assistants.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Main Accounting was last subject to an internal audit review in December
2006 with the final report issued February 2007. Three recommendations
were made in the action plan and agreed.

4 AUDIT ASSURANCE 2006/2007
4.1

Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal
control although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence
that the level of non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at
risk.

4.2

Five recommendations have been raised in this review each with a rating of
low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Previous Audit Recommendations

5.2

Three recommendations were made in the previous audit report 2006/2007.
The Chief Accountant, who is new in post since the last audit, acknowledged

Page 35

that the recommendations had been reviewed. Whilst the recommendations
made in the previous audit report are not fully implemented or fully
operational, they are in-hand and will move forward within the Ridgeway
Shared Service Partnership. No recommendations have been made as a
result of our work in this area.
5.3

Financial Information And Feeder Systems

5.4

Financial records are maintained and are operated in accordance with CIPFA,
current legislation requirements and in compliance with Financial Regulations.
However, the conversion to Agresso 5.5 has resulted in a number of issues
being highlighted. Accountants are currently providing budget information on
excel spreadsheets rather than budget holders having direct and prompt
access to their budgets. Due to these circumstances Internal Audit has not
been able to fully scrutinise the system. It is anticipated that this area will be
reviewed again at the time of follow-up. No recommendations have been
made as a result of our work in this area.

5.5

Accuracy Of Coding

5.6

Following a review of the coding documentation for main accounting and
discussions with the Accountancy staff, it was confirmed that codes are in
place for all services of the Council. Systems, controls and procedures are in
place should a new code or a new attribute be required with these requests
authorised by a senior member of the finance team. Budget holders are
provided with codes relevant to their service provision which should avoid any
error with coding.

5.7

Prior to the Shared Service Arrangement Accountancy had International
Standards Organisation (ISO) accreditation which meant that all of their
processes, procedures, work instructions and forms were recorded and held
in a central file. With the joint working arrangement ISO is no longer
operational. However, it is the opinion of Internal Audit that processes,
procedures, work instructions and forms should be drafted and held on file for
all staff to refer, if and when required. One recommendation has been made
as a result of our work in this area.

5.8

Journal Transfers

5.9

Two journal files were obtained from Accountancy covering the period
2007/2008. File one contained numbers 2000,301 and ongoing. File two
‘miscellaneous’ contained numbers 1000,000 and on going. Six records were
selected at random from each file and the documentation inspected.
Examination of these records confirmed that all of the necessary information
and documentation was held to support the journal transfer.

5.10

The balance sheet notes and documentation to support the end of year
closure of accounts and brought forward balances were obtained from the
Chief Accountant and Head of Asset Management. A review of the end of
year documentation would indicate that the correct procedures in accordance
with CIPFA guidance had been followed. No recommendations have been
made as a result of work in this area.

Page 36

5.11

Bank Reconciliation

5.12

Internal Audit obtained the bank reconciliation documentation for the period
June, July and August 2007 and examined the records. From review of the
documentation and processes in place for bank reconciliation, Internal Audit
can confirm that regular reconciliations take place. Monthly reconciliation
schedules with the documentation to support this process are passed to the
Chief Accountant thereby providing an independent check.

5.13

Reconciliation documentation should also be submitted to the Chief
Accountant from particular service areas following each month end. The file
containing these monthly ‘Reconciliation Reports’ was obtained and three
months reviewed; June, July and August 2007. Of the three months
examined, it was noted that returns were not on file for all of the services
identified on a summary sheet. It could also not be confirmed that the
summary sheet and the list of required documentation is up-to-date. Three
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.14

It was stated during the audit by one of the Finance Assistants (Accountancy)
that since the move to Agresso 5.5, it has been more difficult to trace and
identify coding errors on the new system due to the way items are collectively
coded. One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this
area.

5.15

Suspense And Holding Accounts

5.16

To verify that there are processes and procedures in place for the monitoring
and clearing of Suspense and Holding Accounts, reports for the period
2006/2007 & 2007/2008 were obtained from the Agresso system. The reports
identified that on ‘Unposted’ items 2006/2007 a balance of - £1,735,458.12
was shown.
Information was given that this amount relates to ten
transactions which should have been posted in 2007/2008 and will be
amended.

5.17

Examination the documentation for suspense and holding account balances
confirmed that these accounts are kept under review. No recommendations
have been made as a result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
CODING STRUCTURE
1. Accuracy of Coding – Administration Documentation
Recommendation
Processes,
procedures,
work
instructions
and
forms
for
Accountancy should
be drafted and held
on file for staff to
refer. This could be of

Rationale
Best Practice
Policies,
procedures,
work
instructions and documentation for
the administration of the service
should exist, be current and
accessible to all staff.
Findings

Page 37

(Low)
Responsibility

assistance with the
implementation
of
new
accounting
system
where
changes
have
occurred
and
clarification
or
confirmation may be
required on specific
practices.

As a result of this audit, Internal
Audit became aware that procedure
and work instructions were not
current. Prior to the Shared Service
Arrangement and the upgrade to
Agresso 5.5 Accountancy had
International
Standards
Organisation (ISO) accreditation. All
processes,
procedures,
work
instructions
and
forms
were
recorded and held in a central file,
which all staff had access to. With
the merger of the services ISO is no
longer operational.

Risk
Staff may not be aware of the
revised documentation and would
not have a central source of
reference should they require
clarification or confirmation on
specific documentation or practices.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Processes and procedures relating to the work transferred
to Capita are in progress and are due to be completed by
the end of the recovery programme. Once their roles are
clarified then Accountancy can review and update its own
procedures and it is envisaged that this can be done over
the summer period.

Implementation Date

By end August 2008

RECONCILIATIONS
2. Bank Reconciliation
Recommendation
The
situation
whereby the revised
coding structure has
resulted in a more
lengthy process for
identifying
and
amending anomalies
and/or coding errors
should be reviewed
with the possibility of
a
more
straightforward
method of tracing and
amending
these,
whilst still maintaining
a
full
management/audit

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
The main accounting system data
should have a coding structure
which
permits
individual
transactions on the system to be
easily identifiable.
Findings
Since the move to Agresso 5.5 it
has been more difficult to trace and
identify coding errors on the system
due to the way in which items are
collectively coded.
Risk
Unnecessary time and manpower
may be spent on rectifying

Page 38

Responsibility
N/A

trail.

anomalies and/or coding errors.

Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
The new method of bank reconciliation requires all
transactions to be individually loaded to Agresso to permit
the electronic matching of data. This increases the clarity in
the system. Bank reconciliations done by Capita are now
being signed off by Steve Bishop.

Implementation Date
Implemented

SERVICE AREA RECONCILIATIONS
3. Service Area Reconciliations
Recommendation
Late returns of the
month-end
reconciliation
documentation
should be monitored
and chased actively
to ensure that officers
assigned
with
responsibility
for
submitting returns do
so promptly thereby
ensuring that any
anomalies
are
investigated
and
amended
correctly
and promptly.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
Reconciliation
documentation
should be reviewed regularly and
agreed by a senior finance officer.

Responsibility

Findings
Monitoring of the reconciliation
documentation from services areas
has recently transferred from the
Strategic Director to the Chief
Accountant. The file containing the
monthly ‘Reconciliation Reports’
was obtained and three months
reviewed; June, July and August
2007. It was observed from review
of the documentation that monthly
returns were not on file for all of the
services as listed on the summary
sheet.

Risk
Unless some independent check is
carried out on the reconciliation
process and at regular intervals,
errors would not be identified and
corrected promptly.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
The entire process of reconciliation requires to be reviewed
following the implementation of bank recs on Agresso. A
review of the summary sheet and required recs will be
started after Easter.

Implementation Date

June 2008

4. Service Area Reconciliations

(Low)

Recommendation
Rationale
Responsibility
A review of the layout Best Practice
and content of the A receipt date should be recorded

Page 39

‘Reconciliation
Summary’ monitoring
sheet for the service
areas monthly returns
should be undertaken
with
consideration
given to including a
date recorded in the
end column rather
than a tick. This
would provide better
management
and
monitoring
information.

on the ‘Reconciliation Summary’
sheet to provide better management
and monitoring information.
Findings
The ‘Reconciliation Summary’ sheet
has a tick placed in the column next
to the name of the person with
responsibility for submitting the end
of month return therefore there is no
way of knowing the date of receipt
of the documentation.

Risk
The officer with responsibility for
monitoring the monthly returns
would be unable to establish the
receipt date/s and any constant time
delays which require to be pursued
to avoid continuous time delays
thereby any errors not be identified
and corrected promptly.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
This change will be implemented as a part of the review of
the reconciliations.

Implementation Date
June 2008

5. Service Area Reconciliations
Recommendation
Following the change
in service provision
the contact officer
names listed on the
reconciliation
monitoring
sheet
should be reviewed to
ensure that these
officers still have
responsibility
for
submitting
the
returns, and should
include the current
contact number for
each
of
these
officers.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
Contact officers with responsibility
for
submitting
monthly
reconciliations should be affirmed
and include their contact number.
Findings
With the outsourcing of some of the
Council services it is not known
whether the names on the summary
sheet are still the names of the
people
with
responsibility
for
submitting the monthly reconciliation
returns.
Risk
Changes in personnel could take
place without the transfer of
responsibility being notified to
officers who require to be kept
informed of any alteration to roles

Page 40

Responsibility

and responsibilities. This could
result in reconciliations being
overlooked, causing delays in the
process with errors not being
identified and corrected promptly.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
This change will be implemented as a part of the review of
the reconciliations.

Page 41

Implementation Date
June 2008

CAPITAL ACCOUNTING 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 7th April 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•

•
•

•
•
•

To ensure that agreed recommendations from the previous audit have
been implemented and are being adhered to.
To ensure that the Council has established and keeps up to date a
capital financing strategy and asset management plan to enable it to
develop and manage its capital programme.
To ensure that the Council is monitoring its capital contracts against
approved budgets.
To ensure that the Council’s capital accounting arrangements adopt
CIPFA best practice and comply with the Council’s Financial
Regulations and Contract Standing Orders.
To ensure that there is adequate authorisation of additions, disposals,
write-offs, transfers and amendment of the Asset Register.
To ensure the Asset Register is periodically reconciled against other
sources.
To ensure that management has processes in place to pro-actively
identify any evidence of fraud and corruption within their business area.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council prepares annual financial statements that are subject to external
audit by the Audit Commission. The financial statements include details of the
Council’s capital assets and related capital expenditure. Capital expenditure is
generally the expenditure approved by the Council for inclusion in the
approved capital programme and includes funding that the Council receives
by way of developers’ contributions agreed under Section 106 Agreements
via the Planning development system. The Head of Finance is responsible for
producing the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy which incorporates
the Council’s planned capital budgets for a 3-4 year period.

2.2

A key element of the financial statements involves the data held on the
Council’s Asset Register which are related to the Council’s land and property
portfolio. CIPFA’s Capital Accounting for Local Authorities (Consolidated
Guidance Note - July 2003) provides good practice guidance on the scope
and nature of Asset Registers and who should maintain them. The Head of
Asset Management is responsible for monitoring the Council’s capital
programme. The Head of Property Services is the Council’s Corporate
Property Officer and as such is responsible for managing the Council’s land
and property portfolio.

2.3

As part of the government’s initiative to get local authorities to take a more
proactive role in managing its assets, in 2003 the Council was required to
produce a Capital Strategy and Asset Management Plan (AMP). At that time
the requirement to produce the two documents was dependent on an
assessment by the Department for Communities & Local Government (DCLG)

Page 42

(then the ODPM). Once the Council attained a ‘Good’ report from the DCLG
the requirement lapsed. Thereafter, it was perceived as good practice that the
two documents should be updated annually.
2.4

The Council achieved a ‘Good’ report and has reviewed and updated both the
Capital Strategy and the AMP. The Council is currently undertaking a
Corporate Property Review.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

An audit of Capital Accounting was completed in March 2007 as part of the
Vale of White Horse District Council’s Internal Audit plan for 2006/2007. Two
(2) recommendations were made in the audit report. A Satisfactory
Assurance audit opinion was given.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal
control although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence
that the level of non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at
risk.

4.2

One (1) Low priority recommendation has been raised in this review.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Previous Audit Recommendations

5.2

An audit of Capital Accounting was completed in March 2007 as part of Vale
of White Horse District Council’s (VWHDC) Internal Audit plan for 2006/2007.
Two (2) recommendations were made and agreed. One recommendation
concerned performance indicators whilst the other was concerned with the
provision of a single asset database.

5.3

Internal Audit noted that national property indicators have been adopted as an
interim measure until the issues relating to the single asset database are
resolved. The Head of Asset Management told Internal Audit that a Coordinator within the ICT Project Team has been appointed to complete the
single asset database project. Internal Audit confirmed that data regarding
individual records for land and property have been identified and that the
single asset database project is due to be completed by the end of April 2008.
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.4

Capital Financing Strategy and Asset Management Plan

5.5

The Head of Asset Management and the Head of Property Services jointly
review the Capital Strategy as part of the budget setting process which takes
place in January/February each year. No changes were made to the Capital
Strategy when it was last reviewed in 2007 other than to update the
Appendices to reflect the timetable for the proposed capital projects to be
undertaken during 2007/08.

5.6

The Council has an Asset Management Group comprising Two Members, the

Page 43

Chief Executive, a Strategic Director, the Principal Legal Officer, the Head of
Property Services and the Head of Asset Management. The Group meets
every two months to determine strategy for the land & property portfolio and
considers acquisitions, disposals and other major initiatives affecting that
portfolio. No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in
this area.
5.7

Monitoring Capital Contracts

5.8

The Head of Asset Management is responsible for managing the Council’s
assets to achieve corporate and service objectives. Asset management
comprises the capital programme, assets, cash, property information and risk
management. The Head of Property Services is required to report on
progress towards achievement of Council objectives on property matters
including acquisitions and disposals of land and significant capital projects.

5.9

The Head of Property Services provides the Council with strategic direction
regarding its land and property portfolio. Property Services staff project
manage many of the contracts that comprise the Council’s capital
programme. No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in
this area.

5.10

CIPFA Best Practice and Compliance

5.11

The Audit Commission’s Annual Governance report for 2006/07 confirmed
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) on Local Authority accounting.

5.12

The Council’s constitution contains Financial Procedure Rules and Standing
Orders for the award of Contracts. Both of these refer to compliance with laws
and regulations. The Constitution is reviewed periodically. No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.13

Acquisitions and Disposals of Assets

5.14

Internal Audit obtained a copy of the Asset Register as at 31 March 2007 and
was advised by the Head of Asset Management that he updates the Register
throughout the year. The formal year-end close-down arrangements require
him to update the Asset Register as part of the procedure for the preparation
of the Council’s financial statements.

5.15

Internal Audit confirmed that Members’ approval is sought for major
acquisitions, disposals or other transactions associated with the Council’s
land and property portfolio. As an independent check on the integrity of the
Asset Register Internal Audit selected three transactions for 2007/2008 for
verification; these were one acquisition and two disposals. Internal Audit
confirmed that adequate audit (management) trails exist to support the
transactions. No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in
this area.

5.16

Reconciling the Asset Register

5.17

Reconciling the Asset Register is a fundamental part of the close-down

Page 44

procedure for the annual financial statements. The Head of Asset
Management and the Accountancy Team are responsible for preparing the
Council’s capital accounts as part of the financial statements procedure. The
Head of Asset Management has prepared a Capital Accounts – Annual
Closure guidance note as an aide for those preparing the capital accounts.
The Head of Asset Management takes responsibility for ensuring that the
ledger values agree with those of the Asset Register and take account of the
Valuation report produced by the Head of Property Services.
5.18

Internal Audit noted during the audit that the Council has signed s.106
Agreements, (Developers Contributions) for works of art, e.g. FO41Timbmet
Site (Chawley Works) Cumnor Hill, that provide, inter alia, for works of art to
be provided. Internal Audit raised the subject of works of art with the Head of
Asset Management who acknowledged that the Asset Register does not
include such items. One recommendation has been made as a result of our
work in this area.

5.19

Anti-Fraud Initiatives

5.20

The Head of Asset Management acknowledged his responsibilities regarding
identifying and mitigating risks associated with fraud & corruption and that
although he carries out various checks as a routine measure neither the
checks nor the results are documented.

5.21

The Head of Asset Management reviews business risks as part of the annual
corporate risk register review but unless specifically identified as an area
requiring further attention the risks and mitigating actions relating to fraud &
corruption are not being documented. Internal Audit acknowledged that a
separate audit of pro-active anti-fraud measures is included in the Council’s
2007/2008 Internal Audit plan. No recommendations have been made as a
result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
ASSET REGISTER
1. Asset Register
Recommendation
The Head of Asset
Management should
liaise with the Arts
Development
Manager with a view
to determining the
implications for the
Asset Register of
works of art already
commissioned or in
the pipeline.

(Low)
Rationale
Best Practice
Works of art funded by developers’
contributions should be classed as
assets and included within the
Asset Register.
Findings
Some works of art have been
funded by developers’ contributions
but the Head of Asset Management
has not included them in the Asset
Register.
Risk

Page 45

Responsibility
Head of Asset
Management

Unless properly recorded as
Council assets, any works of art
funded by developers’ contributions
could be overlooked and potentially
lost.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Page 46

Implementation Date
1 September 2008

White Horse Leisure & Tennis Centre 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 17th April 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•
•

The contract is being carried out in accordance with the terms of the
contract.
The client officer is adequately monitoring the contract and undertaking
adequate checks where required.
Any issues/queries are being promptly investigated by the client officer
and promptly resolved with the contractor.
Health and Safety and Insurance issues are being adequately
addressed.
That adequate management information is produced, analysed and
utilised.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre was officially opened on 25th
March 2002. The Council entered into a contract with DC Leisure
Management Ltd to operate from 1st April 2002 for a ten year period, it was
decided that a management company would be engaged by DC Leisure to
run the new centre and that this would be achieved via a Charitable Trust.
This enabled benefits to the Council in terms of the VAT cost to be saved as
well as savings on Business Rates. This is the Council’s first Leisure facility
to be managed in this way.

2.2

The contract has been in operation for six years; however it should be noted
that the income received through the Charitable Trust is required to be
reinvested in the Trust but not explicitly in the White Horse Leisure and
Tennis Centre. The Council is provided with financial accounts at the
appropriate time to support these arrangements. The contract is due for
renewal in April 2012 and initial discussions have commenced regarding the
procurement arrangements for the next contract.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

The White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre was last subject to an internal
audit review in January 2003, however the audit was never finalised. Internal
Audit has attempted to review some of the areas highlighted in the previous
audit review.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Limited Assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2

Four recommendations have been raised in this review. Three Medium and
One Low.

Page 47

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Adherence to Contract Terms

5.2

Internal Audit has surmised from conversations with the Leisure Facilities
Manager and the Deputy Director (Contracts and Procurement) that they
believe that the contract is being monitored in accordance with the terms of
the contract, supported by the information recorded from the monthly and
quarterly meetings. Internal Audit found it difficult to acquire documentary
evidence to support some performance aspects of service delivery. For
example: that appropriate CRB checks have occurred, appearance and
staffing levels and an assurance on the quality of service. However the site
visit on 7 March 2008 did confirm that service delivery information is collated,
but has not always been presented to the Council to support an assurance
process. Internal Audit has subsequent to the audit been informed that further
procedures have been adopted to improve the monitoring arrangements
regarding the White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre.

5.3

Internal Audit has been made aware that an attempt to recruit an officer to
improve the monitoring arrangements has only recently been satisfied. The
Parks Officer has agreed to carry out this role in addition to his existing
duties. However Internal Audit considers that to assist the contractor to
demonstrate adherence to contract terms, a recommendation relating to the
introduction of an assurance framework is proposed under the paragraphs
headed management arrangements.

5.4

Monitoring Arrangements

5.5

Internal Audit confirmed that the monitoring arrangements in terms of site
inspections regarding maintenance issues and follow up action plans are
comprehensive and well documented. Internal Audit also acknowledges that
service delivery for other aspects of the service are evident; however Internal
Audit considers that there is insufficient documentary evidence to provide the
Council with assurance that support these arrangements. The Leisure Centre
has the required processes in place to capture the information, however
much of the information is not being passed to the Council to satisfy
adherence to the contract terms. A related recommendation has been made
to address this issue within the paragraphs headed management
arrangements.

5.6

Queries, Comments and Complaints

5.7

Internal Audit acknowledges and can confirm from the testing that adequate
measures are in place to deal with comments and complaints swiftly and
effectively. Internal Audit has recommended that copies of the Comments
Register, monthly summary sheet of complaints and any statistical analysis of
the Comments and Complaints Register are provided to the Leisure Facilities
Manager to facilitate the production of management statistics regarding this
area of the Contractor’s performance. This should ensure that the monitoring
officer receives information to confirm the full range of issues regarding
comments and complaints. Internal Audit has made one recommendation as
a result of the work undertaken in this area.

Page 48

5.8

Health and Safety and Insurance

5.9

Internal Audit can conclude that the health and safety arrangements are
adequate, procedures are clear and staff are fully aware of their
responsibilities to ensure health and safety is well exercised. Furthermore a
review process is in place to ensure that the health and safety process is
constantly reviewed and modified when necessary. Internal Audit also fully
supports the introduction of the Council’s health and safety inspection
checklist/programme by the Leisure Facilities Manager which will further
endorse the health and safety arrangements. Internal Audit has concluded
therefore that health and safety is well administered and has not made any
recommendation as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.10

Internal Audit also found that the insurance documentation was valid and up
to date and the necessary employers’ liability insurance was fixed at the
appropriate levels.

5.11

Management Information

5.12

Internal Audit acknowledges that overall the Leisure Centre is operating well
and perceived as a success, however it appears that very few management
reports are produced which provide assurance of service delivery
requirements. Internal Audit has recommended that improvements are
required to provide a better framework to enable the contractor to provide the
assurance on all aspects of the service as prescribed by the terms of the
Contract and the Leisure Facilities Manager. This would form the basis of a
formal reporting structure to Chief Officers and Members to allow the Council
to formulate an opinion regarding the contractor’s performance and service
delivery for the White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre. Internal Audit has
made two recommendations as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.13

Proactive Fraud and Corruption Measures

5.14

Internal Audit found it difficult to gather any evidence to support what
measures/processes were in place to pro actively identify evidence of fraud
and corruption within the White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre, other than
a verbal assurance given by the Contract Manager. Internal Audit has given a
copy of the Council’s draft anti-fraud and corruption policy statement to the
Leisure Facilities Manager in order to inform the Contractor as to the Councils
position with regards to fraud and corruption measures, this should ensure
that the contractor’s arrangement do not conflict with those of the Council.

5.15

Internal Audit advocates that the Leisure Facilities Manager should satisfy
himself that the White Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre Contract Manager
has processes in place to pro-actively identify fraud and corruption, including
an adequate anti fraud and corruption policy and a risk register. Internal Audit
anticipates that assurance regarding anti-fraud and corruption measures
should also be incorporated in the assurance assessment as detailed in
Management Information above.

Page 49

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS
1. Comments and Complaints Register

(Low)

Recommendation
Rationale
Responsibility
That the Contractor Best Practice
should be requested The
Comments
and
Complaints N/A
to supply a copy of Register should be supplied to inform
the
Register
for the Council of all types of comments
Comments
and and complaints to assist with future
Complaints,
the service delivery initiatives.
monthly
Customer
Comments summary Findings
sheet and statistical Internal Audit confirmed that the
analysis
of
the Register is not currently been supplied
comments
and or reviewed by the Leisure Facilities
complaints register to Manager.
the Leisure Facilities
Manager
at
the Risk
Failure
to
provide
the
Management
Meetings to assist in Comments/Compliant Register would
result in the Council being unaware of
formulating
any major or recurring issues regarding
management
centre
and
its
operations,
information regarding the
comments
and furthermore these issues could affects
its image and reputation.
complaints.
Management Response
Implementation
Date
Recommendation is Not Agreed
N/A
Managers feel that the current monitoring arrangements provide
satisfactory information on customer complaints and that access
to the complaints register is unrestricted and has been
monitored by the client officer as necessary. The monthly client
meetings have a standing agenda item on customer complaints
when officers are briefed by the centre managers and are able
to investigate at greater depth if required on all complaints made
in the preceding month.
The existing systems have allowed officers to identify issues
and agree resolutions with the contractor in a timely and
effective manner. The centre management team adhere to the
complaints procedure identified in the contract document. If
additional or more in depth monitoring is required then
additional resources will be required to undertake this work.
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION
2. Assurance Framework
Recommendation

(Medium)

Rationale

Responsibility

Page 50

That
a
formal
assurance framework
is devised whereby
the
WHTLC
is
required to produce
an
annual
self
assessment
statement providing
evidence
of
compliance with the
terms of the contract.
This
should
be
reviewed, evaluated
and commented on
by the Council’s client
officers as part of a
formal report to be
presented
to
Members and officers
with responsibilities
for the delivery of
Council services.

N/A
Best Practice
Formal documentary evidence is
provided to support an assurance
framework regarding the key aspects of
the service delivery.
Findings
There is limited documentation in place
to
evidence
that
DC
Leisure
Management Ltd are operating White
Horse Leisure and Tennis Centre in
accordance within the terms of the
contract. Both the Deputy Director and
Leisure Facilities Manager view is that
the service is operating well, however
Internal Audit would like to suggest
some improvements to formally acquire
assurance that the service is being
delivered in accordance with the terms
of the contract.

Risk
The Council is unable to assess the
Contractors performance and will be
unaware of whether it is performing
satisfactorily and in accordance with the
Council objectives.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed

Implementation
Date
N/A

There are robust monitoring processes in place to ensure
performance is maintained including the delivery of an annual
business plan, benchmarking against Sport England criteria,
other county wide leisure facilities. In addition there are periodic
strategic reviews and monthly review meetings on a wide range
of service issues. Ultimately the regular monthly monitoring and
reporting on the service introduced in December 2007 provides
real time performance measurement covering the key service
sectors.
3. Management Reporting
Recommendation
That
the
representatives of the
WHTLC management
are
requested
to
attend a meeting with
the
Council’s
Executive
as
determined by the
Council’s authorised

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Council Members are kept informed to
establish public opinion on the Leisure
centre activities and the service
provided by the Contractor.
Findings
This does not take place at present,
albeit it is a requirement of the Contract

Page 51

Responsibility
Leisure Facilities
Manager

officer to report on
and answer questions
on the delivery of
service under the
contract.

that the contractor should be required to
attend meetings of the Executive
members to report upon and answer
questions on the delivery of the service
under the contract.

Risk
The Council would not be fulfilling the
conditions
within
the
contract,
furthermore they would not be kept
informed of, or raise with the contractor
issues, problems or successes.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principal
Management are happy to ask the portfolio holder and/or the
Executive members if they require such a meeting and this will
be raised at the next portfolio meeting.

Implementation
Date
Portfolio holder will
be asked on 18th
April 2008. If
accepted timetable
will be agreed to
commence in
2008.

PRO-ACTIVE ANTI FRAUD & CORRUPTION MEASURES
4. Pro-Active Anti Fraud & Corruption Measures
Recommendation
The Leisure Facilities
Manager
should
satisfy himself that
the WHTLC Contract
Manager
has
processes in place to
pro-actively identify
fraud and corruption,
including
an
adequate anti fraud
and corruption policy
and a risk register.

Rationale
Best Practice
Management should have sufficient
information to confirm that adequate
arrangements are in place to proactively
identify fraud and corruption, which
include an anti fraud and corruption
policy and risk register.

(Medium)
Responsibility
Leisure Facilities
Manager

Findings
The Leisure Facilities Manager was
unable to comment on what measures
the WHLTC have in place to proactively
identify any evidence of fraud and
corruption within their business area.

Risk
Fraud and corruption is not identified
leading
to
significant
financial,
operational, legal and reputational
implications.
Management Response
Implementation
Date
Recommendation is Agreed
The introduction of this aspect of audits within the Council is
new to this service area and as yet the Council does not have a

Page 52

Subject to the
Council’s own

policy in place. This is why officers could not comment on the
CLS Measures. Officers accept that this is an area for
development but in order to establish that the contractor has
sufficient safeguards in place, will require the Council’s own
policy to be implemented so that officers have a benchmark to
evaluate what they will need to consider when monitoring
others. Once this policy is known resources can be assessed
against the additional depth of monitoring required as it should
be noted that whatever checks are undertaken will need to be
applied consistently to the other leisure contract where the risk
is potentially greater as we support that contract financially
which is not the case with this arrangement. A copy of the
Council’s draft policy has been given to the Contractor.

Page 53

policy being
introduced and
analysis of the
level of monitoring,
2009/2010

ABINGDON LSP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 21st April 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
• Adequate documentation is held detailing the processes, procedures and
working practices for the functions within the service area.
• All income is processed using officially approved documentation, is coded
correctly and promptly reconciled.
• All Postal Remittances should be identifiable as belonging to the
organisation with procedures in place for the receipt and disbursement of
cheques.
• Security arrangements are in place, limiting access to key personnel to
restricted areas, computer systems and safe.
• Encashment of cheques and refunds are clearly defined and adhered to.
• Stock items have control records and are reconciled at regular intervals.
• Adequate segregation of duties exist.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Abingdon Local Service Point (ALSP) was formed in 2002 following the
re-organisation of the cash office and reception. The objective of the revised
provision of service being that customers would be able to have any and/or all
of the Council’s services dealt with by one team at front of house, providing a
more customer focused service.

2.2

The team consists of seventeen staff made up by; Local Service Point
Manager, two Team Leaders and thirteen Customer Service Assistants (part
and full time) who are responsible for the day to day operation of the service.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Abingdon Local Services Point was last subject to an internal audit review in
2003. Limited assurance was given and 76 recommendations were made
within the report. A follow-up review of the recommendations made was not
undertaken during this audit, due to the significant changes being made to
the service provision.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal
control although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence
that the level of non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at
risk.

4.2

Eleven recommendations have been raised. 9 Medium and 2 Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Policies And Procedures

Page 54

5.2

Comprehensive documentation is mainly in place detailing the processes,
procedures and working practices of the ALSP. It could be evidenced that
regular reviews of the documents are undertaken and amendment dates are
recorded. However, it was noted that a policy is currently not in place for
telephone payments. One recommendation has been made as a result of our
work in this area.

5.3

Income

5.4

Adequate income reconciliation processes are in place between the cash
receipting system and the bank statements. However, Internal Audit noted
that any amendments/alterations made to income documents do not currently
record the date and officer making the amendment. It was also evidenced
that monitoring arrangements have lapsed for collections by the Council’s
security company. Three recommendations have been made as a result of
our work in this area.

5.5

Postal Remittances

5.6

Adequate arrangements are in place to ensure that postal cheques are
processed on a daily basis. However, weaknesses were identified in the
system for handling cash received by post. Two recommendations have
been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.7

Security Arrangements

5.8

Internal Audit examined the security arrangements covering; staff security,
access to the ALSP office and safe, key holding arrangements, computer
access and users, insurance cover, data protection awareness and risk
management. Internal Audit considers that the access and arrangements for
the safe and safe key need to be reviewed and a procedure for dealing with a
security emergency within the cash office should be implemented. It was
also noted that the risk register is not up to date. Three recommendations
have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.9

Encashment Of Cheques And Refunds

5.10

ALSP have been authorised within the Financial Regulations to en-cash
cheques which fall under specified categories. From sample testing, it was
identified that in some circumstances supporting documentation was not
always in place and the correct authorisation had been obtained. One
recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.11

Stock Control

5.12

Limited stock is now held by the ALSP, and adequate arrangements are in
place to monitor controlled stationary used by the cash office. Internal Audit
acknowledges that a full review of stock control within the Council is to be
undertaken in 2008/2009. No recommendations have been made as a result
of our work in this area.

Page 55

5.13

Segregation Of Duties

5.14

Good arrangements are in place within the ALSP to ensure that separation of
duties exists between the various services which are provided by the team.
However, it was identified that nine ex-employees of the Council remain
registered as users of the cash receipting system. One recommendation has
been made as a result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
1. Telephone Payments
Recommendation
The process and
procedures in regard
to payments taken by
telephone should be
documented in a
work instruction.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
All types of income service should
be documented for staff to refer in
case of a query in relation to a
particular process.

Responsibility
Contact
Services
Manager

Findings
ALSP take payment by telephone
on
behalf
of
Environmental
Services. Other service areas in
Abbey House; Excess Charges,
Sports Development and Licensing
also take card payments over the
‘phone from customers. However
there is no procedure covering
telephone payments.
Risk
Incorrect procedures may be
followed resulting in incorrect
processes and errors.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation Date
31.05.08

INCOME
2. Amendments and Alterations
Recommendation
Any amendments or
alterations to figures
and/or amounts on
the ‘Balancing and
Banking’
sheets
should be dated and
initialled
by
the
responsible officer.

(Medium)

Rationale
Responsibility
Best Practice
Contact
Services
Any amendments or alterations to Manager
figures on financial documentation
should record the officer making the
amendment.
Findings
Review of a sample of income and

Page 56

reconciliation documentation for the
period October, November and
December 2007 showed that where
alteration and corrections had been
made to figures these had not been
signed or initialled by the member of
staff who had corrected the mistake.
Risk
If staff making amendments are not
clearly identified, queries may be
difficult to resolve and amendments
may be made by inappropriate
officers.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
28.03.08.
All staff have been reminded.
3. Paying-In Books
Recommendation
Cashiers
should
ensure that paying-in
slips are completed in
sequential order in
accordance with the
ALSP
working
instructions.

(Low)
Rationale
Best Practice
Paying-in slips should be used in
sequential order.
Findings
It was noted that paying-in slips
were not always used in sequential
order.

Risk
If controlled stationary is not used in
sequential order, it is more difficult
to monitor appropriate usage of the
official recorded stationary.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
All staff have been reminded.
4. Income Collection Monitoring
Recommendation
The
monitoring,
recording
and
recovery of payment
for the late collection
of income by the
Council’s
security
company should be
re-established
with
the
roles
and
responsibilities
for
this
duty
clearly

Responsibility
Contact
Services
Manager

Implementation Date
28.03.08

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Regular
monitoring
of
late
collections of income by the security
company should take place to
ensure that the cost of any missed
collections is recovered.
Findings
Examination of the log for late
and/or non collection of income by
the security company showed that

Page 57

Responsibility
Head of Administration

defined.

there was very little information
recorded for 2007/2008. The Head
of Administration stated that since
implementation of Agresso 5.5 it
would appear that no one has been
monitoring or recording the late
collections and obtaining the credits
from the security company for these
non collections.

Risk
The Council are holding more funds
than covered on our insurance
policy, and are not recovering the
cost from the security company for
missed collections.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Corporate Administration to monitor.

Implementation Date
01.04.08

POSTAL REMITTANCES
5. Cash in Post – Documentation
Recommendation
All cash received in
the post should be
recorded in the ALSP
‘Cash Received In
Post Form’, clearly
identifying
the
amount,
income
details, date received,
by
whom
and
whether a receipt was
issued.

Rationale
Best Practice
All cash received by post and past
to ALSP for processing should be
recorded on the ‘Cash Received In
Post Form’ promptly after receipt.

(Medium)
Responsibility
Contact
Services
Manager

Findings
Of the twenty two cash (22) items
received in the post room for the
period 2007/2008 only 6 (six) items
were recorded on the ALSP ‘Cash
Received In Post Form’ for the
same period, and not all elements
of the form was completed.

Risk
If cash income is not recorded and
done promptly could lead to errors
going
undetected,
with
an
opportunity for the misappropriation
of funds.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
All staff have been reminded.

Implementation Date
28.03.08

6. Cash in Post Administration Process
Recommendation

Rationale

(Low)
Responsibility

Page 58

A procedure should
be implemented to
ensure that cash is
not returned in the
post to the customer.

Best Practice
Cash should never be returned in
post.

Head of Administration
and Contact Services

Findings
The ALSP log has an entry which
states: receipt 82 ‘Posted Back’.

Risk
Funds
could
misappropriated.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

get

lost

or
Implementation Date
31.05.08

SECURITY
7. Access to Secure Areas
Recommendation
Access to the safe
and security of the
safe key should be
reviewed, to ensure
that stringent controls
and
back-up
arrangements are in
place.

(Medium)

Rationale
Responsibility
Best Practice
Contact
Services
Access to secure areas should be Manager
controlled appropriately.
Findings
The combination to the safe is not
changed at regular intervals. There
is no key register to record and list
keys held by whom. There is no
back-up key for the safe or a record
kept of the make and model of the
safe and the key number reference.

Risk
If adequate safe arrangements are
not in place there is a risk of fraud
and mis-appropriation of funds.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
8. Security Protocol
Recommendation
The
Cashiering
Manual
should
include a section on
cash office security
protocol and dealing
with an emergency in
the cash office.

Implementation Date
31.05.08
(Medium)

Rationale
Responsibility
Contact
Services
Best Practice
Staff should be made fully aware of Manager
the controls that are require to
maintain a safe and secure working
environment and the risk factors
when these are not adhered to.
Findings
A review of the ‘cashiering work
instructions and cashiering manual’
identified that no reference is made

Page 59

to security arrangements whether
these be procedure in the case of
an emergency or general office safe
security.
Risk
Staff would not be aware of security
procedures to adhere to in the case
of an emergency or in the day to
day operation of the service.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
9. Risk Register
Recommendation
The Service Area
Risk Register should
be
reviewed
to
ensure that all risks
are properly identified
and accessed with an
action recorded for
each of the risks
identified.

Implementation Date
30.09.08
(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Regular risk reviews, assessments
and
evaluations
should
be
undertaken by management to
ensure that staff are working in a
safe and secure environment.

Responsibility
Contact
Services
Manager

Findings
The Risk Assessment Register for
the Service Area was reviewed and
it was dated the 27th October 2004.

Risk
Risk exposures will not be identified
and
documented,
and
the
necessary mitigating action may not
be taken.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation Date
30.09.08

ENCASHMENT OF CHEQUES AND REFUNDS
10. Supporting Documentation
Recommendation
All
documentation
relating
to
the
encashment
of
cheques should be
held by the ALSP, to
evidence appropriate
authorisation and that
payment has been
made and received
correctly.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Records should contain all of the
required documentation, including
the full date, be legible and held in
the relevant file.
Findings
A sample of 20 encashments were
reviewed and it was noted that 2 did
not have all the supporting
documentation in place correctly
and 1 did not have the appropriate

Page 60

Responsibility
Contact
Services
Manager

authorisation.
Risk
Records would not contain all of the
required details making it difficult to
establish the actual payment date
and to verify if procedures have
been followed correctly and fully.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation Date
28.03.08.

All staff have been reminded.
SEPARATION OF DUTIES
11. System Access
Recommendation
The ALSP Manager
should review the
current users on the
cash
receipting
system, to ensure
that they are all
current
employees,
each member of the
team only has one
user name and they
only have the level of
access
that
is
required to perform
their role.

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
Regular
reviews
should
be
undertaken of users on the system
to ensure that only current
employees are registered as users.

Responsibility
Head
of
Organisational
Change and Contact
Services Manager

Findings
From inspection of the report
provided by ICT of users and levels
of access to the cash receipting
system, it would appear that exemployees are still shown as live
users, one member of staff is on the
system twice, and all staff have the
highest level of access.

Risk
Access and information is available
to unauthorised officers, which
could lead to a risk of fraud and
misappropriation.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
However, the recommendation should be the responsibility
of the Head of Organisational Change as an ICT issue.

Page 61

Implementation Date

To be agreed.

DATA PROTECTION 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 24th April 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•
•

To ensure that current legislation as detailed in the Data Protection Act
1998 is being adhered to.
To ensure that the Council has the appropriate registration.
To ensure that adequate policies and procedures exist.
To ensure that data protection enquires are managed, recorded and
monitored appropriately.
To ensure requests for disclosure of personal data have been
processed correctly.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council has a statutory duty under the Data Protection Act 1998 to
register with the Information Commissioners Office (ICO) and also to renew
the registration annually. It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that it
abides by the Eight (8) Principles of Data Protection and that members of
staff are aware of their responsibilities under the Act.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Data Protection was last subject to an internal audit review in October 2004.
Twelve Recommendations were raised and a Limited level of opinion was
issued.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Limited Assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2

Six (6) recommendations have been raised in this review. Three [3] High and
Three (3) Medium.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

ADHERENCE TO DATA PROTECTION ACT 1998

5.2

In the area of adherence to the Data Protection Act 1998 the Council is
registered with the appropriate authority Information Commissioner Office
(ICO). However, there is currently confusion on who the Data Protection
Officer of the Council is and the Data Protection Group has not been active
since the chairman of the group left the services of the Council in 2004. In
addition, training on data protection issues has not been provided to staff.
Three recommendations have been made as a result of the work undertaken
in this area.

Page 62

5.3

APPROPRIATE DATA PROTECTION REGISTRATION

5.4

VWHDC first registered with the Information Commissioners Office (ICO) on
the 22nd April 2002. The registration was most recently renewed on the 17th
September 2007, expires on the 21st April 2008 and records Sarah Commins
as the contact officer. The appropriate Data Protection Officer will be
registered with the ICO once the Council has decided. No recommendations
have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.5

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES.

5.6

VWHDC has a documented Data Protection Policy in place but this is not up
to date. The Data Protection Policy should also include staffing and reporting
arrangements, guidance on managing enquiries, expectations on data quality
processes in the Council and guidance on disclosure to the third parties. One
recommendation has been made as a result of the work undertaken in this
area.

5.7

DATA PROTECTION ENQUIRIES.

5.8

There is no data enquiries management procedure in place and the inflow
and outflow of information is not recorded. One recommendation have been
made as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.9

REQUESTS FOR DISCLOSURE

5.10

There is no procedure in place detailing how to handle requests for
disclosure. In addition, officers within each service area have not been
designated to handle requests and liaise with the Data Protection Officer on
all data protection issues. One recommendation has been made as a result
of work undertaken in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
ADHERENCE TO DATA PROTECTION ACT 1998
1. Data Protection Officer
Recommendation
The nominated Data
Protection
Officer
should be clarified by:
a.
Official
confirmation of the
name of the Data
Protection Officer and
circulation of same to
all members of staff
in the Council.
b.
Updating
registration of

(High)

Rationale
Best Practice
A clearly nominated Data Protection
Officer is expected to be in place and
known to all officers.
Findings
There is currently confusion as to who
the Data Protection Officer of the
Council is.

Risk
Members of staff are not aware of the
the Council’s Data Protection Officer which
lead
to
confusion
or
the may

Page 63

Responsibility
Head of Legal
Services

data protection officer embarrassment to the Council.
with ICO.
Management Response

Implementation
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The Data Protection Officer for the time being is Tim Treuherz,
Head of Legal Services. Rather than boldly announce this to all
staff, an item will be placed in the Horse’s Mouth once the Data
Protection Group has met for the first time and agreed a way
forward. This will be reviewed on the appointment of the new
Strategic Director. Target date for THM: June 2008

June 2008

April 2008
The current registration will be renewed (and the name of the
officer provided) by the renewal date of 21 April.
December 2008
A review of the registration will subsequently be carried out.
2. Training

(Medium)

Recommendation
a. Data Protection
Training should be
included within the
induction
courses
arranged for new
starters.

Rationale
Best Practice
A written comprehensive Training Plan/
Programme should be in place with both
Human Resources and the Data
Protection
Officer
detailing
how
members of staff will be updated on new
developments in data protection and
b. There should be a also the arrangements for training new
training plan in place starters.
to annually update
members of staff on Findings
new developments in It was found during the audit review that
data protection.
a Data Protection Training/Workshop
was not available for members of staff.
c. Data protection
Training should be Data Protection training / briefing is not
incorporated into the included in induction courses available
Council’s
annual for newly employed members of staff.
Corporate
Training
Risk
Programme.
Members of staff are not aware of their
d. Data protection responsibilities
under
the
Data
responsibilities
of Protection Act 1998 which may lead to
members of staff litigation or embarrassment to the
should be stated in Council.
their letter/contract of
employment.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
a. The principle of staff training is accepted. Whether training

Page 64

Responsibility
Head of Legal
Services
Human Resources
Manager

Implementation
Date
September 2008

as such should be included within induction courses will be
raised with HR. It may simply be appropriate to provide a brief
introduction to what Data Protection means and to what the
roles and responsibilities of staff are.
b. Again, the principle of training is accepted. Whether an
annual update on new development is appropriate will be raised
with HR. Many new developments in Data Protection are
technical in nature and do not always apply to small local
authorities such as the Vale.
c. Again, the principle of training is accepted and this will be
raised with HR.
d. Again, this will be raised with HR.
3. Data Protection Committee
Recommendation
a.
The
Data
Protection
Group
should
be
reconstituted with the
power to start from
where the last group
stopped.
b. Members of the old
Data
Protection
Group that are still
available
in
the
Council should be coopted into the new
group for continuity
purpose.

(High)

Rationale
Responsibility
Head of Legal
Best Practice
A Data Protection Committee is Services
expected to be in place with the
responsibilities
of
preparing
and
implementing the Council’s
Data
Protection Policy and resolving any data
protection problems that might be
encountered
Findings
There is no Data Protection Committee
in place and no group to manage and
resolve data protection issues.
The data Protection Group in place was
technically
dissolved
when
the
Chairman of the group left the services
of the Council in 2006.

Risk
A data protection policy will not be
produced and implemented. Data
protection issues will not be managed
and resolved by an appropriate
committee.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation
Date
June 2008

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
4. Data Protection Policy
Recommendation

(High)

Rationale

Responsibility

Page 65

a.
The
Data
Protection Policy of
the Council should be
reviewed, revised and
updated.
b. The Policy should
also include staffing
and
reporting
structures.
c. The revised Policy
should
be
made
available
to
all
members of staff.

Best Practice
A Data Protection Policy should be in
place and it should be accessible to all
members of staff.
To ensure the Policy is effective, there
should be a reporting structure to
enable staff to be aware of who to
consult and how to resolve data
protection issues. This should include
the steps required before responding to
a request and quality procedures to
ensure only appropriate information is
disclosed and distributed.

Head of
Services.

Legal

Head
Organisational
Change

of

Findings
There is a Data Protection Policy in
place but it is not up to date. The Policy
is on the intranet but most staff are not
aware of it. The Policy does not include
staffing and reporting procedures and it
needs to be updated/ reviewed.
Risk
The Council does not have an up to
date Data Protection Policy in place
leading to a lack of aims and objectives
relating to Data Protection and possible
confusion in dealing with requests
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
The most appropriate place to make the policy available to all
members of staff would appear to be the intranet.

Implementation
Date
March 2009

DATA PROTECTION ENQUIRIES
5. Data Protection Enquiries Procedure
Recommendation
a. A documented
procedure showing a
step
by
step
approach
to
management
of
enquiries should be in
place.
b. A single data
request
register,
should
be
implemented
for
recording information

Rationale
Best Practice
A documented procedure detailing how
to process enquiries should be in place
to guide staff. A data request register
should be in place to record the inflow
and outflow of requests
Findings
There is no documented procedure for
the management of enquiries detailing
the way in which enquiries should be
managed, recorded and monitored.

Page 66

(Medium)
Responsibility
Head of Legal
Services.

the inflow and out
flow
of
enquiries
(either hard copy or
electronically) for the
Council

There is no register to record both the
inflow and outflow of enquiries. Records
of access and disclosures are not kept.

Risk
If there is no Data Protection Policy in
governing
data
enquiry
c. All requests should place
pass through the data management, It is not possible to
protection officer to monitor both inflow and out flow of
enable monitoring of requests and how they are processed
the accuracy and and managed. This could result in the
not
Fulfilling
their
correctness of the Council
responsibilities,
adequately
in
disclosures.
accordance with the Data protection Act
1998
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle

Implementation
Date
December 2008

The role of the Data Protection Officer is considered to be one
of developing corporate policy. There is clearly a need for
support from officers who are acquainted with data protection in
general and depending on the workload; an additional resource
will need to be identified.
PROCESSING OF REQUESTS FOR DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL DATA
6. Disclosure of Personal Data
Recommendation
Each service area
should
have
a
designated officer for
dealing with request
for disclosure and this
officer should pass all
requests through the
Data
Protection
Officer.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
An officer designated for disclosure
should be in place in each service area.
This officer should liaise and seek
advice from the Council’s data
protection officer on any issues that may
arise. This officer should also update the
Council’s data protection officer in
relation to received requests.
Findings
Two service areas were consulted (HR
and Revenues & Benefits) and both
confirm that there is no officer
designated within their service area to
manage data protection issues and
report them to the Council’s Data
Protection Officer
Risk
Staff may not know who to contact and
what to do with request for data, which

Page 67

Responsibility
Head of Legal
Services.
Head
Organisational
Change

of

could lead to delays in responding to a
request or uncoordinated approach and
Council not fulfilling its obligations in
accordance with the Data Protection Act
1998
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
This will be raised with the Data Protection Group.

Page 68

Implementation
Date
October 2008

CONCESSIONARY FARES 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 6th May 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•
•

To ensure that Agreements are in place for all bus operators the
Council makes payment to;
To ensure that claims are received from the bus operators in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement;
To ensure that invoices received from the bus operators are supported
by documentary evidence of journeys made and reimbursement due;
To ensure that payments made reconcile to the invoices;
To ensure that all claim/ticket enquiries are raised with the appropriate
bus operator, and are investigated and dealt with appropriately.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council has a statutory duty under the Transport Act 2000 and the
Transport Act 1985 to operate a Concessionary Fares Scheme to residents of
the District aged 60 years and over and disabled residents. The statutory
minimum requirements applicable to all registered local bus services offered
free travel within the boundaries of the District at all times on Saturday,
Sunday and bank holidays and between 9.30 and 11 pm on all other days.
The Regulation also provided further enhancements to the scheme which can
extend free travel beyond the District.

2.2

The Vale of White Horse District Council’s scheme offers free travel on all
services which start, finish and run entirely within the District, including single
and return services to Oxford, Swindon, Didcot, Witney and Newbury.
Journeys on the Park and Ride within the boundary of Oxford city were not
included from 15 October 2007. The scheme has subsequently been
amended at 1st April 2008 to the national bus pass scheme meaning anyone
over 60 or eligible disabled will enjoy free off-peak travel on local buses
anywhere in England. The Council has chosen to change the start time from
the discretionary 9.00am to the statutory 9.30am as travel prior to 9.30am has
to be funded from Council Tax income. Due to budget restraints the Council
has decided it cannot afford to continue with an earlier start time. In addition
the Council offers free travel to companion where needed as identified on the
Assisted Travel Pass.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Concessionary Fares was last subject to an internal audit review in October
2002, at that time a Bus Token Scheme was in operations which has since
been withdrawn. Due to the significant changes in legislation governing
Assisted Travel Schemes and its application to the Council’s Concessionary
Fares scheme Internal Audit has not followed up any previous
recommendations made.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE

Page 69

4.1

Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal
control although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence
that the level of non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at
risk.

4.2

Six recommendations have been raised in this review. Two Medium and
Four Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Bus Operator Agreements

5.2

Internal Audit can confirm that the agreements for the Bus Companies have
been reviewed and subsequently amended to reflect changes in legislation. It
is anticipated that agreements are to be subject to an annual review process
to ensure they are kept up to date. Agreements were found for four
Commercial Bus Operators who provide services under the Councils Assisted
Travel Scheme. Seven agreements remain outstanding. Agreements for the
Community Buses are in the process of review and will be brought in line with
the agreements applicable to the Commercial Bus Companies.

5.3

Internal Audit acknowledges that the Council does not have an explicit policy
regarding the Assisted Travel Scheme but feels that the Agreement is
sufficiently comprehensive to cover all areas of the Concessionary Fares
scheme. However Internal Audit did note that the job description for the
officers with responsibility for the administration of the concessionary fares
scheme are inconsistent and therefore has recommended that the job
description are reviewed and amended to reflect these duties. Two
recommendations have been made as a result of the work undertaken in this
area.

5.4

Bus Operator Claims

5.5

Internal Audit can confirm that the Bus Operators claims are formulated where
possible, in accordance with the format specified in the Concessionary Fares
agreement. Furthermore Internal Audit acknowledges that claims are issued
by the bus operators promptly and processed by the Council in a timely
manner. However Internal Audit did note that there are currently no written
procedures governing this area of work which could assist in training all
Revenues and Benefits Client Officers to undertake duties in relation to the
Concessionary Fares Scheme and therefore improve resilience relating to this
aspect of service delivery.

5.6

Internal Audit has also noted that no follow up action has taken place to
ensure the Council is in receipt of the certificate of accuracy from the Bus
Operators and therefore would suggest the Revenues and Benefits Client
team should introduce of a checklist to record the receipt of this information
and/or to serve as a prompt if the certificates are not received within a
prescribed timetable. Internal Audit has made two recommendations as a
result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.7

Bus Operators Invoices

Page 70

5.8

Internal Audit can confirm that adequate arrangements are in place to capture
the documentary evidence of journeys made from the Bus Operators,
however only a small number of Bus Operators are able to comply with this
requirement to supply details of journeys to support their claims. Internal
Audit would advocate that periodically a standard letter is sent to the Bus
Operators to determine whether their situations have change sufficiently to
enable them to provide the Council with the necessary details of journey
made to support their claims. The Revenues and Benefits Client Officer is
carrying out the necessary checks to the claims to alert her to any
discrepancies which require correction. Internal Audit has made one
recommendation as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.9

Reconciliation

5.10

Internal Audit noted that a thorough validation process for claims/invoices
occurs before payment are authorised and this is considered adequate for the
purpose. Furthermore a monthly reconciliation of the budget attached to the
Assisted Travel Scheme is undertaken by the Revenues and Benefits Client
Manager in which expenditure is reviewed against the budget provision to
alert officers to errors in budget allocation and/or significant overspends
against budget which is in turn reported to management. Therefore no
recommendations have been made as a result of the work undertaken in this
area.

5.11

Claims/Ticket Enquiries

5.12

Internal Audit noted a two tiered approach to dealing with issues arising for
the Assisted Travel Scheme, claims and ticket enquiries are dealt with by the
Revenues and Benefits Client team with comments and complaints
correspondence being directed to the Strategic Director for response.
Internal Audit noted that all correspondences and queries relating to the
Assisted Travel Scheme are investigated and dealt with in a timely manner.

5.13

A significant increase in correspondence was generated arising from
modification of the Assisted Travel Scheme in October 2007 all of which have
been satisfactorily resolved. A performance assessment of the Assisted
Travel Scheme will be reported to Members for 2007/08 in June/July 2008, it
is anticipated that this will become part of the annual report timetable for
Assisted Travel together with a review of the cost of providing the scheme.
Internal Audit considers the arrangements relating to resolving claims and
ticket enquiries to be satisfactory and therefore has not made any
recommendation as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.14

Proactive Anti-fraud and Corruption Arrangements
Internal Audit found it difficult to gather evidence to confirm that Management
have adequate arrangements in place to proactively identify fraud and
corruption within their business area including an up to date risk register.
Therefore Internal Audit has made one recommendation as a result of the
work undertaken in this area.

Page 71

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
BUS OPERATOR AGREEMENTS
1. Bus Operator Agreements
Recommendation
That
the
Concessionary Fare
Deed of Agreement
should be obtained
for all Commercial
Bus Operators to
ensure the service is
conducted within the
terms of a current
agreement.
Furthermore
the
Community
Bus
agreements
should
be consistent with
those
of
the
Commercial
Bus
operators.

(Medium)

Rationale
Responsibility
Senior Revenues
Best Practice
That all bus companies have a current and
Benefits
agreement which assists with ensuring Client Officer
the assisted travel scheme is operated
within the specified terms of the
agreement.
Findings
Internal Audit confirmed with the
Revenues and Benefit Client team that
only 4 agreements have been signed by
the Bus Operators with a remaining 6
agreements outstanding.

Risk
Failure to ensure that the appropriate
agreements are in place could result in
the Bus Companies not being aware of
the parameters of the Council’s Assisted
Travel Scheme.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
31 May 2008
2. Job Descriptions

(Low)

Recommendation
The job descriptions
of the Senior
Revenues and
Benefits Client officer
and the Revenues
and Benefits Client
officers should be
reviewed to reflect
their responsibility for
the Assisted Travel
scheme.

Rationale
Responsibility
Best Practice
Revenues
and
That the job description for all officers
Benefits
Client
with responsibility for the Assisted Travel Manager /
Scheme is clearly stated to ensure
Senior Revenues
officers have clarity with regards to their
and
Benefits
duties.
Client Officer
Findings
Internal Audit reviewed copies of the job
descriptions of the Senior Revenues and
Benefits Client Officer and the Revenues
and Benefits Client Officer and noted that
only the Revenues and Benefits Client
Manager has a stated responsibility for
the Assisted Travel Scheme within his
job description.
Risk
Failure to ensure officers have the

Page 72

appropriate and correct job description
could result in officers not being fully
conversant in their responsibilities.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
31 May 2008
BUS OPERATOR CLAIMS
3. Procedures
Recommendation
That
procedure
should be written to
cover all aspects of
work connected with
the Assisted travel
scheme, including the
task of validating
claims from the Bus
Operators.
This
would
ensure
resilience
in
processing of claims
and could assist in
ensuring that claims
are processed in a
timely manner.

(Low)
Rationale
Best Practice
That procedures are available to staff to
assist with all duties connected with the
Assisted Travel Scheme, furthermore
procedures could be used for training
purposes, improve resilience in service
delivery and ensure claims can be
processed in a timely manner.

Responsibility
Revenues
and
Benefits
Client
Officer

Findings
Internal Audit confirmed that there are
no written procedures relating to the
process of checking and validating the
payments of claims from the Bus
Operators.

Risk
Failure to ensure adequate procedure
are available to staff could result in
payments being made which are not
processed in accordance with the stated
terms of the agreement.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
1 September 2008
4. Certificate of Accuracy
Recommendation
That the Revenues
and Benefits Client
team should devise a
checklist to track the
return of the annual
certificates of
accuracy from the
Bus Operators, non
receipt of the
certificates should
prompt follow up
action to ensure the
certificates are
captured in a timely

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice:
That the Revenues and Benefits Client
team have a process in place to track
the return of the annual certificates of
accuracy in a timely manner.
Findings:
Internal Audit selected a sample of 10
bus operators to confirm that the annual
certificate of accuracy had been
presented to the Council for 2006/07.
Internal Audit noted that four certificates
had been supplied according to the
terms and conditions of the contract

Page 73

Responsibility
Revenues
and
Benefits
Client
Officer

manner.

agreement. Furthermore the Revenue
and Benefits Client Officer had no
procedure for dealing with any follow up
actions arising and no chasing of the
outstanding certificates had been
carried out.

Risk:
There is no documentary evidence to
support Council expenditure which
could result in unauthorised payments
being paid.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
Implemented
BUS OPERATORS INVOICES
5. Bus Operators Invoices
Recommendation
That a standard letter
should be devised
and issued to the Bus
Operators
encouraging them to
provide details of
journeys in support of
their Concessionary
Fares claim.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice:
That each claim/invoice is supported by
accurate data to support all Council
expenditure.

Responsibility
Senior Revenues
and Benefits Client
Officer

Findings:
Not all the Bus Operators are able to
provide details of journeys. A standard
letter should be devised and issued to
the Bus Operators encouraging them to
provide these details.

Risk:
Failure to ensure invoices are supported
by accurate data could result in an
invoice not being classified as bona fide
and the Council incurring expenditure
which has not been validated.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
1 September 2008
ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION ARRANGEMENTS
6. Anti Fraud and Corruptions Arrangements
Recommendation
That Management
should ensure that
adequate
arrangements are in
place to proactively
identify fraud and
corruption within their

Rationale
Best Practice:
An annual review of the internal control
arrangements should be undertaken to
identify the key risk areas. This could
assist with identifying any evidence of
fraud and corruption within their
business area, to minimise it to a

Page 74

(Medium)
Responsibility
Revenues
and
Benefits
Client
Manager

business area
including an up to
date risk register.

tolerable level.
Findings:
Due to other priorities management has
not been able to undertake an annual
review
of
the
internal
control
arrangements within their business area
to ensure they are operating effectively
and as expected and the risk of fraud is
minimised to a tolerable level.

Risk
Fraud and corruption is not identified
leading
to
significant
financial,
operational, legal and reputational
implications.
Management Response
Implementation Date
Recommendation is Agreed
1 December 2008

Page 75

LAND AND PROPERTY 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 5th June 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•

•

•
•
•

To ensure that the Council has a Corporate Strategy and Asset
Management Plan in place.
To ensure that Council Policies include objectives focusing on the
acquisition, use, rental, maintenance and disposal of land and property
assets.
To ensure that re-valuation and depreciation are accurately and
completely reflected in financial accounting policies and financial
statements.
To ensure that the data concerning the Council’s Land and Property is
complete, accurate and secure.
To ensure that Land and Property budgets are set and adequately
monitored.
To ensure that licenses, leases and agreements involving the Council’s
land and property transactions are fit for purpose, competitive, valid,
accurate and reviewed periodically.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council has a statutory duty under Section 123 of the Local Government
Act of 1972 not to ‘dispose of land…. for a consideration less than the best
that can reasonably be obtained’. This duty ensures that officers rigorously
achieve commercially satisfactory terms of sale/rent and the documents of
sale/lease are fit for purpose.

2.2

At the time of the audit, the staff dealing with Land and Property in Legal
Services currently had one staff vacancy filled by temporary cover and the
post has been difficult to fill.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Land and Property Audit was last subject to an internal audit review in July
2004 and eleven [11] Recommendations were raised. However, the report
was never finalised and no opinion was issued.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Limited Assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2

Five recommendations have been raised in this review. One High and Four
Medium.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

Page 76

5.1

Corporate Strategy and Asset Management Plan

5.2

Internal Audit confirmed that both the Corporate Strategy and Asset
Management Plan are clear and comprehensive. It includes the roles of the
Chief Property Officer, Planning and Consultation, Data Management,
Planned Maintenance, Programme Development, Performance Monitoring &
Measurement. Both documents are up to date and accessible to all staff. No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.3

Policies Procedures and Objectives

5.4

The Council has adequate working procedures in place. In addition, an Asset
Management Group is in place, serving as a steering group for the effective
administration of the Council’s land and property holdings.
No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.5

Adequacy and Accuracy of Revaluation and Depreciation

5.6

Adequate arrangements are in place for the revaluation and calculation of
depreciation of the Council’s assets. Depreciation is currently calculated
when due on a spreadsheet implemented by the Head of Asset Management.
A revaluation programme is in place stating the frequency at which assets
should be re-valued. However, it was noted that the IDOX-Uniform estates
module procured to ensure accurate and efficient calculation of both
depreciation and revaluation is not being utilised. One recommendation has
been made as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.7

Property Database

5.8

Internal Audit noted that some work remains outstanding to validate the data
which is already recorded on Uniform and to transfer data from paper
documentation onto the database. Therefore, the database is not currently
complete and it cannot be confirmed that it is accurate. A database
procedure has not yet been drafted. Three recommendations have been
made as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.9

Budget Monitoring

5.10

There is currently a documented property income forecast in place and an
expenditure / expenses budget approved annually and monitored by the
Principal Accountant. Reports include variance analysis and the budgets
appear to be set and adequately monitored. No recommendations have been
made as a result of the work undertaken in this area.

5.11

Licenses, Leases and Agreements

5.12

Internal Audit confirmed that licences, leases & agreements are fit for
purpose, valid, accurate, reviewed periodically and renewed appropriately. All
documents are held securely with restricted access.

5.13

It was noted that one of the goals of the Land Registration Act 2003 was to
pave the way for a system of conveyancing that is wholly electronic and
therefore entirely registered. The government through the auspices of the

Page 77

Land Registry are recommending to all large land owners to pursue a policy
of registering all outstanding unregistered land. The Council are yet to
complete this process fully. One recommendation has been made as a result
of the work undertaken in this area.
OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
ADEQUACY AND ACCURACY OF DEPERICIATION AND REVALUATION
1. IDOX-Uniforms Estates Module
Recommendation
a. The Head of Asset
Management should
implement usage of
the
IDOX-Uniform
estates module for
the calculation of
depreciation
and
valuation
of
the
Council’s land and
property.

Rationale
Best Practice
A Fixed Asset Register should be in
place,
preferably
electronic
software, that is able to update
accurately records on revaluation
and calculate depreciation as and
when due.

Findings
The software is in place but is not
currently
being
utilised.
b. The IDOX-Uniform Depreciation is computed with the
estates
module aid of a spreadsheet.
project group should
draft
an Risk
If an uncoordinated & inconsistent
implementation
timetable indicating a valuation and depreciation system
is in place it may make the
completion date.
information in the Councils’ financial
report unreliable.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

(Medium)
Responsibility
a. Head
of
Asset
Management
b.
Property
Manager

Data

Implementation Date
End of September
2008

LAND AND PROPERTY DATABASE
2. Database Procedure
Recommendation
A
comprehensive
written procedure for
the
IDOX-Uniform
estates
module
should be drafted.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
A database procedure should be in
place to assist users in updating the
database.
Findings
There is currently no database
policy or procedure in place.
Risk
The Land and Property database
could be inaccurate which may lead

Page 78

Responsibility
Head
of
Property
Services / Head of
Legal
Services
/
Property
Data
Manager

to inadequate information and make
the Council’s database information
an unreliable.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
This will involve Legal Services and Property Services.
3. Training
Recommendation
a.
A
training
workshop should be
arranged for all users
of the IDOX-Uniform
estate module to
improve efficiency.

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
A
comprehensive
training
programme should be in place to
ensure that members of staff are
efficient in using such important
software.

b A training plan Findings
should
be Only the System Supervisor has
implemented
to been trained on the software 3
update
users years ago. Other users are yet to
knowledge
be trained.
periodically.
Risk
Members of staff are not aware of
their responsibilities which may lead
to inefficiency and an unreliable
database.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

4. Database Information
Recommendation
Work
should
be
completed to validate
all the data currently
held on the database
and
transfer
the
outstanding
paper
documentation onto
the database.

Implementation Date
End of September
2008

Responsibility
Business
Analyst
(Projects Office)

Implementation Date
End of September
2008
(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
The database should be adequately
maintained, accurate and complete.

Responsibility
Property
Manager

Data

Findings
There is currently work which needs
completing in order to ensure the
database is complete and accurate.

Risk
The Land and Property database
could be inaccurate which may lead
to inadequate information and make
the Council’s database information
an unreliable.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Page 79

Implementation Date
End of October 2008

LICENCES, LEASES AND AGREEMENTS
5. Land Registration
Recommendation
All
Council’s
unregistered
land
should be voluntarily
registered with HM
Land
Registry
to
protect the Council’s
best interest, and
then
uniquely
identified
on
the
database.

(High)
Rationale
Best Practice
All Council owned land and property
should be appropriately registered.

Responsibility
Head
of
Legal
Services

Findings
Some of the Council’s land remains
unregistered.

Risk
If the Council’s Land and Property
remains unregistered this could lead
to loss of ownership.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
The implementation date may need to be reviewed at the
time of follow-up.

Page 80

Implementation Date
Provisionally end of
December 2008

ICT 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 7th May 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•
•

To ensure that policies and procedures are in place to guide the use of
all IT related systems.
To ensure that there are adequate access and security measures in
place to control the inward and outward flow of network data.
To ensure that the Council has the necessary software licenses in
place.
To ensure that user management processes are operating effectively.
To ensure that internet and e-mail usage is appropriately controlled.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

IT and IT Support are managed by Organisational Change’s ICT Operations
Team. All PC’s, servers and Network Support are managed by this team,
with Web Applications having moved to the Communications Team in
November 2006.

2.2

This team has a wide remit within the Council and since most projects have at
least an element of electronic requirement, they tend to have some role with
most of the Council’s targets.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

ICT was last subject to an internal audit review in September and October
2005. This particular review concentrated upon the ICT Security Plan and
was completed in conjunction with the Head of Organisational Change. Due
to the specific nature of this review and the time and changes that have since
occurred, it was considered to be of limited use in relation the current audit
review and its findings have been ignored.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal
control although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence
that the level of non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at
risk.

4.2

Eleven recommendations have been raised in this review, four medium and
seven Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Policies And Procedures

5.2

Internal Audit were shown the repository of internal procedures and a sample
of ten were selected for review. All appeared comprehensive, concise with
version number and dates clearly shown. The procedures and general

Page 81

guidance available to all officers on the Intranet were also examined and all
appeared in order. No recommendations have been made as a result of our
work in this area.
5.3

Access And Security

5.4

The Council has an Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) through which the
power supply to the servers is constantly channelled. Fluctuations in the
power are evened out by the UPS and several short term breaks in supply
have been successfully reported by the UPS since its installation in early
2007. The unit has been tested in conjunction with the power outages
undertaken by Facilities Management. No recommendations have been
made as a result of our work in this area.

5.5

Application administration is considered to be a user function and wherever
possible, administration of such applications is not handled by ICT. We were
concerned that the working procedures, log-ons etc may not be available in
the event of staff not being available. We therefore consider it prudent for
ICT to request that they are provided with copies of working procedures for all
such systems. One recommendation has been made as a result of our work
in this area.

5.6

Software Licenses

5.7

It was ascertained during the audit review that work is currently ongoing to
compare the software data captured by Spiceworks to that captured by
Phoenix during their review. Whilst we acknowledge that management are
aware of the requirement, it is considered that an up to date and accurate
software register should be available to ensure the Council has an
appropriate number of licenses for the software in use. One recommendation
has been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.8

Management Processes

5.9

The Spiceworks software program provides a register for software and there
is an asset database for high value items such as PDA’s. A review of the
schedule revealed that only a small number if items had been allocated an
asset tag number and in addition the badge number has not been entered
onto the asset database. This results in difficulties in identifying the location
of the equipment and if it is missing. One recommendation has been made
as a result of our work in this area.

5.10

Users should only be granted the minimum necessary access privileges to
allow them to undertake their role effectively. However, testing identified
instances where the access privileges have been set too high for the officer in
question and they need to be reviewed and amended. One recommendation
has been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.11

Internal Audit was informed that there is no timetable for checking for
redundant users on the network, rather is undertaken on an ad-hoc basis.
HR is aware of the need to notify ICT of all joiners and leavers. As a back up,
all service areas aware of the need to notify ICT of all new members of staff
prior to their commencement and equally before they leave.

Page 82

We consider that ICT should request a regular report from HR detailing
leavers and that this report should be routinely checked against access on
the network. One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in
this area.
5.12

Internal Audit was informed that there is a facility on the network named
‘Active Directory’ which can create a log of all changes made to the network.
However, this facility is not currently set to record any changes and therefore
an audit trail is not available thereby making it more difficult to ‘roll-back’
changes. In addition, because no trail exists, we could not undertake any
testing relating to changes made on the network. One recommendation has
been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.13

A review of the procedure for ‘Co-op Daily Cash Download’ revealed that this
particular procedure note was dated 26/3/03 and contained references to an
ex-employee as being the ICT Team Leader. This requires updating. One
recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.14

Internal Audit examined a Spiceworks report identifying unrecognised
software on PC’s. The report was discussed with the ICT Support Team
Leader who stated that the report was useful for identifying potentially
unauthorised software installations. The report is now being looked at in
greater detail by the ICT Team. We advocate this report being regularly run
and reviewed and in addition, employees should be reminded of the Internet
and email policies regarding downloading and/or installing software.

5.15

Internet And Email Usage

5.16

A log of internet usage was provided to Internal Audit. Due to the number of
‘pop-ups’ listed, but not necessarily requested by the user, it was not possible
to gain an opinion as to the appropriateness of the sites. It was ascertained
that the Council does not approve regular or systematic monitoring of internet
activity, which would provide management with an assurance that the usage
is appropriate, as this could be deemed in contravention of the Human Rights
Act. One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this
area.

5.17

As with Internet usage, email usage is not monitored. Reports can be
provided to a manger if they have concerns but this is clearly reactive rather
than pro-active. One recommendation has been made as a result of our work
in this area.

5.18

An automatic disclaimer is appended to the end of all outgoing emails,
however, Internal Audit noticed some spelling errors which may cause
embarrassment to the council. One recommendation has been made as a
result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
ACCESS AND SECURITY
1. Backup of Procedures

(Low)

Page 83

Recommendation
Where
officers
outside of the ICT
team manage the day
to
day
system
administration
of
systems, ICT request
that they are provided
with copies of up to
date
procedure
manuals for said
systems in the event
of
the
systems
requiring to be rebuilt
and managed by
different officers.

Rationale
Best Practice
Where systems are managed by
officers outside the ICT Team, it should
be ensured that ICT have in their
possession all relevant procedures to
run the system in the event of a
disaster.

Responsibility
Head
of
Organisational
Change

Findings
ICT do not have copies of procedures
for systems that they do not manage.

Risk
Without having full back up procedures
available, in the event of an emergency
the expertise/documentation may not be
available to run the system.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Implementation
Date
Request sent to
SMT 2 May 2008

SOFTWARE LICENSES
2. Reconciliation of Licenses
Recommendation
The ongoing work to
compare the software
data captured by
Spiceworks to that
captured by Phoenix
during their review is
finalised so that it can
be confirmed that
the Council has an
appropriate number
of licences for all
software in use.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
The Council should always be able to
provide evidence that is has sufficient
licenses for its software installations.
Findings
The data collected by Spiceworks
comparing software installations to
licenses has not been reconciled to the
data captured by Phoenix

Risk
The Council may not have sufficient
licenses and would be guilty of software
theft.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
3. Checking of PC’s
Recommendation
Each PC should be
checked to ensure
that the correct user

Responsibility
ICT Support Team
Leader

Implementation
Date
By end May 2008
(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
It should not be possible for end users
to install any software onto their desktop

Page 84

Responsibility
ICT Support Team
Leader to lead in
rolling out new

setting is in place to PC’s.
prevent any end user
installations.
Findings
Internal Audit identified instances where
software has been installed onto various
PC’s throughout the network
Risk
Without controls in place to prevent end
user
installations,
illegal
and/or
malicious software may be installed
onto desktop PC’s.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

PCs and removing
existing
Administrator
permissions.

Implementation
Date
End June 2008

MANAGEMENT PROCESSES
4. Appropriate Access
Recommendation
The account held by
the the Property Data
Manager should be
reviewed to ensure
that
the
access
granted is appropriate
to their role.

(Low)
Rationale
Best Practice
Users should only be granted the
minimum necessary access privileges
to allow them to undertake their role
effectively.
Findings
Instances were identified where it is
likely that the access privileges of users
is inappropriate.

Risk
If a user has inappropriate access
privileges, they may be able to both see
data that is inappropriate and also
undertake actions that are inappropriate
or even harmful to the network.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
5. Starters and Leavers
Recommendation
The ICT team request
a regular report from
HR
detailing
the
starters and leavers
and this report be
routinely
checked
against the access on

Responsibility
ICT Support Team
Leader

Implementation
Date
By end May 2008
(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
The ICT Team should be informed by
HR of all users who are required or no
longer require a network presence.
Findings
There is no regular review of starters

Page 85

Responsibility
Head
of
Organisational
Change

the network

and leavers to the network.

Risk
Without regular review, there is a risk
that a leaver may remain on the network
and without their access being disabled,
make unauthorised access to the
network more viable.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
It is the view of ICT that as HR are aware if the need to inform
ICT of starters and leavers, they should be requested to provide
daily a reports of any starters and leavers.
There is an identified risk that HR are not notified of the
employment of temporary staff. A possible solution is that the
New User Form also identify the dates for temporary staff.
6. Audit Trail of Network Changes
Recommendation
The ‘Active Directory
Changes’ facility on
the system should be
utilised to provide an
audit trail of the
changes made to the
network. In addition,
the audit trail report
should be periodically
reviewed to ensure
the changes have
been
made
in
accordance
with
starter forms and
other
associated
documents.

Rationale
Best Practice
All changes to the network should be
tracked for future reference in case of a
problem occurring that requires a
previous change to be rolled back.

Implementation
Date
HR requested to
provide daily
starters and
leavers list 2 May
2008. New user
form updated and
personnel notified.

(Medium)
Responsibility
ICT Support Team
Leader

Findings
There is no audit trail of changes made
to the network.

Risk
Without a record of changes made to
the network, if a previous change is
required to be rolled back, it will need to
be established what work was
previously undertaken and there is a
risk that this may be done incorrectly.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
Setting the audit trail function produces an inordinate amount of
data which cannot be left to accumulate in Active Directory and
includes mostly data that is not relevant to the requirement. This
data has to be manually pulled off daily and stored elsewhere.
This is resource and storage intensive
7. Co-op Daily Cash Download

Implementation
Date
End September
2008

(Low)

Recommendation
Rationale
The procedure for Best Practice

Page 86

Responsibility
ICT
Operations,

‘Co-op Daily Cash –
Download’
is
reviewed
and
updated to reflect the
current officers in
post.

All procedures should be accurate and
up to date. All references to officers
should be current.

Organisational
Change via ICT
Support
Team
Leader

Findings
The procedure for ‘Co-op Daily Cash –
Download’ is out of date and refers to
an officer who is no longer employed by
the Council.

Risk
Officers may inadvertently use incorrect
information resulting is errors and
potential embarrassment to the Council.
Management Response

Implementation
Date
May 2008

Recommendation is Agreed
8. Identification of Downloaded Software
Recommendation
Rationale
The
Spiceworks Best Practice
downloaded software The network should regularly be
report is generated scanned to ensure that inappropriate
and
reviewed software has not been installed by end
regularly to ensure users.
that all downloaded
software is identified Findings
and
dealt
with A report was requested by IA that
accordingly.
In showed that software had been
addition, employees inappropriately installed by an end user.
should be reminded
of the Internet and E- Risk
adequate
monitoring
of
mail Policy regarding Without
installed,
illegal
and/or
the downloading or software
installation
of malicious software may be installed by
software and the end users.
consequences
of
failing to adhere to
the policy.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

(Medium)
Responsibility
Head
of
Organisational
Change

Implementation
Date
May 2008

INTERNET AND EMAIL USAGE
9. Monitoring of Internet Usage
Recommendation
Internet usage should
be
monitored
regularly to ensure

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
By
monitoring
internet
usage,
management are aware of excessive

Page 87

Responsibility
N/A

that internet access is
not being misused
and
to
provide
management with an
assurance
that
appropriate
monitoring
is
undertaken.

use of the internet and also
inappropriate usage by end users.
Findings
Internal Audit testing revealed that
regular monitoring of internet usage is
not undertaken.

Risk
By not monitoring internet usage,
management may not be aware of
excessive use of the internet and also
inappropriate usage by end users.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed
This will require a submission to the SMG and the relevant
committee. The advice from me would be that this is ‘dodgy
ground’. The Human Rights Act has yet to provide official
guidance on this (due in 2009 and then only related to
terrorism). In the meantime the voluntary code is likely to lean
towards the users’ rights to privacy.
10. Review of Email Usage
Recommendation
Consideration should
be given to regularly
reviewing
email
usage to ensure that
usage
is
both
appropriate and not
excessive.

Implementation
Date
N/A

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
By
monitoring
email
usage,
management are aware of excessive or
inappropriate use by end users.

Responsibility
N/A

Findings
Internal Audit testing revealed that
regular monitoring of email usage is not
undertaken.

Risk
By not monitoring email usage,
management may not be aware of
excessive or inappropriate use by end
users.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed
This will require a submission to the SMG and the relevant
committee
(see previous recommendation).
11. Email Disclaimer

Implementation
Date
N/A

(Low)

Recommendation
Rationale
The email disclaimer Best Practice
is reviewed and the All external emails should include a

Page 88

Responsibility
ICT Support Team
Leader

spelling errors within disclaimer stating that the views
the disclaimer are expressed are those of the individual
amended.
and not those of the organisation.
Findings
Internal audit testing revealed spelling
mistakes within the standard email
disclaimer
Risk
Spelling mistakes within a corporate
disclaimer appear amateurish and
subsequently embarrassing to the
council.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
Clarification is sought of the spelling errors in the disclaimer

Page 89

Implementation
Date
End May 2008

COMMUNITY GRANTS 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 27th May 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

Adequate documentation and working papers exist to substantiate
each application.
Up to date internal procedure notes exists for the grant awarding
process and function.
Adequate checking is undertaken on each grant application to ensure
that any amount awarded is in accordance with the Council's approved
guidelines and criteria.
All awards of grants above the approved limits are approved by
Committee following evaluation by the appropriate officer.
Payments are in accordance with approved procedures.
All monitoring information produced is accurate, timely and appropriate.
Adequate information and guidance is provided and is available to
members of the general public.
Adequate segregation of duties exists.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council has a criteria, policy and conditions for the awarding of
Community Grants. These operate in compliance with Sections 145 and 137
of the Local Government Act 1972.

2.2

The previous audit concluded that administration of the Community Grants
processes and procedures was well documented and maintained, and
working well within the current framework. However, concerns were raised
regarding the way in which the various Area Committees were interpreting the
criteria for the awarding of Grants. These concerns appear to have been
overcome and are now operating satisfactorily.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Community Grants was last subject to an internal audit review in 2002/2003.
The final report was issued in January 2003 and contained five
recommendations. These were all agreed with an implementation date.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Full Assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to
meet the system objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.

4.2

No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this review.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Previous Audit Recommendations

Page 90

5.2

Five (5) recommendations were made following the previous audit. All
recommendations were agreed with a stated implementation date. The
agreed actions to the recommendations were reviewed and discussed with
the Community Strategy Officer where it was stated and recognised by
Internal Audit that actions had either been implemented, or due to the time
lapse since the last audit were no longer of relevance. No recommendations
have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.3

Grant Scheme Documentation

5.4

The administration of the Community Grants process and procedure is well
documented and maintained. The Community Grants procedure is working
well within the current framework. The Community Strategy Officer carries out
periodic marketing of the Community Grants with comprehensive information
contained on the council’s web-site providing information of the Grant
scheme, guidance notes and application form.

5.5

A copy of the current Community Strategy 2004/2008 was obtained from the
Community Strategy Officer. Review of this documentation established that
the Council has developed a Vale Strategic Partnership with other
organisations including public, private and voluntary services within the
district. The aims of the partnership are to maximise resources, avoid
duplication of effort, achieve common goals and achieve economies of scale.
This is good practice. No recommendations have been made as a result of
our work in this area.

5.6

Policies and Procedures

5.7

Internal Audit sought to establish that the grant applications were checked in
accordance with the Council’s approved guidelines and criteria. In all
instances tested, the forms were correctly completed and all the relevant
supporting documentation was present in the files. In addition, all grants
awarded met the criteria as detailed in the ‘Community Grants Scheme and
Guidance Notes’.

5.8

Internal Audit also sought to establish whether adequate and up to date
procedures existed. Documentation was provided covering procedures, work
instruction and forms which cover the operation of the service. No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.9

Approved Limits and Evaluations

5.10

Internal Audit sought to establish that the awarding of grants was in
accordance to current legislation and that all awards of grants above
approved limits were approved by committee following appropriate evaluation
at officer level. Testing confirmed that Community Grants are operating in
accordance with current legislation, criteria, guidelines and Council policy.
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.11

Payments

5.12

There was adequate evidence to support the payments from the initial
approval at committee to the grant logs produced by the Community Strategy

Page 91

officer. These could be reconciled to the actual payments made via the
financial information system. No recommendations have been made as a
result of our work in this area.
5.13

Monitoring

5.14

A great deal of monitoring information is produced within the team. The
tracking and monitoring information either received by, or produced by the
community Strategy Officer was reviewed. This could be followed with ease
and appeared comprehensive. No recommendations have been made as a
result of our work in this area.

5.15

Guidance and Information

5.16

Members of the general public can access information and guidance relating
to grants from the Council’s web site. This includes the availability of funding,
tips on making an application and application form templates.
The
Community Strategy Officer also confirmed that marketing of the Community
Grants is undertaken and evidence was provided to support this. No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.17

Segregation of Duties

5.18

It was confirmed to Internal Audit that the day to day administration of the
grants function is undertaken buy the Administration Assistant and the
delegated decisions recommended by the Community Strategy Officer to the
Head of Community Strategy. It is he who authorises them having consulted
the Chair of the appropriate Area Committee or Executive. From the review
of working practices and procedures within the service area and reviewing
the job descriptions, Internal Audit is satisfied that there are adequate
segregation of duties. No recommendations have been made as a result of
our work in this area.

Page 92

AFFORDABLE HOUSING 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 29th May 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•

•

•

•

•

To ensure that Housing Services can evidence the use of information
from complaints and comments of service users or clients to improve,
and update it policies and services provided.
To ensure that Housing Services has robust arrangements in place to
monitor the needs of minority communities and identifying targets to
address any gaps in provision.
To ensure that the Housing Strategy is up to date and includes long
term ambitions of the Council and its partners for the housing market,
and parameters for judging the success of the ambition stated.
To ensure that Housing Services can evidence Value For Money
(VFM) by undertaking ongoing benchmark analysis against the best
performing strategic housing services.
To ensure that the Council has an adequate budget in place to support
the housing strategy of the district.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council has a statutory duty under the Housing Acts 1996 and 2002, to
give priority to applicants who fall within social housing needs and Affordable
Housing.

2.2

At the time of the audit, the Housing Department was working hard to meet
their target as dictated by the provision of the budget and the Housing Acts.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Affordable Housing was last subject to an internal audit review in December
2005. Eight [8] recommendations were raised and a Limited opinion was
issued.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Satisfactory Assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal
control although there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence
that the level of non-compliance may put some minor system objectives at
risk.

4.2

Five [5] recommendations have been raised in this review. 3 Medium and 2
Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Complaints and Comments Procedure

5.2

In the area of complaints, comments, policies and procedures, it was

Page 93

identified that there is a process in place for the collection and evaluation of
complaints and comments from Housing service users. However, this
process is not connected to the improvement of services and updating of
Council’s Policies. Two recommendations have been made as a result of the
work undertaken in this area.
5.3

Monitoring of Needs and Gaps in Provision

5.4

Internal Audit acknowledges that applicants for social housing are assessed
in accordance with the Council’s Allocations Policy, which is framed to comply
with the requirements of the Housing Acts 1996 and 2002. This gives priority
to applicants who fall within the ‘reasonable preference’ categories of housing
need. Furthermore, it was evidenced that independent market research
surveys of residents in housing need are conducted periodically and
information is extracted from the “Housing Register” to enable the Council
identify the needs of the residents and the gaps in provision. No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.5

Housing Strategy

5.6

Internal Audit noted that the Council has a comprehensive Housing Strategy
in place which covers 2006/2007 to 2010/2011. It includes information such
as:
• Provision of 100 new units of affordable housing per annum.
• 36 Additional affordable housing units between 2006/9.
• Private homes occupied by vulnerable persons to reach the decent
home standard.
• 75 properties per annum.
• Achieve the Government target of 50% reduction in numbers of
persons in temporary accommodation by 2010.
The key message of the Regional Housing Strategy is a recognition that the
key priority is to increase the supply of affordable housing.
No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.7

Benchmarking

5.8

Internal Audit confirmed that currently the Council does not have an approved
best performance benchmark. However, VWHDC has joined three different
partnerships in order to collate data for an approved benchmark target. These
partnerships are: Oxfordshire Housing Partnership, Aylesbury Group and
Tunbridge Wells Peer Group District Councils. Three recommendations have
been made as a result of our work undertaken in this area.

5.9

Adequacy of Budget

5.10

Internal Audit acknowledges that there is an approved budget in place. The
budget is independently monitored by an officer in Accountancy. A budget
monitoring report which includes the variance analysis report is produced
periodically and sent to Housing Services for its comments.
No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

Page 94

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
COMPLAINTS AND COMMENTS PROCEDURE
1. Information on Comments and Complaints
Recommendation
A procedure/process
of using information
from complaints and
comments of service
users or clients to
improve, and update
the Council’s policies
and services should
be implemented.

Rationale
Best Practice
A documented procedure of how
complaints and comments from
service users are used to improve
and update the Council’s policies
and services is expected to be in
place.

(Medium)
Responsibility
N/A

Findings
There is a process in place for the
collection
and
evaluation
of
complaints and comments from
service users but this process is not
connected to the improvement of
services and updating of Council’s
Policies.

Risk
The Council does not make use of
complaints and comments of
service users to improve and
update its policies which may make
the Council’s policies obsolete and
not users friendly.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed
The findings of the audit report are based correctly upon the
fact that housing can supply no documentary evidence to
demonstrate that it uses comments and complaints to
improve and update services.
Committee will be aware that each year comments and
complaints are collated across the council and reported to
the executive. Housing use this report to review complaints
and, where appropriate, make necessary adjustments.
The most notable example of service adjustments, fuelled
by comments and complaints, was the decision of Council
to move to a banding housing allocation system in 2004.
Prior to this the points based allocation system operated by
the Council was the target of numerous complaints
concerning its complexity and opacity.
I consider that a better recommendation would be to require
all service areas, as part of the Annual reporting

Page 95

Implementation Date
N/A

mechanism, to not just highlight the comments and
complaints received(as already happens) but to require in
the report to state what adjustments to policies and
procedures, if any have been made as a result, thus
providing the audit trail required.
2. Frequency of Comments and Complaints Report.
Recommendation
The frequency of the
comments
and
complaints
report
should be increased
to
quarterly
for
efficiency
and
effectiveness of the
report.

Rationale
Best Practice
For improvement on efficiency and
effectiveness reports on important
findings should be produced for
management at least quarterly.

(Low)
Responsibility
N/A

Findings
Reports including recommendations
on the comments and complaints of
service users are currently only
produced for the executive annually.

Risk
Reports on users comments and
complaints are not produced for
management periodically, which
could lead to delay in using the
reports to take any necessary
action.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed
If committee accepts the above recommendation it would be
twice yearly as part of the half year and year end reports.

Implementation Date
N/A

BENCHMARKING
3. Benchmark Target
Recommendation
a.
An
approved
Council’s Benchmark/
Target should be
implemented
to
enable the Council to
compare
its
performance
with
best
performing
strategic housing.

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
An
approved
and
documented
benchmark target is expected to be in
place.

Findings
The Council has joined a partnership in
order to collate data for benchmarking.
The members are:
a. Oxfordshire Housing Partnership.
b. Aylesbury Group.
b. The benchmark
c. Tunbridge Wells Peer Group
should
also
be
District Councils.
reviewed
and
updated periodically.

Page 96

Responsibility
N/A

Risk
There is no approved Council’s
benchmark to enable comparison
performance with best performing
housing strategy. This could lead to
service improvements not being made.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
I recognise that a fundamental aspect of identifying VFM across
the housing service is establishing it in the context of other
authorities. This is a recognised weakness across the Council
but one that requires resources that are not available to service
areas.
4. Performance Report
Recommendation
A performance report
comparing actual with
the
benchmark
should be produced
with
recommendations for
improvement.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
Periodic
reports
comparing
the
Council’s
performance
with
the
approved benchmark / target is
expected to be produced.

Responsibility
N/A

Findings
No report has been produced because
there is currently no approved
benchmark/ target.

Risk
The Council’s benchmark/Target is not
updated periodically which may make
the councils policies obsolete and lead
to poor performance.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
As above in recommendation 3.
5. Independent Feedback
Recommendation
The Council should
conduct independent
regular reviews of
feed back to ensure
that their clients are
happy
with
the
accommodation
provided for them.

Implementation
Date
N/A

Implementation
Date
N/A

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
There is expected to be an independent
feed back system from the Councils
service users or client.
Findings
Currently, feedback on the Council’s
performance is only provided from
Council
Partners
(Housing
Associations).

Page 97

Responsibility
Principal Housing
Enabling Officer

Risk
The Council does not seek independent
feedback from their clients which may
lead to service improvements not being
made.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Page 98

Implementation
Date
31st July 2008

NNDR 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 2nd June 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•

•

•

•

•
•
•

To ensure that the recommendations made following the 2006/2007
NNDR audit undertaken at Vale of White Horse District Council have
been implemented.
To ensure that the NNDR system has been promptly updated with
amendments to valuations and that records have been updated to
record new properties and amendments to existing properties.
To ensure that input or amendment of data affecting liability is
supported by documentary evidence and that records are updated
promptly.
To ensure that billing procedures are carried out in accordance with
legislation, bills are raised and despatched promptly and that demand
notices are legitimate and appropriate.
To ensure that there is documentary evidence to support both payment
and refund transactions and also that the transactions are legitimate.
To ensure that write-offs are undertaken in accordance with Council
policy.
To ensure that credit balances are reviewed regularly and appropriate
action is undertaken.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

The Council is a Billing Authority for NNDR (business rates) purposes and is
responsible for working out NNDR bills, giving any reliefs that may be due
and collecting the money. Business rates paid by ratepayers are collected by
the Council and are remitted to the ‘National Pool’, a central account held by
the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) and then
redistributed back to local authorities as part of the local government finance
settlement.

2.3

The Council is required to monitor performance in respect of the percentage
of business rates collected via Best Value Performance Indicator BVP1 010.
For the financial year ended 31 March 2007 the Council collected 98.80% of
business rates against a target of 99.20%, putting it outside the top quartile of
councils for performance, set at 99.36% for 2006/07.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

NNDR was last subject to an internal audit review in November 2006 when
seven (7) recommendations were raised of which three (3) were rejected and
a satisfactory opinion was given.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Limited Assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the

Page 99

internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.
4.2

Seven recommendations have been raised in this review. Six Medium and
One Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Previous Audit Recommendations

5.2

The previous Internal Audit report was issued in January 2007 and seven (7)
recommendations were made of which three (3) were rejected. Internal Audit
considers that the remaining four (4) recommendations made in the 2006/07
audit report have been implemented and no further action is necessary. No
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.3

Valuations and Updating NNDR Records

5.4

A reconciliation of the Rateable Value is undertaken on a weekly basis and a
more detailed reconciliation of account numbers is undertaken on a fourmonthly basis. A review of the weekly reconciliation by Internal Audit
identified a discrepancy between the number of properties on the NNDR
system and the number according to the Valuation Office (VO). In relation to
the four-monthly reconciliation, whilst it is acknowledged that a detailed
reconciliation is being undertaken by Capita, Internal Audit considers that the
process needs to be enhanced to ensure adequate information is available to
support the amendments made / required. Two recommendations have been
made as a result of our work in this area.
Liability

5.5
5.6

Transactions are now scanned and indexed to EDMS on Anite, the Council’s
document imaging system. Additionally, notes are recorded within the
Academy system on ‘Account Notes’. The latter provide an audit trail with the
date, time and user’s initials shown. The award of reliefs are authorised by
the Client team and this is documented on individual account level
documents, scanned to Anite. Academy account notes indicate that
transactions are reported to senior colleagues and Notes within the Anite
system show how transactions are escalated for the appropriate action to be
taken.

5.7

Business ratepayers are provided with an A4 sheet, ‘NNDR explanatory
notes’, enclosed with annual, first or amended bills. This document explains
what NNDR is and provides information about the types of reliefs available.
Internal Audit reviewed the contents of the ‘NNDR explanatory notes’ sheet
and found a number of anomalies and weaknesses, including no reference to
Mandatory relief. The award of such relief carries no cost to the Council as
this relief is paid for by the National Pool. Four recommendations have been
made as a result of our work in this area.

5.8

Billing Procedures

5.9

No testing was undertaken in this area due to the processing of bills being
undertaken at Bromley. It is envisaged that Internal Audit will visit the

Page 100

Bromley site in 2008/2009 to assess the controls in operation.
5.10

Payments and Refunds

5.11

The controls over refunds appear to be working effectively and the Client’s
pre-authorisation checking procedures are rigorous and effective. However,
until the Agresso reconciliation procedures are confirmed as being in place
and operating satisfactorily Internal Audit cannot give assurance about the
NNDR payment controls. One recommendation has been made as a result of
our work in this area, and this area will be reviewed again in 2008/2009.

5.12

Write-Offs

5.13

There is a joint VWHDC/SODC sundry debts write-off procedure which is in
draft format. However, it is focused on sundry debts and makes no reference
to revenues debts, Council Tax and NNDR. It was evidenced that the joint
Client/Capita Revenues meetings report on write-offs for both Council Tax
and NNDR, and the Capita Revenues Manager is currently drafting an NNDR
procedure which will be used for Council tax once agreed.

5.16

There have been no write-offs since Capita took over the financial services
contract. Until the Council and Capita have in place an agreed policy and
procedure for revenues debt write-offs Internal Audit is unable to give
assurance about controls in this area. No recommendations have been made
as a result of our work in this area at this time, but this area will be reviewed
again in 2008/2009.

5.17

Credit Balances

5.18

Credit balances and refunds can be generated for a number of reasons
including:• Rateable Value reductions;
• Ratepayers vacating premises;
• Overpayments
For each account showing a credit balance an application form is issued
asking the ratepayer to indicate whether they want a refund, retain the
balance for a future year or transfer it to another account.

5.19

No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
NNDR VALUATIONS
1. NNDR Reconciliations
Recommendation
As part of the weekly
reconciliation
between
the
Valuation Office and
the NNDR System,

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
The total Rateable Value and the
total number of properties should be
reconciled.

Page 101

Responsibility
N/A

the
number
of Findings
properties
should As part of the review, a discrepancy
also be reconciled.
between the total number of
properties on the NNDR system to
the number of properties as per the
Valuation Office was highlighted.
Risk
Anomalies between the NNDR
system and the Valuation Office
may occur resulting in in-complete /
inaccurate records.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed

Implementation Date
N/A

As part of the daily/weekly balancing it is common for there
to be a discrepancy between the number of properties on
the system and the VOA records. The primary cause for this
is that new assessments are not created until the liable party
has been ascertained. However, precise records of the
amendments awaiting action are maintained at all times and
there is no risk that a property could be missed. The fourmonthly reconciliation balances the rateable value and the
number of properties according to their description
categories.
The reconciliations we undertake on a weekly basis are
described below in terms of the detailed spreadsheets used.
This process is very effective and does not allow for
amendments to be overlooked.
2. NNDR Reconciliations
Recommendation
Supporting evidence
for accounts awaiting
adjustment should be
retained.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Any adjustments requiring action as
part of the reconciliation process
should be supported by evidence.

Responsibility
N/A

Findings
It was confirmed that there is no
evidence to support the accounts
awaiting adjustment as part of the
reconciliation process.
Risk
Records will not be complete and
loss of income could occur if the
adjustments are not actioned or are
actioned incorrectly.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed

Page 102

Implementation Date
N/A

The schedules are downloaded on a weekly basis from the
VOA's secure website. The information is formatted into an
excel spreadsheet which details the property reference, the
value, type of adjustment and a date field. When an
amendment has been completed on the Academy system
this date field is updated and the amendment is recorded as
complete. This spreadsheet is linked to an overall work
count which records the number of items outstanding, which
schedules they appear on and allows for effective SLA
monitoring. The initial spreadsheet provides detailed records
of properties awaiting amendment. The statement that there
is no supporting evidence for accounts awaiting adjustment
is inaccurate.
It is possible to replicate this information retrospectively but
it is a time consuming exercise as each individual
spreadsheet relating to the schedules would need to be
filtered to remove any dates after the date specified. This
would then allow for the items outstanding at any point in
time to be recreated and balanced to the rateable value
outstanding at any given date.
NNDR LIABILITY
3. NNDR Explanatory Notes
Recommendation
NNDR ‘Explanatory
Notes’ leaflet should
be revised, updated
and
re-modelled
along lines similar to
the
‘Council
tax’
leaflet.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
Ratepayers should be provided with an
explanatory leaflet associated with
NNDR income & expenditure similar to
information set out in the Council tax
leaflet.
Findings
Information provided to business
ratepayers at the year-end or with their
first rates demand is not comprehensive
and opportunities are missed to
emphasise the Council’s policy on the
award of different types of relief.
There is no explicit reference to
mandatory relief the award of which
bears no cost to the Council as it is
funded by the national NNDR pool.
Risk
Ratepayers are not made aware of
statutory relief that is available and may
not make their claims in the right
manner or at the right time leading to
additional work by both the Council and

Page 103

Responsibility
N/A

its financial services contractor.
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed

Implementation
Date
N/A

The content of the NNDR explanatory notes is prescribed in
Regulations and the Council has no discretion over their
content.
It is considered that the current double-sided A4 form is
presented sufficiently well and there is no justification for
producing an expensive glossy leaflet.
All ratepayers are also sent the council tax leaflet because it
contains details of the council’s finances which we are required
to send them. To produce this same information in another
leaflet just for NNDR would be an unnecessary duplication.
4. Guidance Notes and Application Forms
Recommendation
The Client should
undertake a thorough
review of all of its
NNDR
guidance
notes and application
forms, and publish
them in a consistent
manner to enable
ratepayers to have a
clear understanding
of what is required for
NNDR purposes and
the implications of
non-compliance.

Rationale
Best Practice
NNDR application forms are published
that comply with legislation and adopt
Plain English standards.

(Medium)
Responsibility
N/A

Findings
Application forms do not comply with
data protection legislation and lack
consistency in format.

Risk
Ratepayers are not aware of what types
of relief that are available and do not
make their claims in the right manner or
at the right time leading to additional
work by both the Council and its
contractor
Management Response
Recommendation is Not Agreed

Implementation
Date
N/A

A recent review of application forms and guidance notes has
already been undertaken.
5. Legal Entity
Recommendation
The Client should
require Capita to
check all accounts
headed ‘Village Hall,
etc.’ and ensure that

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
The correct legal entity should be
included in the Council’s records.
Findings

Page 104

Responsibility
Revenues
Manager

the
correct
legal There are a number of ratepayers with
entity is identified and the
same
name,
‘Village
Hall
recorded.
Management Committee’, which does
not clearly identify the ratepayer nor
give an indication of the legal entity.
Risk
The Council could have difficulty
enforcing a debt where it does not know
the correct legal entity of the ratepayer.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
6. Ratepayer Correspondence
Recommendation
All
outgoing
correspondence
to
ratepayers
from
Capita or the Council
should quote the
relevant
NNDR
account number.

Implementation
Date
30 July 2008
(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
Ratepayers are expected to quote the
relevant
account
number
when
communicating with the Council; the
converse should apply
Findings
Correspondence to ratepayers does not
show the ratepayer’s account number,
notwithstanding the requirement for the
ratepayer always to quote the account
number.

Risk
A ratepayer may have more than one
account and amendments could be
made to the wrong account.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed

Responsibility
Revenues
Manager
(CAPITA)
/
Revenues
&
Benefits
Client
Manager (RSSP)

Implementation
Date
Immediately

PAYMENT AND REFUND TRANSACTIONS
7. Facsimile Signature
Recommendation
The practice of the
Client
Officer
endorsing documents
with the Revenues &
Benefits Manager’s
facsimile signature by
way of a stamp
should
be
discontinued
and

(Medium)
Rationale
Best Practice
Officers sign off documents in their own
handwriting under delegated powers.
Findings
The Client officer uses a stamp showing
the revenues & Benefits Client
Manager’s
name
to
endorse
documents.

Page 105

Responsibility
Revenues
&
Benefits
Client
Manager (RSSP)

replaced with the
Officer signing her Risk
own name under a A name-stamp could be mislaid and
scheme
of possibly misused to obtain money from
the Council
delegation.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
The Client Manager agrees in principle, but it will need to be
discussed with the Head of Finance in the first instance.
The signature stamp is used for signing letters as well as
signing bulk mail shots, but is being used less and less due to
electronic mailings etc.

Page 106

Implementation
Date
1 July 2008.

AGRESSO 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

The final was issued on the 13th June 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•
•
•
•

To ensure that adequate procedures have been produced and that they
contain sufficient detail relating to the various processes;
To ensure that there are adequate controls in place to manage all
areas of the cheque production process;
To ensure that there is adequate control of all processes relating to
payment by BACS;
To ensure that the recovery action plan is adequate, being
appropriately managed and all issues contained within are being
addressed by the appropriate officers.

This area will be subject to a full post implementation review during the
current 2008/2009 financial year. The above areas were selected as they
were considered of fundamental concern during the implementation. At the
time of this review, an Agresso recovery plan was still in place and had not yet
been fully completed. Due to this, it was decided that it would be
inappropriate to undertake a full post implementation review at this juncture.
2. BACKGROUND
2.1

2.2

The Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire District Councils took the
decision to undertake a joint implementation of the Agresso financial
information system. This was managed by Capita, the Council’s financial
contractor.
When Agresso went live in April 2007, a number of problems were
immediately identified including:
•
•
•
•
•

2.3

Officers being unable to view their cost centre details;
A lack of controls within Accounts Payable resulting in duplicate
payments being made;
Incorrect user and deputy rights;
End users not having received adequate training and therefore unable
to effectively use the system; and
The Agresso Workflow could not be fully relied upon.

As a result of these problems, SODC decided to revert back to manual ‘pink
slipping’ on Accounts Payable. It was decided by both senior management
teams that a recovery plan was required. This was jointly owned between
both Councils and a number of meetings took place with representatives from
both Councils and Capita to establish a way forward. The recovery plan was
effectively completed on target at the beginning of April 2008 and since that
point the system has been working much more effectively.

3. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Full Assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to

Page 107

meet the system objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.
4.2

On the basis of our work completed in this review, no recommendations have
been made. However, it should be noted that there are many processes still
being developed and embedded. The performance of Agresso will continue
to be assessed in 2008/2009 through Internal Audit’s key financial system
reviews.

5. MAIN FINDINGS
5.1

Procedures

5.2

Polices and procedures have been produced for both sites, although they are
still at an evolving draft stage and as the recovery plan has progressed,
necessary amendments have been incorporated. These are available to all
officers and cover all main tasks. They have been handed out during the
training sessions for the system. No recommendations have been made as a
result of our work in this area.

5.3

Cheque Production

5.4

The cheques for VWHDC are held in a secure environment with only
appropriate staff having access to them. The stocks are monitored and
controlled by means of stock control sheets. The cheques are printed
electronically from within Agresso following the Exchequer Services Manager
reviewing and approving a payment proposal. Any cheques greater than
£10,000 are required to have a second authorising signatory from the Council.

5.5

Once the payments proposal has been completed, each payment is now
checked to the system to ensure that it will not result in a duplicate payment.

5.6

The cheques issued are reconciled weekly to the bank statement by a
member of the Accountancy team. No concerns were noted and no
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.6

BACS Controls

5.7

Payments by BACS are treated in many respects as for cheques. The BACS
runs are completed on Agresso and the Exchequer Services Manager checks
and signs off the payment request report. This is then sent to Accountancy to
authorise all payments above £10,000. The BACS report is then reconciled
by the Exchequer Services Manager to the Agresso Payment Run report.
The BACS file confirmation, produced by BACS, is then reconciled to the
weekly bank statement as per cheques. Any anomalies are notified to the
supplier and the client team and where necessary, a credit note is requested.
The Exchequer services team are responsible for collecting the outstanding
payment. No concerns were noted and no recommendations have been
made as a result of our work in this area.

5.9

Recovery Plan

5.10

The recovery plan was instigated due to a number of concerns over the way
that Agresso had been set up and was functioning. A review of the

Page 108

documentation detailing the actions that occurred or were due to occur
against this plan provided Internal Audit with a degree of assurance that not
only had all significant issues been identified, but that also that they were
being successfully addressed.
5.11

A large amount of time has been spent ensuring that the access and menu
privileges are correct for all users and all user groups. In addition, work has
been undertaken to ensure that approved roles correlate to correct users,
cost centre and codes.

5.12

Two of the main issues have been the lack of effective training that occurred
during the implementation phase and also the lack of quality control
surrounding the input functions. It appears that both of these issues are
being addressed. No recommendations have been made as a result of our
work in this area.

Page 109

HOUSING AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFITS 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

Final issued on the 16th June 2008.

1.2

The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:
•

•

•

•
•

•

1.3

To ensure that benefit assessments are correctly calculated and
valued, are processed promptly, are evidenced by documentary
evidence and adequate separation of duties are in place.
To ensure that payments are made in accordance with regulations,
standing orders and financial regulations, are supported by
documentary evidence and are promptly processed.
To ensure that overpayments are supported by documentary evidence,
are adequately recorded, are correctly calculated and valued and are
processed promptly.
To ensure that the recovery of overpaid benefits is efficient and
effective.
To ensure there is an adequate audit trail to substantiate the figures on
the Housing Subsidy claim, the claim is properly completed and the
figures included are accurate.
To ensure that the performance statistics of the service are recorded
correctly, supported by evidence and is reviewed regularly by
management.

Due to the length of time encountered in receiving information and staff
shortages within the Internal Audit Team, two areas were not completed
during this review. These areas were payments and recovery and External
Audit have been advised of this. Internal Audit will include payments and
recovery in the 2008/2009 audit review of Housing and Council Tax Benefits.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

Capita provide the Housing and Council Tax Benefits service for both South
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS
3.1

Housing and Council Tax Benefits was last subject to an internal audit review
in March 2007, no recommendations were made and a satisfactory opinion
was issued.

4. 2007/2008 AUDIT ASSURANCE
4.1

Limited Assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2

Six recommendations have been raised in this review. Five Medium and One
Low.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

Page 110

5.1

Benefit Assessments

5.2

There is no policy or guidance in place relating to the authorisation of
backdated claims and there is no evidence to support that such claims are
authorised by an appropriate manager. In addition, Internal Audit suggests
that guidance in relation to back dated claims is placed on the Council’s
website for members of the public to view. Three recommendations have
been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.3

Overpayments

5.4

Testing identified that manual overpayment calculations are not reconciled to
Academy records to ensure that the calculation is accurate. Working
practices need to be enhanced to ensure that an overpayment letter is
generated in all cases, the overpayment amount recorded on the letter is
accurate, and the reason for the overpayment is included on the letter. Two
recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.5
Housing Subsidy Claim
5.6

5.7

Internal Audit requested information from the Audit Commission as to their
perceived risks within the benefits system, particularly regarding the Housing
Subsidy Claim. The Audit Commission stated that during their 2006/2007
review a number and a range of errors were identified relating to the
classification of cases. Comments provided by Capita during the Internal
Audit review suggested that the classification of cases may be incorrect and
thus subsidy may be affected. One recommendation has been made as a
result of our work in this area.

5.8

Performance Statistics
From the information supplied and reviewed by Internal Audit, performance
statistics appear to be recorded correctly, supported by evidence and
reviewed regularly by management. No recommendations have been made
as a result of our work in this area.

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
BENEFIT ASSESSMENT
1. Backdating Benefit Claims
Recommendation
A Policy is produced
by Capita in relation
to the backdating of
claims. In addition,
guidance
notes
should be produced
to assist in the
authorisation
process.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
There should be guidance in place in
relation to the backdating of claims.
Findings
Capita are responsible for
backdated claims, however
policy in place. Internal
informed that the team

Page 111

authorising
there is no
Audit was
uses the

Responsibility
Benefits Manager

Department for Work and Pensions
criteria to assess such claims. It was
not possible to locate the exact criteria
used by Capita.
Risk
There could be inconsistency in
authorising backdated claims if there is
no policy or documented guidance in
place.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Working procedures will be circulated to all staff.
2. Backdating Benefit Claims
Recommendation
Guidance is made
available to members
of the public via the
Councils website in
relation
to
the
backdating of benefit
claims.

(Low)

Rationale
Best Practice
Members of the public should be aware
of the services that the Council
provides.

Responsibility
Benefits Manager

Findings
It was noted during the audit that there
is guidance on backdated claims for
claimants on South Oxfordshire District
Council’s website.
There is no
guidance in relation to backdated claims
on the Vale of White Horse District
Councils website.

Risk
A member of the public may not be
aware of the service available without
guidance being made available.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
The website is being reviewed.

3. Authorising Backdating Benefit Claims
Recommendation
All backdated claims
are authorised by the
appropriate manager
as stated by Capita.
In
addition,
all
evidence to support
backdated claims is
scanned onto EDMS

Implementation
Date
16th June 2008

Rationale
Best Practice
Backdated claims should be authorised
by an appropriate manager.
Findings
In one case there was no evidence to
support the back dated claim on EDMS
and in the four remaining cases, the

Page 112

Implementation
Date
1st August 2008

(Medium)
Responsibility
Benefits Manager

prior to the claim backdating authorisation decision form
being authorised by was not signed by the Benefits
the manager.
Manager.
Risk
Inappropriate authorisation of back
dated claims and there is a risk that an
inaccurate assessment could be made.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
All claims within the sample were found to have the correct
authorisation on EDMS. However, working procedures will be
circulated to all staff.

Implementation
Date
16th June 2008

OVERPAYMENTS
4. Overpayment Calculation Verification
Recommendation
The
overpayments
amounts as recorded
on the change of
circumstance forms
should be checked to
the amount recorded
on
Academy
to
ensure the amount is
correct.

Rationale
Best Practice
Manual calculations should be
checked
by
an
independent
employee as any errors may go
undetected. Manual and computer
generated calculations should be
reconciled.

Responsibility
Benefits Manager

Findings
Testing identified instances where
the overpayment amount on the
Change of Circumstances form
varied from Academy records. This
indicates that there is a potential for
an error to be made.

Risk
Without accurate calculation, there
is a risk that the Council may
encounter financial loss and also
may have difficulty in recovering the
amounts involved.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
All staff will be informed of the importance of cross checking
manual records with Academy.
5. Claimant Notification of Overpayment
Recommendation
Working
practices
and
procedures
should be enhanced

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
A claimant should be notified of an
overpayment, the overpayment

Page 113

Implementation Date
Immediate

(Medium)
Responsibility
Benefits Manager

to ensure that an
overpayment letter is
generated in all cases
and the overpayment
amount recorded on
the letter is accurate.

amount should be accurate and the
reason as to why the overpayment
occurred should be included in the
notification.
Findings
From the testing undertaken there
was an instance where a notification
letter was not generated and in 2
cases the overpayment amount
appears to be inaccurate on the
notification letter.

Risk
Without appropriate recording of
details, there is a risk that the
claimant is not notified of the
overpayment resulting in difficulty in
recovering
the
overpayment
amount.
The notification letter
should also be an accurate
reflection as to the transaction
within Academy.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
All staff will be informed of the importance of cross checking
manual records with Academy.

Implementation Date
Immediate

HOUSING SUBSIDY CLAIM
6. Classification of Cases
Recommendation
All cases should be
correctly classified in
respect
of
the
housing
benefits
subsidy claim.

(Medium)

Rationale
Best Practice
There
should
be
correct
classification of cases in respect of
the Housing Subsidy Claim.
Findings
During the 2006/07 review by the
Audit Commission, a number and a
range of errors were identified
relating to the classification of
cases. There appears to be a misclassification
of
an
account
identified during Internal Audit
testing.
Comments provided by
Capita during the audit review
suggest classification of cases may
have been incorrect and thus
subsidy may be affected.
Risk

Page 114

Responsibility
Benefits Manager

Incorrect classification of cases may
affect the subsidy such as
qualification of the claim by the
Audit
Commission
and
also
imposition of financial sanctions by
the DWP.
Management Response
Recommendation is Agreed
Using the sample cases a number of claims were showing
the incorrect tenancy codes. This is currently being
amended.

Page 115

Implementation Date
1st August 2008

REFUSE COLLECTION & STREET CLEANSING – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from internal audit’s follow-up review of Refuse
Collection and Street Cleansing 2007/2008. The original fieldwork was
undertaken in June 2007 and the final report was issued in July 2007. This
report was issued on the 30th April 2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made eight recommendations and eight were agreed.
satisfactory opinion was issued.

A

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that three recommendations had been successfully
implemented with a further five recommendations still ongoing.

3.2

A number of changes within the Waste Services Team have occurred that
have impacted on the implementation of the recommendations made
following the Refuse Collection and Street Cleansing 2007/208 audit. The
Council Organisational Change team have stated that there will be no further
development in the current CRM system and the Council is looking to source
a replacement system in Autumn 2008. It is anticipated that improvements in
the reporting arrangements will be generated from this system change and
therefore should progress some of the ongoing recommendation to a
satisfactory conclusion.

3.3

Internal Audit noted the five ongoing recommendations require input from
other Service Areas and individuals. Waste Services is awaiting endorsement
from the Senior Management Team of their service standards to ensure their
standards are consistent with those of other service areas. In addition they
are looking to engage further with the Communication Team to develop the
facilities available through the website and publish their service standards.
The Waste Services Manager is aware that a number of recommendations
made require further effort to resolve satisfactorily.

Page 116

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
WP REF. INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION
5.2
5.2.8

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

CONTRACT PROCEDURES
It is recommended that random checks of
cleanliness for A34 and A420 against the
specified work programme should be
undertaken by members of the waste
team to ensure compliance to the terms
of the fast road cleansing service
contract.

Low

These are currently carried out
during routine Technical Officer
duties, but the findings are only
documented if the standards are
unacceptable.

Waste Services
Manager

31 Aug
07

Page 117

It is proposed that as part of the
Joint Improvement Plan, a survey
is carried out by Waste Team,
Veolia and representatives of the
Highways Agency to review
accessibility and Health & Safety
issues. This was intended to take
place in July, but it has been
agreed to delay until August by
which time Veolia’s new Street
Cleaning Supervisor will be in post.
Follow Up Observations:
The Waste Services Manager stated that cleanliness on the A34
and A420 has been suspended due to changes in regulations. He
is currently investigating a new process which is compliant with the
regulation and making the necessary price revisions before the
service will commence. See emails to confirm.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Oct 2008

5.3

CONTRACT MONITORING

REPORT
WP REF. INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION
5.3.5

It is recommended that the reporting
facility contained within the CRM system
should be reviewed by the Waste
Management Team and the
Organisational Change Manager to
address the shortfall in reporting as
identified by the Waste Management
Team to enable reports to be produced
that deliver improvements in the
monitoring arrangements.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
This will be discussed with the
OSM in conjunction with other
CRM issues arising from these
reports, and a way forward agreed.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Waste Services
Manager

ACTION
DATE
30 Sept
07

Page 118

Follow Up Observations:
Organisational Development has stated that there will be no further
development in the CRM system; it will be superseded by another
system in Autumn 2008, which is currently being commissioned by
Organisational Dev. Waste services will review their processes to
link in with the new system, to ensure better accountability and
tracking facilities. However it should be noted that the current
reports allow management to verify contractor claims and monitor
performance on non collections.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Oct
2008
5.4
5.4.5

CONTRACT PAYMENTS
It is recommended that the statistics
supplied by Oxfordshire County Council
regarding the amount of waste sent to
landfill and any statistics used for the
calculation of the BVPI should be
checked for accuracy by a second named
officer to ensure discrepancies such as
those identified during the course of this
audit are corrected and the Council can

Medium

This will be done on a quarterly
basis.

Waste Services
Manager/Waste
Services Coordinator

31 Aug
07

REPORT
WP REF. INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

be confident that the published BVPI
results are accurate.

Follow Up Observations:

Page 119

5.4.11

It is recommended that the Waste
Services Manager should undertake
Agresso training to enable him to
commence budget monitoring of the
waste services budget as soon as
possible.

Medium

This recommendation is further endorsed by the Oxfordshire
County Council who undertakes audits to confirm statistics for
landfill. Next audit due April 2008.
Implemented
Agreed. As soon as reporting
Waste Services
31 Aug
facility is available, training will be
Manager
07
undertaken.

Follow Up Observations:
The Waste Services Manager has attended the appropriate
Agresso training.
Implemented

5.7

HEALTH AND SAFETY

REPORT
WP REF. INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION
5.7.9

It is recommended that copy of the report
arising from health and safety audit
conducted by the Waste Services
Manager and the Council’ Health and
Safety Officer should be forwarded to
Internal Audit for retention and
consideration as part of the next internal
audit review of refuse collection and
street cleansing.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Low

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
Agreed. Audit scheduled to start in
August

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Waste Services
Manager/Health
and Safety
Adviser (Dick
Powell)

ACTION
DATE
31 Aug
07

Follow Up Observations:

Page 120

Internal Audit obtained a copy of the draft health and safety report
undertaken by the Councils Health and Safety adviser. The audit
took place throughout Nov 07 to Jan 08.
Implemented
5.8
5.8.5

WEBSITE
It is recommended that the Waste
Services Manager should consider the
option of introducing a “tick box” for
further information which invites residents
to register their email address onto the
website. This could be used to deliver
publicity and advertising material
regarding waste services at minimum
cost.

Low

Agreed. Consideration needs to be
given to how the address list
should be managed. Needs
involvement of Communications
Team.

Waste Services
Co-ordinator
/Communications
Team

31 Oct 07

Follow Up Observations:
The Waste Services Manager is attempting to review this
recommendation with the Council’s Communications Team, still
requires further discussions and some liaison with SODC to
progress.

REPORT
WP REF. INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION

5.8.7

It is recommended that service standards
for waste should be made available in a
leaflet format and distributed through the
Council’s local service points, and also
distributed with any relevant
correspondence generated by the waste
services team.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Oct 2008
Agreed, subject to corporate
Deputy Director
30 Sept
guidance in respect if publication.
Contract &
07
Procurement/
Deputy Director
(Organisational
Development)

Follow Up Observations:

Page 121
5.8.8

It is recommended that service standards
are published on the Council website as
soon as possible.

Medium

Services Standards have been written, service standards are also
in built into the current CRM system. Waste Management is
awaiting endorsement of their service standards from SMT, The
Organisational Change Manager confirmed that some revisions will
be required to the core standards as agreed with SMT and it is
anticipated that this will be undertaken in May-July 2008.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Oct
2008
Agreed, subject to corporate
Deputy Director
30 Sept
guidance in respect if publication
Contract &
07
Procurement/
Deputy Director
(Organisational
Development
Follow Up Observations:
See comments at 5.8.7. The Waste Services Manager also stated
that the website is not functioning as it should, however officers are
aware of the need to progress this.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Oct 2008

RECYCLING – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from internal audit’s follow-up review of
Recycling 2007/2008. The original fieldwork was undertaken in June 2007
and the final report was issued in July 2007. This report was issued on the
30th April 2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made twelve recommendations and twelve were agreed. A
satisfactory opinion was issued.

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that five recommendations had been successfully
implemented, two recommendations remain outstanding and a further five
recommendations were ongoing.

3.2

A number of significant changes have occurred within the Waste Service
Area which has impacted on the implementation of the recommendations.
The Council took the decision in Autumn 2007 that no further developments
will take place in the current CRM system, as the Council has stated that they
are looking to purchase a replacement system which will be commissioned in
Autumn 2008. This has resulted in stagnation in improving the reporting
elements of the system which could have assisted Waste Services to improve
the control arrangements regarding the brown bin scheme. However Internal
Audit is fully supportive of Waste Services and their involvement in the
procurement of a replacement system, which should ensure that controls
relevant to the problem areas encountered by Waste Services are addressed
with the replacement system. Therefore Internal Audit acknowledges that four
recommendations remain ongoing.

3.3

Internal Audit acknowledges that the two recommendations which have not
been implemented have arisen due to other priorities imposed on the Waste
Service Manager; furthermore he recognises that the recommendations
should both be progressed over the next few months alongside the
implementation of the customer relationship software implementation.

3.4

Internal Audit has concluded the follow up review of Recycling and noted that
a further audit review will be undertaken for the Brown Bin Scheme in April
2008.

Page 122

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.2
5.2.9

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

RECYCLING OPERATION

Page 123

It is recommended that the waste team
should review of all the processes that
feed into the CRM system to ensure the
CRM system is being fully utilised by
officers for input, monitoring and where
necessary report purposes. This review
should take place in conjunction with
members of the Organisational Change
service area and the Debtors service
area to formulate a regular timetable for
the production of reports with a view to
improving the management
arrangements.

Medium

A preliminary report specification,
primarily to address the lack of
information relating to brown bins,
has been prepared. It has been
forwarded to the Organisational
Change Manager as a draft.
Further discussions concerning
feasibility to take place.

Waste Services
Manager

31 Aug
07

Outcome to be determined by the
action date.

Follow Up Observations:

5.2.10

It is recommended that the current
reports arising from the CRM system are
reviewed to ensure they are still relevant
in monitoring the control environment
relating to the CRM system. Furthermore
the waste team should develop the
reporting facility through the CRM system

Medium

Organisational Development has stated that there will be no further
development in the CRM system; it will be superseded by another
system in Autumn 2008, which is currently being commissioned by
Organisational Dev. Waste services will review their processes to
link in with the new system, to ensure better accountability and
tracking facilities.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation date 31 Oct 2008
See 5.2.9 response above.
Waste Services
31 Aug
Manager
07
Outcome to be determined by the
action date.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

to assist with the control and
reconciliation of income relating to the
brown bin scheme.
Follow Up Observations:
The Waste Services Manager stated that invoices are now raised
on the sundry debtors system; this enables generation of reports
which denote outstanding debts and would evoke established
recovery procedure. This became effective in Feb 2008. Evidence:
Copies of emails
Implemented

Page 124

5.3
5.3.9

RECYCLING CREDITS
It is recommended that the inspection
visits to validate the weighbridge data
should be reinstated as soon as possible.
Thereafter consideration should be given
annually as to whether the inspection
arrangements are still appropriate.

Medium

These will be reinstated with
Waste Services
immediate effect. Upon the
Manager
appointment of the Senior
Technical Officer, it is likely that
this work will be undertaken by one
of the Technical Officers in future.

16 July
07

Follow Up Observations:

5.3.14

It is recommended that the waste team
should investigate the anomaly identified
by Internal Audit regarding the weight of
composted waste declared for recycling
credit purposes for January 2007 and
make the necessary adjustments if
appropriate. Furthermore Internal Audit
recommends that a degree of monitoring

Medium

Inspection visits have been reinstated. Evidence of inspection visit
obtained from Waste services.
Implemented
The Waste Strategy Co-ordinator
Waste Services
1 Aug 07
will investigate and if the anomaly
Manager
is significant, adjustments will be
made. Future claims will be closely
scrutinised before forwarding to
OCC.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

is introduced to prevent the reoccurrence
of this error.
Follow Up Observations:
This was investigated and resolved and it was agreed that the
difference was insignificant and therefore no alterations were made
to the claim for recycling credits.
Implemented

Page 125
5.5

BROWN BIN PROCEDURE
Internal Audit recommends that the
5.5.9
waste team should agree a procedure in
the event of residents not paying for the
brown bin service and would propose
that consideration is given to the
following:
a. a second reminder should be issued
promptly stating the bin will be collected
if the fee remains unpaid after a further
14 days.
b. Agree a procedure with Veolia for the
retrieval of the brown bins for which the
Waste team should maintain records to

Medium

Agreed.
It is considered that this is a “backoffice” Sundry Debtors/LSP
function.
This matter will be referred to
Client Manager/Capita to facilitate
a revised process for the recovery
of debt and management
information.

Waste Services
Manager

30 Sept
07

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Page 126

enable the situation to be tracked, should
they need to intervene.
c. Agree a process if Veolia is unable to
retrieve the bin and consider the use of
DSO operatives with a technical officer
attending to the retrieval.
d. Consideration should be given
whether invoices should be raised for a
proportion of the year if the Council can
establish whether residents have been
using the brown bin without paying for
the facility and whether this option is cost
effective.
e. The waste team should agree with
Sundry Debtors the recovery process for
customers who persist in not paying.
Follow Up Observations:

5.5.12

It is recommended that the waste team
should in conjunction with Organisational
Development resolve the issues relevant
to extracting information regarding
unpaid fees for monitoring purposes.
Thereafter the Waste team should
monitor unpaid fees on a monthly basis
to decide on the appropriate action to
take.

Medium

This recommendation has been implemented for all renewals of
brown bins, and will continue subject to the implementation of a
revised CRM system which will be adopted Autumn 2008.
Implemented
Waste Services
31 Sept
Agreed
Manager
07
See 5.5.9 above
This matter will be referred to
Client
Manager/Capita/Organisational
Development to facilitate a revised
process for the recovery of debt
and management information.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Follow Up Observations:

5.5.14

Page 127

It is recommended that the brown bin
leaflet should be reviewed to clarify the
procedures to follow in the event that a
brown bin is no longer required and
furthermore could state the Council’s
policy with regards to the recovery of
income for services provided.

Medium

The Waste Services Manager stated that the Tech Admin Asst is in
discussion with Capita regarding the Aged Debt Report; currently
the information is circulated to the Deputy Directors and is not
always circulated to appropriate officers. This is still under review
with the Waste Services Manager.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation date 31 Oct 2008
Waste Services
3 Nov 07
Agreed.
Co-ordinator
&
Sufficient leaflets have already
Waste Services
been printed to meet current
Manager
capacity, although a revised
calendar to all members of the
scheme will be issue in Nov. This
will present an opportunity to
address this recommendation.
Follow Up Observations:

5.5.17

It is recommended that the waste team
should request information regarding the
unpaid direct debit payments in a format
that denotes name, address and brown
bin reference which should enable the
waste team to ascertain the location of
the brown bin so recovery can

Medium

The Waste Services Team is attempting to work with SODC on
rebranding issues and this information will appear in the next waste
leaflets. The Waste Services Manager also stated that the website
is not functioning as it should, however officers are aware of the
need to progress this.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date 31 Oct 2008
Agreed,
Waste Services
30/9/07
Manager
This matter will be referred to
Client Manager/Capita to facilitate
a revised process for the recovery
of debt and management
information.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

commence as soon as possible.
Follow Up Observations:

Page 128

5.5.20

It is recommended that members of the
waste team should agree who is
responsible for the generation of the
spreadsheet downloads and specify a
timetable for this to take place on a
regular basis.

Low

See also comments in 5.5.12, the use of the sundry debtors system
automatically gives rise to a specified recovery procedure; however
the aged debtors report covers all service areas and is
cumbersome to use to regulate debts. The Waste Services
Manager is endeavouring to resolve the issues around the aged
debt report to facilitate a better monitoring process.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation date 31 Oct
2008
This requirement should be
Waste Services
31 Aug
superseded if the reports detailed
Manager
07
in the draft specification are
provided as per 5.2.9

Follow Up Observations:

5.5.23

It is recommended that the staff
resources allocated to waste
administration should be reviewed with a
view to ensuring that they are adequate
and that staff resources are allocated to
follow up the issues arising from
reminders being sent out.

Medium

The migration process for invoices to Sundry Debtors has resulted
in this recommendation being superseded.
Implemented
A permanent EH TAA has been
Waste Services
1 Sept 07
appointed and she is undertaking
Manager
some admin work on behalf of the
Waste Team. The nature of this
work will be documented so that
expectations are clearly stated.
The Technical Officers have been
asked to undertake certain admin

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Page 129

duties. It has been identified that
some project-based work needs
completing (eg update of
procedures file). This work should
be undertaken by the Waste
Team’s TAA and further
consideration will be given to
freeing up more of her time to
enable this. One-off peaks of
workload such as that generated
when the replacement for green
sacks is introduced will be tackled
by using temporary staff as
required.
As part of the budget setting
process, it was proposed to reduce
the grade of the vacant Principal
Waste Officer post and using the
saving to fund an additional parttime admin resource. However,
whilst the Strategic Director
approved the downgrading of the
post, he did not approve the
creation of the part-time admin
post.
Follow Up Observations:
The Joint Procurement exercise has taken the Waste Services
Manager away from his normal tasks; he has recently appointed an
acting principal waste officer which has resulted in recruitment
issues further down the chain. Joint working is proposed which has

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

impacted on recruiting to temporary positions.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date 31 Oct 2008
5.6
5.6.12

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

Page 130

It is recommended that the
Communication Team should liaise with
the waste management team to ensure
the information contained within the
Council Tax leaflet regarding assisted
collections is comprehensive and
accurate and agrees with the information
on the website.

Low

Agreed

Waste Services
Manager

1 Jan 08

Follow Up Observations:
The Waste Services Manager is attempting to review this
recommendation with the Council’s Communications Team. The
Waste Services Manager is looking to target particular groups as
part of the Equality focus; and as a development project arising
from his service plan.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date 31 Oct 2008
5.7
5.7.4

WEBSITE
It is recommended that service standards
regarding waste services are written and
published as soon as possible.

Medium

Agreed, subject to corporate
guidance.

Waste Services
Manager

30/9/07

Follow Up Observations:
Services Standards have been written, service standards are also
in built into the current CRM system. Waste Management is
awaiting endorsement of their service standards from SMT, The
Organisational Change Manager confirmed that some revisions will
be required to the core standards as agreed with SMT and it is
anticipated that this will be undertaken in May-July 2008.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation date 31 Oct 2008

Page 131

EXCESS CHARGES – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from internal audit’s follow-up review of Excess
Charges. The original fieldwork was undertaken in June 2007 and the final
report was issued in September 2007. This report was issued on the 30th
April 2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made two recommendations and two were agreed. A good
opinion was issued.

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that both recommendations had been successfully
implemented. Internal Audit established through discussions with the Car
Park Manager and a review of the relevant documentation that
implementation of the recommendations had been concluded within the
timescale specified in the Action Plan.

3.2

Internal Audit has concluded that no further reviews will be conducted in this
area as there are no outstanding recommendations.

Page 132

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.5

ACCESS TO AND INTEGRITY OF DATA

5.5.10

As a safeguard and to provide better
management control of the excess
charge notice system, the computer
system should be made to default after a
set period of time if the user password is
not changed.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The password’s have now been
set to default to change every
month (31days) by the users. It will
store 3 old passwords and will not
permit the user to reuse them.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

Car Parks
Manager (BM)

ACTION
DATE

August
2007

Follow Up Observations:

Page 133

This change was requested directly after the audit review and the
Software provider have instigated the necessary password
changes.
Implemented
5.6
5.6.5

THE CORRECT CHARGING STRUCTURE
To avoid giving inaccurate information
the section on the Excess Charge Notice
which states ‘including VAT’ should be
corrected as these are ‘outside of the
scope’.

High

The ticket supplier
(BemroseBooth) is due to visit at
the end of August. For the next
order, I will request a new plate for
the excess charge tickets to be
made, excluding the wording
‘including VAT’. This will take
several months to implement

Car Parks
Manager (BM)

Decembe
r 2007

Follow Up Observations:
The necessary changes have been completed by the Car Parks
Manager. Copies of tickets were obtained by Internal Audit to
support the ticket amendments.
Implemented

125

HEALTH AND SAFETY – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from internal audit’s follow-up review of Health
and Safety 2007/2008. The original fieldwork was undertaken in June 2007
and the final report was issued in October 2007. This report was issued on
the 30th April 2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made seventeen recommendations and seventeen were
agreed. A satisfactory opinion was issued.

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that ten recommendations had been successfully
implemented with a further seven recommendations still ongoing.

3.2

Internal Audit noted there have been significant developments in the
arrangements relating to Health and Safety over the last year, these have
served to improve the Council’s approach to developing a robust health and
safety culture throughout the Council. Health and Safety training is directed at
key personnel and throughout 2008/2009 will cascade through all levels of
personnel to ensure staff are well versed in their responsibilities in terms of
health and safety.

3.3

Internal Audit acknowledges that seven recommendations remain ongoing as
a result of other priorities imposed on the Head of Property Services and the
Health and Safety Adviser. However a revised implementation date has been
recorded against these recommendations. Internal Audit will continue to
monitor the progress of the management actions against the ongoing
recommendations.

Page 134

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.1
5.1.7

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

PREVIOUS AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Page 135

It is recommended that the Health and
Safety Adviser should liaise with the
Head of Property Services to assist with
the implementation of the actions arising
from the 2004/05 audit of health and
safety. Furthermore he should also
endeavour to develop a more active role
in assisting service areas to improve the
monitoring arrangements for health and
safety throughout the Council.

Medium

The plan was produced for the
former Technical Services Division
which now no longer exists.
The Head of Property Services
and the Health and Safety Adviser
will meet shortly to discuss the
outstanding issues especially the
processing of inspection and
monitoring reports, and where in
one case anyway there has been a
change in regulation.

Health and Safety
Adviser

09/07
(Meeting)
, and
05/08
(Annual
Report)

The Safety Action Plan for 2007/8,
which has been prepared by the
Safety Action Group and approved
by the Health and Safety Review
Board, sets out a programme of
objectives for all service areas,
including enhanced monitoring of
all contracted services. The Health
and Safety Adviser will monitor
progress with these objectives for
the HSRB and prepare an annual
report on Health and Safety for
public consumption.
Follow Up Observations:
The Health and Safety Adviser stated that discussions have taken
place with H&S Management Group and they have agreed that the

127

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

appropriate recommendations will be carried forward, the
remaining have been superseded and bear no relevance to
existing structure or policies.
Implemented

5.2

Page 136

5.2.10

HEALTH AND SAFETY POLICY
It is recommended that the Safety Action
Group should review its membership to
ensure that all service areas have the
necessary representation on the Safety
Action Group to ensure effective lines of
communication are maintained to all
staff.

Medium

This item has been referred to the
agenda of the next meeting of
SAG on 7 September 2007.

Health and Safety
Adviser

Complete

Follow Up Observations:

5.2.11

It is recommended that the Safety Action
Group should clarify the health and
safety position with regards to the shared
service arrangements (for both VWHDC
and Capita employees) to ensure all
personnel are advised and kept informed

Medium

Head of Legal Services, Head of Democratic Services, Ridgeway
SSP Joint of Head of Finance and Head of Asset Management are
now all included in the membership of the Safety Action Group.
See minutes of 21/1/08.
Implemented
As 5.2.10
Safety Action
07/09
Group

128

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

of their health and safety responsibilities.

Follow Up Observations:
See above response at 5.2.10
Implemented

Page 137
5.3

HEALTH & SAFETY at WORK ACT

129

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.3.10

It is recommended that the Health and
Safety Adviser should assess service
areas that are required to complete a
wide range of risk assessment to assess
the need for further training.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

Page 138

Risk assessment training occurred
in February 2007. The training
given in risk assessment stressed
that where managers do not feel
competent to undertake an
assessment, they should refer the
matter to the Health and Safety
Adviser. The evidence is this
seems to be happening and the
HSA has received a number of
referrals already. Hopefully training
in Health and Safety (see 5.5)
would further reduce the need for
referrals.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Line managers
and Health and
Safety Adviser

ACTION
DATE
Ongoing

An improvement plan has been
drawn up by the SAG and taken
forward by Deputy Directors in
their service plans to ensure these
assessments are written by
December 2007. This will be
monitored by the SAG.
Officers have been subsequently
reminded that further assistance
can be sought from the HSA. This
has been underpinned by the
production of generic templates
to assist in risk assessment
completion.
There is scope to examine the role
that Administration can play in
monitoring the completion of this

130

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

exercise.

Page 139

Follow Up Observations:
The H&S adviser stated that further guidance has been given,
generic template has been produced for selective areas: eg: office
risk, lone working. Moving forward the H&S adviser will undertake
audits of risk assessments to ensure that risk assessment are
appropriate, this is contained within the H&S adviser personal
action plan.
Implemented
5.3.16

Medium
It is recommended that the Health and
Safety Adviser in conjunction with the
human resources service area should
introduce measures to monitor the
completion and retention of health and
safety risk assessments.

The Health and Safety Review
Board have asked for “cast iron”
assurances that all service areas
will have (substantially) completed
their risk assessments by the end
of this calendar year. The HSA will
maintain a register centrally of all
assessments

Health and Safety
Adviser

Ongoing

Refer to comments made above in
5.3.10.
131

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

5.3.17

Page 140

It is recommended that the Health and
Safety Adviser should undertake periodic
audits of the risk assessment process
including the inspection of risk
assessment documentation to ensure
Service Areas are reviewing risk
assessment regularly to keep them valid
and up to date.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Follow Up Observations:
A register has been established to monitor the completion of health
and safety risk assessments. Further analysis of the register will
commence in Autumn 2008 to ascertain areas where further
assistance may be required.
Implemented
Health and Safety
March
Agreed.
Adviser
2008
The Health and Safety Adviser will
include a topic audit of risk
assessment in his work
programme for all subsequent
years.
To draw up the Health and Safety
audit plan to include risk
assessment review.
Follow Up Observations:
Moving forward the H&S adviser will undertake audits of risk
assessments to ensure that risk assessment are appropriate, this is
contained within the H&S adviser personal action plan. The H&S
action group have formulated a listing of issues identified as in
need of resolution in order to take risk assessment forward.
Implemented

132

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.3.19

It is recommended that the Health and
Safety Adviser should remind all service
areas of the need to include health and
safety in their respective service plan,
thus ensuring that health and safety
maintains a high profile within the
Council.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
Agreed.
The Health and Safety Adviser
prompted the Safety Action Group
to prepare an action plan for safety
for 2007/8 which has been
approved and the relevant parts
incorporated in local service plans.
Delivery of the actions will be
monitored by the HSRB and SAG.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Health and Safety
Adviser

ACTION
DATE
From
now
onwards

To be a standing item on each
SAG.

Page 141

Follow Up Observations:
Internal Audit confirmed that action plans exist for 2007/08 and
2008/09, the action plan form part of the discussions of the Safety
Action Group and improvements are reported through this
mechanism.
Implemented
5.4
5.4.5

INCIDENT REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS
It is recommended that the Head of
Asset Management should attend
meetings of the Safety Action Group to
improve the line of communications to
officers with the responsibility for health
and safety. Issues arising from the
review of incident reports and insurance
claims can be reported through this
mechanism and communicated
throughout the Council if considered
appropriate.

Medium

The issue will be discussed by the
Safety Action Group at its’ next
meeting (see 5.2.10)

Safety Action
Group

Sept 07

133

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Follow Up Observations:
The Head of Asset Management attends meeting of the safety
action group. See evidence provided for 5.3.19.
Implemented
5.5
5.5.7

TRAINING & STAFF AWARENESS

Page 142

It is recommended that the training
matrices used to record staff health and
safety training needs should also record
a review date which denotes when staff
are due for refresher training to
demonstrate that their skills regarding
health & safety is continually being
refreshed and updated.

Medium

Where there is a statutory
requirement to re-train this is
already done e.g. first aid, HGV
driving. Where there is a change in
the regulatory environment e.g. the
new CDM regulations than any
necessary training is arranged for
officers at the instigation of their
head of service or the HSA.

Deputy Director
(Organisational
Development and
Support)

31.3.08

The implementation of a
competency based approach to
training and development will
include training matrices. Review
dates for refresher training is
intrinsic to this process.
Follow Up Observations:
Deputy Director (Organisational Development and Support) is
working with members on a proposed framework for a suitable
scheme to address competency. A timetable has been drafted, the
competency will include H&S and it is anticipated that the HR pro
system will be used as a self service module to request the
appropriate training.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation date: 31 October

134

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

5.5.10

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Medium

Page 143

It is recommended that Human
Resources should alert new officers and
officers changing jobs and taking on
extra responsibilities, of their
responsibility in terms of Health and
Safety at Work to encourage officers to
take an active role regarding the
maintenance of a robust health and
safety environment. Furthermore the
induction programme could be
elaborated to incorporate a greater
element of health and safety for new
recruits and/ or for officer changing jobs.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

2008
There is already some guidance
Safety Action
on the Intranet as to what induction Group, and HR
could embrace, at least in terms of Manager
Health and Safety. This will be
reviewed and strengthened where
appropriate and the profile raised
by tabling at the Safety Action
Group.

ACTION
DATE

Sept. ’07,
(Safety
Action
Group),
and
complete
d
(induction
guidance
)

The induction process is presently
being reviewed by HR.
See 5.5.7 above.
Follow Up Observations:
The Team Leader (HR) stated that some modifications have been
made to the induction process to alert employees to Health and
Safety. A programme of training commenced in Nov 2006 for the
Councils senior management team and a further 12 line managers
have attended the appropriate H&S training, Subject to a review of
the training, this training will cascade down to all personnel.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation date: 31 October
2008

5.6
5.6.6

PROCEDURE MANUALS
It is recommended that officers should be
reminded of the need to ensure their
service areas have adequate procedures
which incorporate their health and safety
needs. Furthermore procedures should

Medium

Agreed.
Procedures for Health and Safety
can only follow from suitable and
sufficient risk assessments, the

Health & Safety
Adviser via SAG
Line Manager

From
March
2008

135

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
be reviewed on a regular basis to ensure
they are kept up to date and reflect any
changes that may have occurred.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

completion of which is a necessary
pre-condition of their preparation.
They would probably not be
appropriate in all instances, only
where the assessment was unduly
complicated and could not be
readily understood by the Officer.
Add this requirement to Health &
Safety Improvement pan for 08/09
and review progress at each SAG.

Page 144

Follow Up Observations:
The Health and Safety adviser and DD (Organisational Dev and
Support) have produced a health and safety action listing for
Deputy Directors to follow, this clearly states the action required of
them and their responsibilities. In addition the checklist is
discussed at the Safety Action Group meetings.
Implemented

5.7

INSPECTIONS & AUDITS

136

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.7.3

It is recommended that service areas
should be reminded of the need to carry
out and record periodic health and safety
inspections.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
Agreed.

Page 145

The Health and Safety Policy
places responsibility for inspection
on the Head of Service Area. This
work is often integrated into the
Property Surveyor’s inspections of
physical conditions, the frequency
of which is set by a risk based
approach to those conditions. If
more frequent inspections are
necessary, then the Deputy
Directors will need to make
alternative arrangements.
To review with DDs at SAG.
To incorporate within HSA’s
annual review of risk assessments,
see 5.3.17 above.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Health & Safety
Adviser via SAG
Deputy Directors

Decembe
r 2007
From
March
2008

Follow Up Observations:

5.7.10

It is recommended that the issues
identified as a result of the property
Surveyor’s inspection that are the
responsibility of the service area, should
be monitored by the appropriate line
manager.

Medium

The H&S adviser states that health and safety inspections are
discussed at the safety action group meetings on a regular basis.
See SAG agenda.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation date: 31 October
2008
Agreed.
Head of Property Decembe
r 2007
Services via SAG.
This process should be reviewed
at the next SAG.

137

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Follow Up Observations:

5.7.14

It is recommended that Property Services
should review the job registration and
risk assessment processes that are in
place.

Medium

Page 146

The Head of Property Services stated that the recommendation
has been implemented; however he will send a reminder to line
manager to ensure that monitoring arrangements continue.
Implemented
Agreed.
Head of Property
March
Services
2008
Property Services has adopted a
risk based approach, but will
review this in the context of
existing resources and being
mindful of the general impact on
the Council as a whole.
Follow Up Observations:
The Head of Property Services will supply evidence to confirm that
a risk based approach is being adopted, in addition consideration
will be given to the generic application of the job registration and
risk assessment form.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation date: 31 October
2008

138

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.7.17

It is recommended that the Health and
Safety Adviser and the Head of Property
Services should liaise to introduce
procedures whereby insurance
documentation for contractors are
reviewed on an annual basis.
Furthermore contractors should be
advised that they are required to alert the
Council to any changes which will impact
on the capacity to deliver services to the
Council.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L
Low

Page 147
5.7.21

It is recommended that Property and
Estates in conjunction with the Council’s
Health and Safety Adviser should
consider the possibility of developing
partnership arrangements with a range of
local businesses who can demonstrate
effective and robust health and safety
arrangements which are compliant with
that of the Council.

Low

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

Currently insurance documentation Health & Safety
is checked, along with other Health Adviser via SAG
and Safety information, when
contractors are accepted (or
otherwise) onto the council’s
approved list. The possibility and
benefit of insisting on an annual
submission will be discussed at the
Safety Action Group.
Head of Property
Services
A review will be conducted
examining how this administrative
process could be conducted on a
corporate basis.

ACTION
DATE
Decembe
r 2007

March
2008

Follow Up Observations:
A copy of an email sent by the Head of Property Services to the
Health and Safety adviser to arrange a meeting to discuss the
recommendation was sent during the course of this audit.
Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation date: 31 Oct
2008
For discussion at Novembe
Agreed.
the Health and
r 2007
This approach is now followed by
Safety Review
many organisations and has the
Board
advantages of greater resilience in
the undertaking of the work and
the potential to achieve higher
levels of safety performance.

Follow Up Observations:
See comments above at 5.7.17

139

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

5.7.23

It is recommended that the Contracts and
Procurement service area should
maintain the Contractors listing for large
value works and contractors to ensure
that the appropriate companies undergo
regular audits and inspection to comply
with the appropriate health and safety
regulations.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Partly Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Oct
2008
Deputy Director
The Procurement Strategy and
March
Contracts and
Plan, which is shortly to go to the
2008
Executive, includes reference to an Procurement
approved supplier list, which is
something the Council should have
for contractors carrying out safety
related works and services.

Page 148

Investigation of implementation
and maintenance of this list.
Follow Up Observations:
The Deputy Director (Contracts and Procurement) stated that this
recommendation will be implemented as part of the Action plan that
accompanies the Procurement Strategy, work on this has only
recently commenced.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Oct 2008

140

INSURANCE – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from internal audit’s follow-up review of
Insurance 2007/2008. The original fieldwork was undertaken in July 2007
and the final report was issued in September 2007. This report was issued on
the 30th April 2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made five recommendations and five were agreed.
satisfactory opinion was issued.

A

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that one recommendation had been successfully
implemented with a further four recommendations remaining ongoing.

3.2

Internal Audit has concluded that the significant delay in undertaking the
restructuring of Accountancy has impacted on the capacity to implement the
recommendations arising from the 2007/2008 audit review. Internal Audit
anticipates that the recommendations will be considered for relevance and
implementation following this review to enable Internal Audit to accurately
report the status of recommendations to the Audit and Governance
Committee.

3.3

Internal Audit will continue to monitor the progress of the management
actions against the ongoing recommendations.

Page 149

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
4.1
4.1.4

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Previous Audit Recommendations
The agreed recommendations made in
the previous audit report which remain
outstanding and are still relevant should
be reviewed and where appropriate
implemented.

Medium

Agreed.

Principal
Technical
Accountant/Ridge
way SSP Joint
Head of Finance

Page 150

To be
reviewed
Jan 2008
after
restructur
ing of
joint
accounta
ncy
service
complete
d

Follow Up Observations:
The implementation of this recommendation has been significantly
delayed due to the restructuring arrangements not being
implemented until January 2008 and other factors such as staff
sickness and work pressures. The Head of Asset Management
proposes to review the outstanding recommendation from the
2003/04 audit review by Dec 2008.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation Date: 31 Dec 2008
4.2
4.2.6

The Council Has Identified and Regularly Reviews Key Risks
The Head of Asset Management should
resume attendance at the Safety Review
Board and Safety Action Group. Internal
Audit considers that attendance at these
meetings would provide a forum for
discussions with various disciplines

Medium

Head of Asset Management has
never attended these meetings.
Not convinced worthwhile and
may be sufficient to review
minutes and raise any issues
arising from claims with officers

Principal
Technical
Accountant/
Ridgeway SSP
Joint Head of
Finance

.

142

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

throughout the authority, which may
highlight areas of risk thereby enabling
the Head of Asset Management to make
a judgement as to whether any of these
risks require corrective action to comply
with the Insurers policy terms and
conditions.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

responsible, as at present.
In general, risks raised by Board
and Group do not affect
insurance cover.

Follow Up Observations:
This recommendation was not agreed, however the Head of Asset
Management has suggested that this could be reviewed after
restructuring of joint accountancy service is completed.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation date 31st Dec 2008

Page 151

4.3
4.3.7

Insurance Policies Are Regularly Reviewed to Ensure That They Are Appropriate
The situation of the Fidelity Guarantee
for designated officers recorded on the
Vale of White Horse District Council
policy who have recently changed
employers to South Oxfordshire District
Council under the shared service
agreement should be discussed and
determined with the Council’s Insurers to
ensure that both Council’s have
adequate cover for these staff.

High

Fidelity Guarantee covers posts
not named officers so should not
matter who employs post holder.

Principal
Technical
Accountant/
Ridgeway SSP
Joint Head of
Finance

To be
reviewed
Jan 2008
after
restructur
ing of
joint
accounta
ncy
service
complete
d.

Follow Up Observations:
The implementation of this recommendation has been significantly
delayed due to the restructuring arrangements not being
implemented until January 2008 and other factors such as staff
sickness and work pressures. The Head of Asset Management

143

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

4.3.9

The Head of Asset Management should
seek clarification from the Council’s
Insurer’s in regard to ‘Works in Progress’
cover for contractors carrying out work
on behalf of the Council.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

Medium

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

proposes to review the outstanding recommendation by Dec 2008.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation date: 31 Dec 2008
My understanding has always
Principal
End
been that any claim on the Council Technical
Decembe
because not covered by a
Accountant
r 2007
contractor would be met by our
(very wide ranging) casualty cover.
Will check.
Follow Up Observations:

Page 152

The Head of Asset Management has stated that clarification was
received which confirmed that the required cover was in place for
contractors, the scope of the Council insurance provides cover for
third part liability.
Implemented

4.9

International Standards Organisation ISO

4.9.2

Should the Ridgeway Shared Service
Partnership wish to continue with the
Internal Standards Organisation (ISO)
registration there is a need to review and
amend the current documentation, and
for this to be amended to reflect the
changes under this agreement, and any
changes that have taken place since
these were last reviewed in May 2003.

Low

Part of whole consideration of ISO
registration under shared service.

Ridgeway SSP
Joint Head of
Finance

To be
reviewed
Jan 2008
after
restructur
ing of
joint
accounta
ncy

144

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE
service
complete
d.

Follow Up Observations:

Page 153

The implementation of this recommendation has been significantly
delayed due to the restructuring arrangements not being
implemented until January 2008 and other factors such as staff
sickness and work pressures. The Head of Asset Management
proposes to review the outstanding recommendation by Dec 2008.
Not Implemented: Revised implementation date: 31 Dec 2008

145

CASH – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from internal audit’s follow-up review of Cash
2007/2008. The original fieldwork was undertaken in May 2007 and the final
report was issued in August 2007. This report was issued on the 1st May
2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made 23 recommendations which related to a number of
service areas. These recommendations have been assessed and a decision
has been made 14 recommendations will be reviewed as part of specific
auditable areas within the 2008/2009 plan. A satisfactory opinion was issued.

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that of the remaining 9 relevant recommendations, 7
recommendations had been successfully implemented with 2 noted as not
implemented.

3.2

The Strategic Director has given an undertaking to draft a corporate Refund
Policy in response to two of the recommendations and a revised completion
date has been agreed for 30 June 2008. The Head of Legal Services has
also stated that following the outcome of the consultation exercise regarding
changes for Property Search Services that consideration will be given to
whether this recommendation is still relevant. A revised implementation date
of 31 October 2008 has been stated for review purposes.

3.3

Internal Audit will continue to monitor the progress of the management
actions against the ongoing recommendations.

Page 154

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.1
5.1.4

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

PREVIOUS AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
Consideration should be given to a
further review and potential
implementation of the recommendations
made in the previous audit report as
these remain, in the opinion of Internal
audit, beneficial to the provision of the
service that the Council provide to its
staff and customers.

Medium

Agreed but not high priority at
moment.

Head of
Accountancy
Joint Head of
Finance
Ridgeway SSP

1
January
2008

Strategic Director
AF/WJ/SB

Page 155

Follow Up Observations:
These recommendations will be reviewed under the following
review: Internal Recharges Review, Budgetary Control Review and
Income Arrangements Review.
5.2

FEES and CHARGES
Local Land Charges

5.2.4
a)

The amount contained with in the
schedule of fees and charges for
Personal Searches should be amended
on the next publication to reflect the
legislative figure.

b)
A review of fees and charges for the
services provided by Local Land Charges
should be undertaken, including bench
marking with other local authorities to

Medium

The information on the website is
already correct but a reminder will
be sent to accountancy that this is
a statutory figure which cannot be
changed by the District.

Senior Legal
Officer (SC)

Medium

A benchmarking exercise should
be undertaken but based on the
experience of other authorities this
is unlikely to result in an overall
increase in revenue rather a

Senior legal
Officer (SC)

By 7
August
2007

31 March
2008

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

ascertain if extra revenue could be
achieved from an increase in fees for
particular services.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

redistribution of charging for
particular services.

Follow Up Observations:
a) Implemented

Page 156

b) Not Implemented: The Head of Legal Services is awaiting
the outcome of the DCLG & Ministry of Justice Consultation
Paper (Jan 2008) relating to Local authority Property Search
Services: Changes for Property Search Services, response
is anticipated by 18 April 2008. Revised implementation
date: 31 Oct 2008
Pest Control

5.2.6
a)

The four missing receipt books should be
found.

b)
Receipts should be issued and used in
sequence.
c)
The operative/s should be issued with no
more that two receipt books at a time;
one in current use and one as back-up.
d)

Medium

Extended search made – 2 books
found (I used, I in Use) To check
with retired PCO for 2 missing
books.

Principal
Environmental
Health Officer
(LEP)

Agreed. Pest Control Officers
informed verbally, will be
confirmed in writing. Due to 2
PCOs some out of sequence will
occur within team.

Principal
Environmental
Health Officer
(LEP)

Agreed - Pest Control Officers
informed, will, be confirmed in
writing.
Agreed – Administration.

Principal
Environmental
Health Officer
(LEP) Head of
Administration
(ER)

Immediat
e

10/8/07

10/8/07
19/7/07

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
A job number should be included on the
receipt to enable verification that all
requests for work have been undertaken
and payment received for these.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

Agreed – payment form to be
altered to include column for Job
number.

e)
f)

Income should be banked promptly and
in total.

Page 157

Reconciliation of manual receipts to
banking, cash office receipt and budget
entries should be undertaken at regular
intervals by an independent officer in the
service area.

Pest Control Officers informed to
bank a.s.a.p. and to not separate
cash and cheque payments to go
on same payment sheet. To
confirm in writing.
Monthly monitoring by Principal
Environmental Health Officer
(PEHO)

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Principal
Environmental
Health Officer
(LEP)
Principal
Environmental
Health Officer
(LEP)
Principal
Environmental
Health Officer
(LEP)

ACTION
DATE

Immediat
e
10/8/07
31/8/07

Follow Up Observations:
a) Books were returned to Admin, Internal Audit confirmed with
Admin that books were in their possession.
b) The Principal Environmental Health Officer stated that revised
guidance has been issued to Pest Control Officers.
c) The Head of Administration stated that this recommendation is
being complied with.
d) A job number is now included on the record of banking sheet.
e) Internal Audit confirmed that banking of income is taking place
on a more frequent basis than the previous monthly deposits
identified from the audit review.
f) The Principal Environmental Health Officer stated that the
recording of the job number on all documentation assists with the

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

reconciliation process.
Implemented
Taxi Licensing
5.2.8
a)

Page 158

b)

The manual receipt books issued to the
previous officer in charge of taxi licensing
should be traced in order that income
taken via this method can be verified.
Fees and charges should be checked for
accuracy before and after publication
with any anomalies reported immediately
to accountancy. As an incorrect charges
could result in the expected amount of
income not being achieved.

Medium

Old receipt books (oldest 2004)
retuned to Administration.

Principal
Licensing Officer
(ND)

7/8/07

The fees regarding the CRB is set
by the Government Agency, we
have no control when these
changes to fees occur.
Regarding the increase in the
garage fees regarding predicted
and expected income, there is no
increased income as the garage
invoice the council the revised fee,
which is then passed on directly to
the licence holder (no monetary
gain). However fees will be
checked more stringently.
Follow Up Observations:
These recommendations will be reviewed under the following
review: Licensing Review.

Community Taxation

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.2.16
a)

b)

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Audit Note:

Medium

Page 159

A decision should be made on the level
of charges for court summons, liability
orders and warrants and this information
made available on the council’s web-site.

Community Taxation (PH)

A formal work practice and procedure
should be agreed between the Vale of
White Horse District Council and CAPITA
covering circumstances where the
payment of an outstanding council tax
debit is received at the court from the
defaulter following the hearing and the
judgement.

Community Taxation (PH)

Still awaiting
response from
Capita
Audit Note:
Still awaiting
response from
Capita

Follow Up Observations:
These recommendations will be reviewed under the following
review: 2008/2009 Council Tax Review.
Overview
a)

July 07

Medium

5.2.21
Staff with responsibility for accepting
income on behalf of the council should
be clear on their duties and
accountability when assigned these
roles.

Agreed. Talks on budgets etc
have been provided.

Acting Head of
Accountancy (AF)

Reference should be made to financial
regulations for all staff who are involved
in financial transactions to ensure that
they are fully aware of all aspects of their
duties in this area in particular; income

Agreed. Talks on Budgets etc
have been provided. Plus
guidance notes are to be put on
intranet.

Acting Head of
Accountancy (AF)

b)
July 07

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

being banked promptly, completely, for
the correct amount and reconciled.

c)

d)

The issue of manual receipt books
should be restricted to the service areas
where permission was granted by the
Director of Corporate Resources to
maintain this facility.

Page 160

Consideration should be given revising
the system for the issue and control of
official receipts whereby officers return
completed receipt books before a new
one is issued. This would give better
control over the system and procedures
and achieve a more managed process.

Head of
Administration
Agreed.

19/7/07

(ER)
Head of
Administration

19/07/07

(ER)
Agreed. Will Internal Audit e-mail
the instruction to users?

Internal Audit
(MG)

Actioned
Follow Up Observations:
These recommendations will be reviewed under the following
review:
2008/09 Income Arrangements review, 2008/09 General Ledger
Audit.

5.4

NIL BALANCES

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.4.5
a)

b)

A review should be undertaken of the
way in which the income budgets are set
to ensure expected revenue is set
realistically.

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

Medium
Agreed. Will do at budget time.
Agreed. Should be done monthly.
Large sums are noted via T,
maintenance process.

Income due regularly from other
authorities/sources should be monitored
to ensure that it is received on its due
date to ensure that the Council obtains
full advantage from these funds.

Agreed.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER
Acting Head of
Accountancy (AF)

ACTION
DATE
1 Dec 07

Acting Head of
Accountancy (AF)
Waste Services
Manager

Immediat
e

Page 161

Follow Up Observations:
These recommendations will be reviewed under the following
review: 2008/09 Budgetary Control Review
5.4.7
a)

b)

There should be a formal arrangement
with the council’s contractor for the
collection of revenue from public
conveniences. This should stipulate the
terms and conditions including; the
collection, banking, management
information and any provisions which
apply to the service. This should be by
means of a short contract or letters of
agreement/appointment which should be
arranged by Legal Services.
A more robust system of monitoring
income form this source should be set in

Medium

Have contacted JC De Caux to ask Waste Services
for appropriate standard
Manager
documentation.
and
Involvement of Legal Services
The Head of
Probably not necessary due to
Property Services
relatively low-level nature.

1 Oct 07

Payment claims will be reconciled
against usage readings.

Next
Payment
date

Waste Services
Manager

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

place.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

and
The Head of
Property Services

Follow Up Observations:
These recommendations will be reviewed under the following
review: Environmental Services Review.
5.5

Page 162

5.5.7

CANCELLATIONS and REFUNDS
To provide conformity across all service
areas of the Council a corporate policy
for refunds and cancellations of
transactions should be agreed and
implemented.
The policy should provide guidance
notes on the operation of the scheme
and official documentation for use on
such transactions.

Medium

Agreed. Could use the best of
existing informal policies. Some
one needs to lead on this.
Cash would suggest a joint effort
by Cash Office – Abingdon Local
Service Point and Accountancy.
Happy to take part.

Head of
Accountancy
Joint Head of
Finance
Ridgeway SSP

1
January
2008

Strategic Director

Follow Up Observations:
The Strategic Director has stated that he will take responsibility for
the implementation of this recommendation and has requested an
extension to 30 June 2008 to facilitate the completion of the
Refund policy.
Not Implemented: Revised Implementation date: 30 June 2008

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from Internal Audit’s follow-up review of
Environmental Protection 2007/2008. The original fieldwork was undertaken
in August 2007 and the final report was issued in October 2007. This report
was issued on the 10th June 2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made four recommendations and four were agreed. A Good
(Full) opinion was issued.

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that three of the four recommendations have been
successfully implemented, with one recommendation having been partly
implemented.

3.2

Internal Audit acknowledges that progress to date on the Uniform system has
been limited partly due to resources issues, and the report writing module not
delivering the expected performance reports as expected. However the Team
Leader (Environmental Health) considers there is further scope to deliver
improvement in the Uniform system which requires involvement from another
service area. Discussions are currently taking place as to how ICT can assist
with this issue.

3.3

Internal Audit will continue to monitor the management response to the
implementation of the recommendation concerning the Uniform system in six
months time.

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
4.1

Internal Audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for
their assistance with the follow-up audit.

Page 163

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.3
5.3.4

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

NOISE NUISANCE AND ABATEMENT NOTICES

Page 164

The Team Leader (Environmental Medium
Protection) continues liaise and negotiate
a way forward with the Property Data
Manager with a view to resolving the
situation with Uniform to enable the
system to be fully functional so as to
meet all of the requirements of the
service.

Environmental Health Service has Team
Leader 31.3.2008
already purchased a “report writer” Environmental
programme from CAPS Solutions Protection. (PL)
Ltd. as a general report writing tool
to enable performance reporting,
which is the main issue. Managers
have also had some initial training.
However,
some
technical
difficulties have been encountered
which are due to it being a new
product and requiring further input
from CAPS Ltd. In the meantime
the
system
administrator
is
preparing some access reports as
a “work around”. It is anticipated
these problems should be resolved
by the end of the financial year
resulting in a suite of performance
management reports.
Follow Up Observations:
The Team Leader (Env Health) stated that progress to date on the
implementation of this recommendation has been limited partly due
to resource issues, and the report writing module not delivering the
expected performance reports as expected. The Team Leader
(Env. Health) stated that there is scope to further progress the
implementation of this recommendation and Internal Audit will
review management response for the implementation of this
recommendation in six months.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Partly Implemented
Revised Implementation Date: 5 Dec 2008

5.4
5.4.6

Page 165

a

b

c

FIXED PENALTY NOTICES
The cash office receipt number and the Low
figure of the amount paid should be
included on the monitoring schedule of
Fixed Penalty Notices.

The monitoring schedule will be Team
Leader 30.11.20
revised to take account of this Environmental
07
requirement.
Protection. (PL)

Spoilt Fixed Penalty Notices should be
recorded on the schedule as this would
provide a full management/audit trail.

The monitoring schedule will be
revised to take account of this
requirement.

Where a Fixed Penalty Notices is not
issued, all three copies should be
retained.

The fixed penalty notice procedure
will be amended to highlight this
requirement.
Follow Up Observations:
Internal Audit was able to confirm that Env Health has implemented
the recommendation and are now recording the cash office receipt
number against the appropriate fixed penalty notice, a schedule of
issue of the fixed penalty notice books are also being retained.
Internal Audit acquired evidence to support the above changes.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
Implemented

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

Page 166

SOLL LEISURE CONTRACT – FOLLOW UP 2007/2008
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1

This report details the findings from Internal Audit’s follow-up review of the
SOLL Leisure Contract 2007/2008. The original fieldwork was undertaken in
August 2007 and the final report was issued in November 2007. This report
was issued on the 10th June 2008.

2. INITIAL AUDIT FINDINGS
2.1

The final report made six recommendations and six were agreed.
satisfactory opinion was issued.

A

3. FOLLOW UP MAIN FINDINGS
3.1

The review found that all six recommendations have been successfully
implemented within the specified timetable.

3.2

The appointment of a monitoring officer has served to improve the regularity
of the monitoring inspections which have incorporated the recommendations
arising from the Internal Audit review of the monitoring arrangements.
Adequate monitoring arrangements for health and safety, staff qualification
and CRB checks have been imposed to provide the Council with assurance
that the leisure services contract is being delivery in accordance with the
specification of the contract.

3.3

Internal Audit can confirm a further review of the Soll Leisure Contract will be
undertaken in 2008/2009 as part of the 2008/2009 Internal Audit Plan.

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
4.1

Internal Audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for
their assistance with the follow-up audit.

Page 167

FOLLOW-UP OBSERVATIONS
REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.1
5.1.22

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

ACTION
DATE

ADHERENCE TO CONTRACT TERMS
It is recommended that the Leisure Medium
Facilities Manager should undertake an
annual review of the insurance
documentation relating to the public
liability insurance for the leisure facilities
within their jurisdiction.

Agreed
Will be done as part of the
routine
monitoring
once
monitoring officer is appointed.

Monitoring
Officer

30 April
2008

Follow Up Observations:

Page 168

Internal Audit was advised by the Leisure Facilities Manager that
the insurance information will be checked at one of the forthcoming
monitoring inspections undertaken by the Leisure Facilities
Manager or the Monitoring officer in this year.
Implemented
5.2
5.2.7

MONITORING INFORMATION
It is recommended that a timetable for Medium
regular monitoring inspection visits is
adopted as soon as possible and that
officers should attempt to adhere to the
inspection timetable thereafter.

Agreed, on the appointment of Monitoring
the monitoring officer.
Officer

30 April
2008

Follow Up Observations:
A monitoring officer has been appointed and inspections are taking
place on a regular basis for each site, Copies of inspection reports
were given to Internal Audit for retention.
Implemented

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION
5.2.13

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

It is recommended that the Leisure Medium
Facilities Manager should undertake
checks for and ensure that adequate
evidence is provided by the Contractor
on a regular basis to assure the Council
that the terms of the contract regarding
assurance (e.g.: staff qualifications,
training etc) are being adhered to.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
Agreed.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

Monitoring
Currently this is undertaken Officer
very irregularly.
Until a
monitoring officer is in place
this situation will continue.

ACTION
DATE
30 April
2008

Follow Up Observations:

Page 169

Regular inspections are occurring which include specific health and
safety, staff qualification and training reviews. Last inspection took
place in March 2008. Electronic copies of the inspection reports
were given to Internal Audit to confirm that inspections are taking
place as required.
Implemented
5.4

COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS – SITE VISIT

5.4.7

It is recommended that the Contracts and Low
Procurement service area should explore
whether funding could be made available
through the Council’s Section 106
arrangement to improve, expand and
develop the facilities already present at
Wantage Leisure Centre.

Agreed.

Deputy Director 31
Contracts
& January
Already under consideration
Procurement.
2008
with colleagues in planning.

Follow Up Observations:
The Leisure Facilities Manager stated that approximately 28K has
been obtained from Section 106 agreement for improvements at
Wantage Leisure Centre. Internal Audit obtained the relevant
documentation to confirm this situation.

REPORT
INTERNAL AUDIT
WP REF.
RECOMMENDATION

5.4.10

RISK
RATING
H/M/L

It is recommended that the Leisure Medium
Facilities Manager undertake a periodic
reconciliation of the lists of staff to police
checks undertaken to ensure that no
employees involved with children and
vulnerable members of the public are
missed.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
Implemented
Agreed.
Will
be
undertaken
when
monitoring officer is in place.

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER

Monitoring
Officer

ACTION
DATE

30 April
2008

Follow Up Observations:

Page 170

The Leisure Facilities Manager stated that CRB checks took place
in March 2008, and future sample checks are incorporated into the
monitoring officer inspection timetable.
Implemented
5.5
5.5.7

HEALTH and SAFETY
It is recommended that the Leisure Low
Facilities Manager should request a copy
of the external Health and Safety report
regarding the respective leisure facilities
to assist him in the development of the
risk based health and safety inspections
programme. The implementation of the
revised health and safety inspection
should ensure compliance to Health and
Safety Regulations.

Agreed.

Leisure
Request
made,
already Facilities
considered for WHLTC in July Manager
2007.

31
Decemb
er 2007

Follow Up Observations:
The Leisure Facilities Manager has obtained a copy of the external
Health and Safety report for Wantage Leisure Centre, a copy was
also provided to Internal audit for retention.
Implemented

Agenda Item 9
Annual Audit and Inspection Letter
March 2008

Annual Audit and
Inspection Letter
Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 171

External audit is an essential element in the process of accountability for public money and
makes an important contribution to the stewardship of public resources and the corporate
governance of public services.
Audit in the public sector is underpinned by three fundamental principles.
x

Auditors are appointed independently from the bodies being audited.

x

The scope of auditors' work is extended to cover not only the audit of financial
statements but also value for money and the conduct of public business.

x

Auditors may report aspects of their work widely to the public and other key
stakeholders.

The duties and powers of auditors appointed by the Audit Commission are set out in the
Audit Commission Act 1998, the Local Government Act 1999 and the Commission's
statutory Code of Audit Practice. Under the Code of Audit Practice, appointed auditors are
also required to comply with the current professional standards issued by the independent
Auditing Practices Board.
Appointed auditors act quite separately from the Commission and in meeting their statutory
responsibilities are required to exercise their professional judgement independently of both
the Commission and the audited body.

Status of our reports
This report provides an overall summary of the Audit Commission’s assessment of the
Council, drawing on audit, inspection and performance assessment work and is prepared
by your Relationship Manager.
In this report, the Commission summarises findings and conclusions from the statutory
audit, which have previously been reported to you by your appointed auditor. Appointed
auditors act separately from the Commission and, in meeting their statutory
responsibilities, are required to exercise their professional judgement independently of
the Commission (and the audited body). The findings and conclusions therefore remain
those of the appointed auditor and should be considered within the context of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit
Commission.
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are:
x

prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited
Bodies issued by the Audit Commission; and

x

addressed to members or officers and prepared for the sole use of the audited body;
no responsibility is taken by auditors to any member or officer in their individual
capacity, or to any third party.

Copies of this report
If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille, on tape, or in
a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070.
© Audit Commission 2008
For further information on the work of the Commission please contact:
Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ
Tel: 020 7828 1212 Fax: 020 7976 6187 Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421
www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 172

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň Contents 3

Contents
Key messages

4

Action needed by the Council

5

Purpose, responsibilities and scope

6

How is Vale of White Horse Council performing?

7

Direction of Travel report

7

What evidence is there of the Council improving outcomes?

7

The audit of the accounts and value for money

13

Looking ahead

16

Closing remarks

17

Availability of this letter

17

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 173

4 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň Key messages

Key messages
1

Over the last year the Council has maintained its momentum and made good
progress in delivering improvement. It has clarified its aims and objectives and
improved its service planning and performance management framework.
Organisational capacity is now substantially more developed through new
structures and improved processes. The Council’s organisational development
programme now fully underpins the improvement agenda and is clearly focused
on challenging and supporting services to deliver improved outcomes.

2

The Council recognises that it has yet to ensure that all of its priorities are
supported by clear and specific outcome based targets and to clarify the
outcomes of organisational development actions in terms of visible improvements
the community would recognise.

3

The Council has achieved an improved Use of Resources score this year as a
result of an improved balance between service quality and costs and greater
rigour around its financial standing. The improved value for money score has
been the result of focused and concerted effort over the last few years. These
improvements are being achieved in the context of one of the lowest council
taxes in the country and are something that the Council should be proud of.

4

The Council is achieving strong performance on the Audit Commission’s basket
of key indicators relative to others. However, there is still scope to improve
performance in important indicators that deteriorated over the year and are
performing at below average levels such as those related to revenues and
benefits and cleanliness.

5

Our Governance Report raised some issues around the way in which the Council
responded to changes with the local government 'SORP', which dictates the
format of the financial statements. Further changes are required for 2007/08, and
this will need to be well planned.

6

Significant issues were highlighted for improvement within the statement of
internal control, together with the Council's action plan for addressing them. With
the broader Annual Governance Statement required for 2007/08, it will be
important to ensure that this is considered in a wider forum than just the Finance
Department.

7

The Council has been innovative in pursuing joint financial services contracts with
South Oxfordshire District Council and a private provider. However, the
arrangement with the contractor is not yet delivering the improvements it is
designed to and there have been dips in performance and internal control. The
issues are well recognised by the Council. The Council now needs to ensure that
planned actions to address concerns are delivered.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 174

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň Key messages 5

Action needed by the Council
8

The Council has sustained focus and done much to clarify and further its
objectives. This clarity of purpose has improved cohesiveness across the
organisation and makes the organisation well placed to further improve its
performance. The Council now needs to strengthen that focus and ensure that
expected outcomes for the community are clarified and delivered particularly in
weaker areas.

9

The Council should monitor the outcomes of the Improvement plan agreed with
Capita to make sure it delivers the service improvements anticipated.

10

Plans need to be made and achieved to meet the changed requirements for both
the financial statements and the new Annual Governance Statement.

11

Looking ahead, the Council and its partners need to work closely together over
the next year to ensure that they are ready to meet the expectations of the new
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) performance assessment framework.
The CAA will focus on the future prospects for local areas and the quality of life
for people living there, and will emphasise the experience of citizens, people who
use services and local taxpayers. It will therefore assess the effectiveness of local
partnership working.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 175

6 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň Purpose, responsibilities and scope

Purpose, responsibilities and scope
12

This report provides an overall summary of the Audit Commission's assessment
of the Council. It draws on the most recent Comprehensive Performance
Assessment (CPA), the findings and conclusions from the audit of the Council for
2006/07 and from any inspections undertaken since the last Annual Audit and
Inspection Letter.

13

We have addressed this letter to members as it is the responsibility of the Council
to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business
and that it safeguards and properly accounts for public money. We have made
recommendations to assist the Council in meeting its responsibilities.

14

This letter also communicates the significant issues to key external stakeholders,
including members of the public. We will publish this letter on the Audit
Commission website at www.audit-commission.gov.uk. In addition the Council is
planning to publish it on its website.

15

As your appointed auditor I am responsible for planning and carrying out an audit
that meets the requirements of the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice
(the Code). Under the Code, I review and report on:
x

the Council’s accounts;

x

whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (value for money
conclusion); and

x

whether the Council's best value performance plan has been prepared and
published in line with legislation and statutory guidance.

16

This letter includes the latest assessment on the Council’s performance under the
CPA framework, including our Direction of Travel report, and the results of any
inspections carried out by the Audit Commission under section 10 of the Local
Government Act 1999. It summarises the key issues arising from the CPA and
any such inspections. Inspection reports are issued in accordance with the Audit
Commission’s duty under section 13 of the 1999 Act. There were no such
inspections in 2006/07.

17

We have listed the reports issued to the Council relating to 2006/07 audit and
inspection work at the end of this letter.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 176

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň How is Vale of White Horse Council
performing? 7

How is Vale of White Horse Council
performing?
18

Vale of White Horse District Council was assessed as Fair in the Comprehensive
Performance Assessment carried out in 2004. These assessments have been
completed in all district councils and we are now updating these assessments,
through an updated corporate assessment, in councils where there is evidence of
change and the council has requested it. Vale of White Horse Council has not
requested re-categorisation. The following chart is the latest position across all
district councils.

Figure 1

Overall performance of district councils in CPA

Source: Audit Commission

Direction of Travel report
What evidence is there of the Council improving
outcomes?
19

Based on the Audit Commission’s basket of key indicators, the Council is
achieving strong performance relative to others. Some 37 per cent of indicators
are in the best 25 per cent performance nationally, and 67 per cent are above
average. Furthermore, satisfaction with the Council and its key services is high.
However, for the second year, the Council’s rate of improvement is below the
average range for district councils and one of the lowest nationally. While we
acknowledge the difficulties of improving indicators that are performing strongly,
there is still scope to improve performance in important indicators that
deteriorated over the year and are performing at below average levels such as
those related to revenues and benefits and cleanliness.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 177

8 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň How is Vale of White Horse Council
performing?
20

More detailed analysis of the Council’s performance in delivering local and
national priorities is set out below.

Creating a cleaner, greener, safer and healthier community and
environment
21

Overall, the Council’s services are making a good contribution towards this broad
agenda, although performance in some areas is mixed.

22

Performance in managing waste remains strong. Recycling and composting rates
are continuing to improve and due to an expansion of the Council's Brown Bin
service, rates of composting in particular have improved significantly and are
currently exceeding end of year targets for 2007/08. The amount of waste
collected remains low, at levels of the best 25 per cent of councils and more
households in the district are served by kerbside collections following an increase
in mini recycling centres.

23

The planning service is also continuing to improve and customer satisfaction
levels are high. It exceeded development control targets in all three categories,
improving performance in determining both 'major' and 'minor' applications,
although performance in determining ‘other’ applications remained below
average. The number of planning decisions overturned remained low and at
levels of the best performing councils and the Council's planning service checklist
score improved from the worst 25 per cent of councils to above average.

24

Performance in improving standards of cleanliness and street scene is mixed.
Satisfaction with the cleanliness of public spaces improved on 2003/04 levels and
levels of graffiti and flyposting remained low. However, the Council took longer to
deal with abandoned vehicles than last year, and did not achieve its target
performance (although overall numbers remained low) and the percentage of
significantly littered land increased. The Council has commenced a
co-ordinated programme to address 'grot spots' and is implementing a Joint
Improvement Plan with the Council's waste, recycling and street cleansing
contractors to improve performance. Half year reporting indicates that there has
been a significant improvement.

25

Some progress is also being made around air quality in Abingdon and Bottley,
although relative priorities and financial constraints mean that this taking time to
come through.

26

We discuss actions falling within the ‘safer’ and ‘healthier’ agenda in our later
section on 'wider community outcomes’.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 178

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň How is Vale of White Horse Council
performing? 9

Working with partners to help facilitate the provision of
affordable housing
27

The Council is increasing the supply of affordable housing in the district. It
returned 67 vacant properties back to use in 2006/07, which included
61 properties that were acquired for households through rent deposit schemes. It
provided a further 42 units of affordable housing, which was considerably less
than planned. This was largely because of the number of earlier than anticipated
completions that fell into the previous year's total and some delayed starts.
However, the Council had completed 133 affordable units up to the end of
December and is on track to exceed its year end target. It is also on target to
exceed its contribution to the Oxfordshire LAA stretch target for affordable
housing.

28

The Council's investment in homeless prevention is delivering positive outcomes.
During 2006/07 housing advice casework was successful in providing solutions
for more households and fewer households made repeat homeless applications.
This suggests that the solutions found for homeless people are practical and
sustainable. As a result, the Council is reducing the number of households in
temporary accommodation - and is on track to meet its government reduction
target three years early. However, compared to other councils, households still
spent too long in temporary accommodation, although data up to the end of
December 2007 shows that this is also reducing.

29

Performance indicators relating to the Council’s Housing Benefit service showed
a marked deterioration during the year. The Council has attributed this to the
systems conversions required as part of the transfer of the Revenues and
Benefits service to Capita during the middle of 2006 but also to having previously
over-stated some aspects of performance. The Council has agreed an
Improvement Plan with Capita and more recent data for 2007/08 shows some
improvement, although the Council will not meet its year end targets.

Wider Community Outcomes and access to services
30

The Council is working with its Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership
(CDRP) to reduce crime and fear of crime in the district. During 2006/07 British
Crime Survey (BCS) reported crime reduced by 4.5 per cent against the 2003/04
baseline. There were reductions in three out of six of the BCS categories reported
in the Audit Commission’s basket of crime indicators and the numbers of
burglaries, robberies and motor vehicle thefts were all below average levels.
However, for the CDRP, violence against the person and sexual offences
increased during 2006/07 to levels of the worst 25 per cent for the family of
community safety partnerships defined as similar by the Home Office. More
recent data shows an 8.1 per cent reduction in overall crime and continued
reduction in most of the CDRP crime categories. The Council’s work through
‘Nightsafe’ - a multi-disciplinary approach aimed at reducing alcohol related crime
and anti-social behaviour, has now been rolled out across the Council’s three
market towns and is considered to be contributing to the recent fall in levels of
common assault.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 179

10 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň How is Vale of White Horse Council
performing?
31

Last year we reported that the Council’s progress in delivering the ‘healthy’ theme
of its ‘cleaner, greener, safer and healthy’ corporate objective had been mixed
and that delivery of some priority outcomes had slipped. By the end of 2006/07
there was still little evidence of outcomes that the community would recognise as
most of the Council’s priority actions related to developing or reviewing plans and
strategies. Work has progressed during the current year to clarify the health
agenda and this has culminated in a draft Health Improvement Plan that is
currently being consulted upon. The draft plan seeks to recognise and optimise
the contribution that the Council’s services and projects make towards improving
the health of people living and working in the Vale. With further refinement,
including key actions and SMART targets, this has the potential to provide an
effective framework for planning, delivering and monitoring actions towards
achieving improved health outcomes that has previously been absent for this
agenda. Furthermore, the development of the draft plan, in consultation with
Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust, helps to enhance joined health and well-being
planning and provision across the county as a whole.

32

During 2006/07 and the first half of 2007/08 the Council has accelerated delivery
of its priority actions around improving customer focus and consultation,
extending access to services and promoting diversity. Work on equalities and
diversity has gained strong momentum and the Council has introduced and
updated some important strategies to improve its approach. It has adopted an
equality and diversity scheme, corporate equalities action plan, and is on target to
complete its programme of equality impact assessments on key services by the
end of the financial year. Equalities considerations have also been built into key
corporate and planning processes and mandatory training made available to staff
and councillors. These improvements provide a solid framework to enable the
Council to make up lost ground in delivering the equalities agenda.

33

The Council has progressed plans to improve and modernise access to services.
It has increased the number of its buildings that are suitable for and accessible to
disabled people from 83 per cent to 100 per cent. It has recently developed a
Payment Strategy that is focused on providing better value for money, and
improving customer access by increasing the range of payment routes available.
It has also re-launched the Council's website following improvements to
accessibility and usability. Work has progressed to identify additional services
and processes to transfer to the Council's contact centre, although it is too soon
to identify any tangible improvements to customer service from this.

34

The Council is progressing its plans to improve internal and external
communication. Internally, the Council has responded to issues identified in its
staff MORI survey and has made improvements to Team Brief, staff newsletters
and briefings that have strengthened two way communications between staff,
managers and the senior management team. It has recently agreed its
consultation strategy which incorporates a comprehensive action plan, including
actions to engage with hard to reach groups. We have highlighted concerns
about the Council's limited progress with consultation in the past, so we welcome
this as an important step towards ensuring that consultation becomes embedded
in the Council's every day business and is routinely used to shape and improve
services.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 180

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň How is Vale of White Horse Council
performing? 11

Value for Money
35

The Council is achieving better value for money. This is reflected in the improved
value for money score and overall Use of Resources score, which increased from
level ‘2' to '3'. The Council’s overall costs remain low compared to other councils
and generally expenditure is average or below average for key services, showing
comparatively lower spend than last year. At the same time, performance has
been sustained or improved in some key services, and satisfaction levels are
high. It has also continued to strengthen its approach to managing value for
money. For example it has improved monitoring of its planned efficiencies by
incorporating Service Prioritisation Plans (initiatives agreed through the budget
process to deliver up efficiencies) within its quarterly corporate monitoring
arrangements.

36

The Council has continued to seek out ways to improve value for money through
effective partnership and procurement. The shared financial service arrangement
with the Vale of White Horse, for example, is designed to provide a more efficient
and cost effective means of delivering financial services such as internal audit,
and is already delivering improvements. However, problems with the
implementation of the contract with the external provider, Capita, mean that this is
not yet delivering the service improvements to the revenue and benefits service
that it promised. However, the Council's innovation in setting up the contract with
Capita, linked to the requirement to deliver top quartile performance, provides a
strong basis for future improvement
Robustness of the Council's plans for improvement and effectiveness of
improvement planning.

37

Actions during 2006/07 to clarify aims and objectives and strengthen links to
service plans and appraisals have led to clear improvements to the Council’s
improvement plans and service planning framework and these are reflected in
2007/08 corporate documents. The Council has also responded well to our
recommendations from the recent ‘Securing Improvement’ report by ensuring that
actions from its Organisational Development programme are supported by clearer
anticipated outcomes and accountability for delivery within its 2008/09 plans.
However, it remains that not all of the Council’s priorities are supported by clear
and specific outcome based targets and it is unclear what some actions have
achieved or are intending to achieve in terms of visible improvements for the
community. This has been a long standing weakness in the Council’s plans and
one that continues to be an area for improvement.

38

The Council has also improved its performance management arrangements. It
has streamlined quarterly corporate governance reporting and included additional
monitoring of business improvement initiatives. This means that members and
senior officers are better focused on monitoring delivery of the Council's key
objectives and milestones and value for money. However, the performance
management arrangements underpinning the Council’s contribution to the
Oxfordshire LAA and Oxfordshire Sustainable Community Strategy are not clear
for all themes, as not all targets to which the Council is contributing feature in
service plans or monitoring arrangements.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 181

12 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň How is Vale of White Horse Council
performing?
39

During the year, the Vale Partnership has commenced a review of its Community
Strategy and development of its Local Development Framework - two key policy
documents that will shape the future of the Vale over the next 20 years. To date,
the Council has published a joint 'Issues and Options' report that forms the basis
for consultation and debate. It is clear from the Council's approach so far that the
Community Strategy and the LDF core strategy are being developed in tandem to
ensure spatial and community considerations are aligned. This approach
provides assurance that the Council and its partners are pursuing a
co-ordinated approach to identifying the key issues and challenges for the future
in the Vale and the actions needed to address them.

40

The Council is generally effective at implementing its improvement plans, in terms
of achieving its key objectives and milestones and it achieved the majority of its
priority actions during 2006/07. Those actions that were not implemented to
timescale were mainly around communications and customer access, the
reasons for which being linked to the capacity issues highlighted last year. These
actions have been carried over into 2007/08 and are now progressing.
Capacity to deliver improvement plans

41

Performance indicators relating to people and capacity show strong performance.
Levels of sickness absence, ill health retirements and employees with disabilities
and from BME groups are all at levels of the best performing councils.

42

During 2006/07 and the first half of this year, the Council has accelerated its work
to improve capacity and our recent ‘Securing Improvement’ report acknowledges
this. It concludes that the Council’s organisational development programme now
fully underpins the improvement agenda and is clearly focused on challenging
and supporting services to deliver improved outcomes. It found that
improvements in capacity were particularly manifest in the level of senior
commitment and leadership now being shown and the clearer links between the
corporate plan and all portfolio holders. This clarity of purpose was found to be
contributing to better understanding, trust and cohesiveness throughout the
organisation, which in turn was leading to a more inclusive approach and
ensuring that managers and team leaders were being given opportunities to
develop both their own skills and those of their staff. However, our work identified
that there were still some managerial skills gaps for the Council to address,
particularly for taking a more commercial and business-orientated approach
through procurement, partnerships, contract and project management.

43

The Council is enhancing its capacity to deliver its business objectives through
improvements to its HR function. It has implemented a number of actions aimed
at transforming HR from an employee focused service to that of a strategic
business partner. The service has been restructured to facilitate this change in
focus and a number of actions aimed at strengthening the strategic role of the
service and improving efficiency have been implemented, with further actions
planned over the current year.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 182

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň The audit of the accounts and value for
money 13

The audit of the accounts and value for
money
44

As your appointed auditor I have reported separately to the Audit and
Governance Committee on the issues arising from our 2006/07 audit and have
issued a governance report including:
x

an unqualified opinion on your accounts on 28 September 2007;

x

a conclusion on your vfm arrangements to say that these arrangements are
adequate except for the arrangements to maintain a sound system of internal
control on 28 September 2007; and

x

my report on the best value performance plan confirming that the Plan has
been audited.

Use of Resources
45

46

The findings of the auditor are an important component of the CPA framework
described above. In particular the Use of Resources score is derived from the
assessments made by the auditor in the following areas.
x

Financial reporting (including the preparation of the accounts of the Council
and the way these are presented to the public).

x

Financial management (including how the financial management is integrated
with strategy to support council priorities).

x

Financial standing (including the strength of the Council's financial position).

x

Internal control (including how effectively the Council maintains proper
stewardship and control of its finances).

x

Value for money (including an assessment of how well the Council balances
the costs and quality of its services).

For the purposes of the CPA we have assessed the Council’s arrangements for
use of resources in these five areas as follows.

Table 1
Element

Assessment

Financial reporting
Financial management
Financial standing
Internal control
Value for money

2 out of 4
3 out of 4
3 out of 4
2 out of 4
3 out of 4

Overall assessment of the Audit Commission

3 out of 4

(Note: 1 = lowest, 4 = highest)

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 183

14 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň The audit of the accounts and value for
money

The key issues arising from the audit
Accounts
47

As in previous years the Council worked well with auditors to achieve a good
accounts process with generally prompt and accurate responses. However, as
reported in our Annual Governance report, issued in September 2007, there were
a number of material amendments to the accounts. The changes to the
Statement of Recommended Practice 2007 (SORP) presented challenges to Vale
of White Horse, as it did to many councils. There are further changes to be made
to the Statement of Recommended Practice in 2007/08 and it is important that
these changes are fully anticipated.

48

As part of the accounts process we required full disclosure of the concerns
around internal financial control with respect to the recent financial services
contracts. The final SIC contained details of the concerns with an action plan to
address them. It is essential that the weaknesses are addressed promptly.

49

The SIC is being replaced by an Annual Governance Statement which is much
broader in remit. This will require input from departments across the Council (not
just Finance as has been the case for the SIC), and will need to be carefully
co-ordinated if the deadlines are to be met.

Data Quality
50

The Council demonstrates clear commitment and accountability for data quality
as part of its overall approach to performance management. The Council does
not have a corporate data quality policy but it does have clear guidance and
procedures that set out its expectations and the processes that should be
followed for collating and reporting BVPIs and local performance indicators
(LPI's). Arrangements are well supported by the Principal Performance
Management Officer, widely communicated and apply to all sections of the
Council. The Council could enhance their approach further by formally defining
corporate objectives for data quality, agreeing actions for improvement and an
associated delivery plan within a corporate data quality strategy and policy.

Use of Resources
51

The Council has achieved an improved overall score this year as a result of an
improved balance between service quality and costs. This has been the result of
focused and concerted effort over the last few years. In 2006/07 the Council’s
overall costs remained low compared to other councils and generally expenditure
was average or below average for key services, showing comparatively lower
spend to the previous year. At the same time, performance was sustained or
improved in some key services and satisfaction levels are high. These
improvements to value for money are being achieved in the context of one of the
lowest council taxes in the country and are something that the Council should be
proud of.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 184

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň The audit of the accounts and value for
money 15
52

53

In addition we noted some other improvements in the year:
x

production of summary accounts;

x

publication of the previous two years' Audit and Inspection Letters; and

x

articulation of the minimum level of general fund balances that will guide
members in making key financial and service decisions.

The improvements noted above have resulted in an improved overall score but
the Council needs to both maintain its improvement journey and address some of
the weaker areas. In particular areas for improvement are as follows.
x

Promote greater external accountability by consulting stakeholders on
whether an annual report should be produced and making the summary
accounts more user friendly.

x

Develop the narrative that reviews budget position alongside service
performance to link the two.

x

Refocus and strengthen risk management in relation to reports to members,
risk champion roles and refreshing training.

x

Complete an assurance framework to support the Annual Governance
Statement.

x

Roll out the VFM service assessment framework to all key services and
extend benchmarking and cost analysis.

x

Improve control over the new financial services contracts to ensure that they
deliver the value for money improvements expected, risks are effectively
managed and financial procedures are drafted and followed to support
internal control.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 185

16 Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň Looking ahead

Looking ahead
54

The public service inspectorates are currently developing a new performance
assessment framework, the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA). CAA will
provide the first holistic independent assessment of the prospects for local areas
and the quality of life for people living there. It will put the experience of citizens,
people who use services and local tax payers at the centre of the new local
assessment framework, with a particular focus on the needs of those whose
circumstances make them vulnerable. It will recognise the importance of effective
local partnership working, the enhanced role of Sustainable Communities
Strategies and Local Area Agreements and the importance of councils in leading
and shaping the communities they serve.

55

CAA will result in reduced levels of inspection and better coordination of
inspection activity. The key components of CAA will be a joint inspectorate annual
area risk assessment and reporting performance on the new national indicator
set, together with a joint inspectorate annual direction of travel assessment and
an annual use of resources assessment. The auditors’ use of resources
judgements will therefore continue, but their scope will be widened to cover
issues such as commissioning and the sustainable use of resources.

56

The first results of our work on CAA will be published in the autumn of 2009. This
will include the performance data from 2008/09, the first year of the new Local
Area Agreements.

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 186

Annual Audit and Inspection Letter Ň Closing remarks 17

Closing remarks
57

This letter has been discussed and agreed with the Chief Executive and the
Strategic Director (Chief Financial Officer). A copy of the letter will be presented
at the Executive on 4 April 2008. Copies need to be provided to all Council
members.

58

Further detailed findings, conclusions and recommendations on the areas
covered by audit and inspection work are included in the reports issued to the
Council during the year.

Table 2

59

Reports issued

Report

Date of issue

Audit and inspection plan

March 2006

Securing Improvement

January 2008

Annual Governance Report
Opinion on financial statements

September 2007
September 2007

Value for money conclusion

September 2007

Annual audit and inspection letter

March 2008

The Council has taken a positive and constructive approach to audit and
inspection work, and I wish to thank the Council's staff for their support and
cooperation during the audit.

Availability of this letter
60

This letter will be published on the Audit Commission’s website at
www.audit-commission.gov.uk, and also on the Council’s website.

Maria Grindley
Relationship Manager
March 2008

Vale of White Horse District Council

Page 187

Agenda Item 10

Our reference

OX01108

2 June 2008
Steve Bishop
Corporate Director
Vale of White Horse DC
Abbey House
Abingdon
Oxfordshire
OX14 3JE

Direct line
Email

08447 988958
a-ockleston@auditcommission.gov.uk

Dear Steve

Supplementary Audit opinion plan 2007/08
You will recall that I issued the initial audit plan for 2007/08 in April 2007 which set out the
work that I proposed in order to satisfy my responsibilities under the Audit Commission’s
Code of Audit Practice. I am required by professional auditing standards to specify the
detailed risks that I need to consider as part of my opinion work.
As my initial audit plan was produced at the start of the financial year for fee purposes, it
was not possible to specify these risks. I am now in a position to do this as the opinion
work is about to commence, and this letter represents my supplementary opinion plan.
The above standard requires me to:
x

identify the risk of material misstatements in your accounts;

x

plan audit procedures to address these risks; and

x

ensure that the audit complies with all relevant auditing standards.

I have therefore considered the additional risks that are appropriate to the current opinion
audit and I have set these out in the following table.
The following reflects the discussions we have had to date and also the discussions Anne
and the team have had with your teams to ensure they are up to speed on the issues
affecting the audit.

Audit Commission, Unit 5, ISIS Business Centre, Horspath Road, Cowley, Oxford,
OX4 2RD
T 01865 388950 F 01865 388951 www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 188

2

Risk

Residual
risk

Audit response

Migration to the new main accounting
system (Agresso 5.5), including debtor
and creditor modules, did not go
smoothly. As a result it was not possible
to rely on controls within the systems to
provide assurance for the final account
statements.

Yes

We will have to test substantively all creditor
payments in the year. We will also need to do
additional testing on transactions at the start and
end of the year to ensure they are included in the
correct financial year.
We will have to undertake work around income to
attempt to identify any shortfalls and verify they
are due to genuine reductions in service as
opposed to failures to raise invoices.
We will also need to test outstanding debtor
invoices at the end of the year from those raised
recently to ensure they are genuinely collectable
where issued late.

The NNDR system is now entirely
managed and administered from Bromley.

Yes

We have undertaken additional procedures to
identify other councils that also completely
outsource business rates, and where practical
have undertaken work to assure ourselves that we
can rely on their work to provide some assurance.
We will also undertake additional work at the year
end to ensure the NNDR claim is audited fully
before our opinion is given.

There is a new Chief Accountant and
changes to the accountancy team

Yes

We are working closely with the new Chief
Accountant and the Head of Finance to ensure
potential issues are discussed at an early stage.

The officer responsible for processing
payroll has been sick for a large portion of
the year. The temporary member of staff
who replaced her made several errors
that are still being evaluated.

Yes

We are substantively testing changes to the
payroll month on month to provide additional
assurance.
We have asked for details of the errors and how
they were resolved from your officers.
We will comply with our duty to walk through the
payroll system when the officer returns to duty.

We have requested evidence of ongoing
rights and obligations for property assets
to be provided for our opinion audit. Your
officers have indicated that this may not
be easy to produce.

Yes

We will review the evidence produced by your
legal and property sections and if necessary carry
out additional work to provide our assurance.

Page 189

3

In my original audit plan, the estimated fee for the opinion audit was based on my best
estimate at the time and agreed at £90,585. Having considered the above risks I consider
this fee will have to be increased. I am not able to give an estimate at this time, as it will
depend on the work actually required. I and the team, led by Anne, will continue to work
closely with you and keep you informed of findings as the work progresses. We will also
update you regarding this when we present our report to those charged with governance in
September
Yours sincerely

Maria Grindley
District Auditor
cc

Terry Stock, Chief Executive
Anne Ockleston, Audit Manager

Page 190

Agenda Item 11

VALE OF WHITE HORSE
DISTRICT COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
2007/2008

Page 191

Contents

Page
Number
Foreword

1-2

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

3-4

Accounting Statements

5

Statement of Accounting Policies

6-11

Income and Expenditure Account

12

Statement of Movement on General Fund balance

13

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

14

Balance Sheet

15

Cash Flow Statement

16

Notes to the core Financial Statements -

Income and expenditure account

17-21

-

Balance sheet

22-35

-

Cash flow

36-37

The Collection Fund

38

Notes to the non-core Financial Statements - Collection Fund

39

- Total movement in reserves

40

- Trading statement for properties

41

Auditors report to Members and opinion

42-45

Explanation of Financial Terms

46-47

Explanation of Funds and reserves

48

Annual Governance Statement (separate report)

Page 192

Foreword by the Strategic Director (Chief Finance Officer)
1.0

Introduction

1.1

The Original Budgeted Medium Term Plan to 2010/11 provided for gradually increasing costs of
service provision, against stable, annual, Council Tax increases, and the use of funds and balances
to help smooth out the cycle. By the end of the period a final year use of Balances was forecast.
Overall these trends will strengthen the Council’s financial base. They are principally dependent
upon achievement of the Council’s ambitious cost-cutting programme of Service Prioritisation
Plans.

1.2

As a change from previous years there was no revision to the original budget for the year 2007/08
and managers were required to bring their expenditure and income for the year within budgeted
tolerances.

1.3

The Statement of Accounts is a formal document, which sets out the Council’s overall financial
position, which as I have indicated above, is in a healthy state. Detailed below is a summary of
each of the key elements, with references to the complete analysis within the accounts.

2.0

General Fund

2.1

The Original Estimate for 2007/08 for the Authority’s expenditure after accounting for the use of
balances and investment income was £11.630m. The Original Estimate was derived from a net
cost of services, after adjusting for capital finance charges, of £15.630m and the use of £0.440m
General Fund balances.

2.2

It is interesting to note that the District Council Tax raised £4.862 million which represents 31% of
the adjusted net cost of services, with 44% being met by Central Government and of the remainder
22% comes from the Council’s investments and 3% from funds and reserves.

3.0

Capital

3.1

Capital expenditure in the year amounted to £3.5 million and involved 27 projects. Details of the
expenditure and its funding are shown in the notes to the Balance Sheet on page 22.
The main source of funding for the programme was capital receipts (£2.477 million), but a
substantial proportion came from grants from Government departments and some contributions
from developers.

3.2

The Authority has capital receipts unapplied at 31 March 2008 of £11.69 million after financing
capital expenditure as set out above and taking into account receipts during the year. The analysis
of movements in the year is set out on page 25.

4.0

Investments

4.1

The Authority has had no long-term debt for some time. Temporary Investments at the start of the
year totalled £20.781 million, £16.38 million of this being placed with the Council’s Fund Manager.
At the year end, the Fund Manager’s holding was shown in the Balance Sheet as £17.337 million.
Temporary investments managed in-house amounted to £1.83 million at the year end.

4.2

Interest arising from these investments was slightly more than anticipated due to higher interest
rates. The net interest from internally and externally managed investments credited to the
Revenue Account totalled £1.556 million.

4.3

The Council has an investment policy which provides for a proportion of the reserves and balances
to be invested in property. The Property Trading Statement, which is included on page 41, shows
that net income of £1.906 million was credited to the Income and Expenditure Account in 2007/08.

5.0

Collection Fund

5.1

The Collection Fund brings together the income raised by the Council Tax and National Non
Domestic Rates. Against this it records expenditure to be met from the Fund, i.e. the precept
requirements of the District Council, the County Council, the Thames Valley Police Authority and
Parishes, together with provision made for non-payment.

1

Page 193

5.2

For 2007/08 the Council Tax for the average property in the Vale amounted to £1,336.15 Of this,
8% (£102.07) was for the benefit of the District Council and 3% (£45.79) for the average Town and
Parish levy, with the majority, 79% (£1,049.10) being for the County Council and 10% (£139.19) for
the Thames Valley Police Authority.

5.3

As at 31 March 2008 the Collection Fund remained in deficit, however the deficit has reduced from
the brought forward position.
A prudent approach was applied when estimating the balance on the Collection Fund for 2007/08
budget setting purposes and this has seen a share of the deficit apportioned between the major
precepting bodies. In addition, the large increase in the provision for bad debts applied in 2006/07
has meant a much smaller uplift in the provision was required for 2007/08.

6.0

Conclusion

6.1

The overall revenue outturn position for 2007/08 is a combination of maintenance of service
provision within the original budget set, a good performance on property and other investment
income, new capital grant funding and government grant income amounting to £637,000 and a
drawing down of reserve funding for additional pensions funding as detailed in the 2008/09 budget.
Whilst the overall value of the balance sheet has reduced, there has been a transfer of reserves to
the general fund to support the Council’s expenditure over the medium term. Given the Service
Prioritisation Plans approved in February 2008 the Council will face 2008/09 and the medium term
in a strong and sustainable position.

6.2

My personal thanks go to all those who have ensured the flow of information required to manage
the Council’s finances and especially to those involved in the production of these accounts.
STEVE BISHOP
STRATEGIC DIRECTOR (CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER)

2

Page 194

Statement of responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
1

The Authority's Responsibilities
The Authority is required:
(a)
to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those arrangements;
(b)
to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets; and,
(c)
to approve the statement of accounts having received the external auditor's report and
the Chief Finance Officer's commentary.

2

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer
The Chief Finance Officer's responsibilities include the preparation of the Authority's statement of
accounts, which, in terms of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA/LASAAC) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain (‘the Code') is
required to present fairly the financial position of the Authority at the accounting date and its
income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2008.
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Chief Finance Officer has:
(a)
selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
(b)
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
(c)
complied with the Code of Practice and the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice.
The Chief Finance Officer has also:
(d)
kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
(e)
taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

3.

Approval for Audit stage
th

The Statement of Accounts must be prepared for Audit by 30 June. The prepared Statement has
th
been approved for Audit by the Audit and Governance Committee on Monday, 30 June 2008.

……………………………………………………...
Chair of Audit and Governance Committee
th
30 June 2008

………………………………………………………
Steve Bishop CPFA
Strategic Director and Chief Finance Officer
th
30 June 2008

3

Page 195

4.

Statement by the Strategic Director and Chief Finance Officer
I certify that this Statement of Accounts presents fairly the financial position of the Authority at 31
March 2008 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2008.

……………………………………………………………
Steve Bishop CPFA
Strategic Director and Chief Finance Officer
26 September 2008

5.

Statement by the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee
This Statement of Accounts for 2007-08 was considered and approved at the Audit and
Governance Committee meeting on 24 September 2008
……………………………………………………………
Chair of Audit and Governance Committee
26 September 2008

4

Page 196

ACCOUNTING STATEMENTS
The statements required under the 2007 Statement of Recommended Practice are:Explanatory Foreword
The foreword provides an easily understandable guide to the most significant matters reported in
the accounts. It provides a brief explanation of the authority’s financial position and assists the
reader in the interpretation of the accounting statements.
Statement of Accounting Policies
These show the accounting policies adopted in compiling the accounting statements.
Income and Expenditure Account
This shows the expenditure and income of all the functions for which the authority is responsible. It
then demonstrates how the net cost has been financed from general government grants and
income from local taxpayers.
Statement of Movement of the General Fund Balance
The General Fund Balance compares the Council’s spending against the Council Tax that is raised
for the year, taking into account the use of reserves built upon the past and contributions to
reserves earmarked for future expenditure.
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the Council for the year and shows the
aggregate increase in its net worth.
The Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet shows the Council’s assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2008.
Cash Flow Statement
This statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third
parties for revenue and capital purposes.
Notes to the Core Financial Statements
These notes provide additional information and explanation to the Core Financial Statement.
Collection Fund
This fund shows firstly the income and expenditure transactions relating to the collection of income
and expenditure of Non Domestic Rates and Council Tax, and secondly the subsequent
disbursement of the above to the Council’s General Fund and the various precepting bodies.

5

Page 197

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

General Principles and CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
The form and general principles adopted in compiling the accounts are those recommended by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) in its Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in Great Britain (ACOP) and the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP). Except where departures are disclosed in the following paragraphs, the accounts comply
with all relevant standards in the Code and the SORP.

2.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:
• Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the
council provides the relevant goods or services.
• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between
the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as stocks on the
Balance Sheet.
• Works are charged as expenditure when they are completed, before which they are carried as
works in progress on the Balance Sheet.
• Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of
the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.
• Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid,
a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2008. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and
a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected as detailed in note 36 to
the core financial statements.

3.

Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council an obligation that
probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but where the timing of the
transfer is uncertain. Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the
year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation. When payments are eventually made,
they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed
at the end of each financial year and the level of provision is adjusted in line with the most up-todate information regarding the final settlement.

4.

Reserves
Cash-backed reserves are amounts set aside to meet future revenue and capital spending. The
cash-backed revenue reserves of the Authority at 31 March 2008 are explained fully on page 27.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts in the Statement of Movement on the General
Fund Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service revenue account in that year to score against the Net Cost of Services in the
Income and Expenditure Account. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund
Balance statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. There is
also a cash-backed capital reserve which holds capital receipts until they are used to finance
capital expenditure.

6

Page 198

There are two, non cash-backed, capital reserves – a Revaluation Reserve and a Capital
Adjustment Account – which are new and replace the Fixed Asset Restatement Account and the
Capital Financing Account. The Revaluation Reserve records unrealised net gains from
revaluations of assets made after 1 April 2007. The Capital Adjustment Account reflects the timing
differences between the cost of fixed assets consumed and the capital financing set aside to pay
for them.
The Pension Reserve is an adjustment account that manages the effects of charges required to be
made to the Income and Expenditure Account against the statutory requirements for meeting the
cost of retirement benefits from local taxes, as well as absorbing the impact of actuarial gains and
losses. It balances exactly the pensions liability carried in the top half of the Balance Sheet.
5.

Government Grants and Contributions (Revenue)
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as income at the date that the authority satisfies the
conditions of entitlement to the grant/contribution, there is reasonable assurance that the monies
will be received and the expenditure for which the grant is given has been incurred. Revenue
grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the service expenditure to which they relate.
Grants to cover general expenditure (e.g. Revenue Support Grant) are credited to the foot of the
Income and Expenditure Account after Net Operating Expenditure.

6.

Retirement Benefits
The District Council participates in two different pension schemes that meet the needs of current
and former employees. Contributions are made to the Oxfordshire County Council Superannuation
Fund to cover both contributions to the funded scheme for current employees, and the cost of
enhanced pensions payable to retired employees on an unfunded basis. The scheme provides
members with defined benefits related to pay and service. Pension costs are assessed in
accordance with the advice of a professionally qualified actuary. Accounts relating to the fund are
produced by Oxfordshire County Council and can be seen on request.
Contributions are also made to the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (now managed by the
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead) to cover the cost of enhanced pensions paid to retired
employees of the local authorities that were replaced by the Vale of White Horse DC in April 1974.
The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
•

•
•
•

The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the council are
included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates,
etc, and projected earnings for current employees.
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 6.8% based
on the annualised yield on the iBoxx over 15 year AA rated corporate bond index.
The assets of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are
included in the Balance Sheet at fair value (mid market value) appropriate to the mix of assets.
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:
o Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as result of years of service earned this
year – allocated in the Income and Expenditure Account to the revenue accounts of
services for which the employees worked.

7

Page 199

o Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to Net Cost of
Services in the Income and Expenditure Account as part of Non Distributed Costs.
o Interest cost – the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as
they move one year closer to being paid – debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the
Income and Expenditure Account
o Expected return on assets – the annual investment return on the fund assets attributable
to the council, based on an average of the expected long-term return – credited to Net
Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account.
o Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the council
of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of
employees – debited to the Net Cost of Services in the Income and Expenditure
Account as part of Non Distributed Costs.
o Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to the Statement of
Total Recognised Gains and Losses
o Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as
employer’s contributions to the pension fund.,
Statutory provisions limit the council to raising council tax to cover the actual amounts payable by
the council to the pension fund in the year. In the Statement of Movement on the General Fund
Balance this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year-end.
7.

Value Added Tax (VAT)
VAT is normally fully reclaimed from HM Revenue and Customs, and items of income and
expenditure are included in the accounts net of tax. If any transaction makes VAT irrecoverable,
that sum has been included in income and expenditure accounts.

8.

Overheads and Support Services
The costs of support services e.g. computer support, financial services etc. have been charged on
an appropriate basis to the services provided by the Council, or as corporate costs in accordance
with the CIPFA Best Value Accounting Code of Practice 2007. The total absorption costing
principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in
proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:
• Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the council’s status as a multi-functional,
democratic organisation.
• Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early
and any impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties.

9.

Intangible Fixed Assets
Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by
the council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it will bring benefits to the council for more
than one financial year. The balance is amortised to the relevant service revenue account over the
economic life of the investment to reflect the pattern of consumption of benefits.

8

Page 200

10.

Tangible Fixed Assets
Recognition: From 1 April 1994, all expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of
fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that the fixed asset yields benefits to the
Authority and the services it provides are for a period of more than one year. This excludes
expenditure on routine repairs and maintenance of fixed assets that is charged direct to service
revenue accounts.
Measurement: The basis of the valuation of the fixed assets is described under note 17 to the
core financial statements.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re valued where there have been
material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years using in-house expertise in
accordance with the Statement of Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve
to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Income and
Expenditure Account where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged
to a service revenue account.
The Revaluation Reserve is a new reserve which will contain revaluation gains recognised since 1
April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been
st
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. As at the 31 March 2008 there were no
revaluation gains to be transferred to the Revaluation Reserve.
Impairment: the values of each category of assets and of material individual assets are reviewed
at the end of each financial year for evidence of reductions in value. Impairment occurs when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset is too high. This
may be because of physical damage or a complete change in use as a result of a reorganisation.
Where impairment is identified as part of this review or as a result of a valuation exercise, this is
accounted for by:
• Where attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits – the loss is charged to the
relevant service revenue account.
• Otherwise – written off against any revaluation gains attributable to the relevant asset in the
Revaluation Reserve, with any excess charged to the relevant service revenue account.
Where an impairment loss is charged to the Income and Expenditure Account but there were
accumulated revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve for that asset, an amount up to the
value of the loss is transferred from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
Disposals: when an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the
Balance Sheet is written off to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposal are credited to the Income and Expenditure Account as part of
the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account. Amounts in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts and
credited to the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital
investment. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the Statement of Movement on the
General Fund Balance. Interest on capital receipts unapplied is credited to the Income and
Expenditure account.
Depreciation: depreciation has to be provided on all fixed assets with a finite useful life except
freehold land and non-operational properties. On acquisition or at revaluation, the remaining life of
relevant buildings is assessed and depreciation has been charged on a straight-line basis using
these values (less estimated residual value). Vehicles, equipment and intangible assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis, generally over 5 years. This depreciation forms part of the
capital charges in the net cost of services. However, in common with all capital charges, it is
reversed out in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance and has no impact on
the Council Tax budget requirement. Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount
equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation
that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from
the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

9

Page 201

Grants and contributions: where grants and contributions are received that are identifiable to
fixed assets with a finite useful life, the amounts are credited to the Capital Grants Deferred
Account. The balance is then written down to revenue to offset depreciation charges made for the
related assets in the relevant service revenue account, in line with the depreciation policy applied to
them.
11.

Charges to Revenue for Fixed Assets
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following
amounts to record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year:
• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.
• Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on tangible fixed
assets used by the service and other loses where there are no accumulated gains in the
Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written off.
• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.
The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or
amortisations. Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by
revenue provision in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, by way of an
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two.

12.

Deferred Charges
Deferred charges represent expenditure which has been properly capitalised but which does not
result in, or remain matched with, assets controlled by the Authority. Since 2004/05 deferred
charges are restricted to types of expenditure where the Authority does not control the economic
benefits arising, such as Improvement Grants, and the whole cost is written-off to revenue in the
year it is incurred. This category therefore no longer appears in the balance sheet. Expenditure
where the Authority does control the benefits should be recognised as the category of asset that it
actually is. For example, in the case of computer software, Intangible Asset would be appropriate.

13.

Leases
Operating Leases: rentals payable under operating leases have been charged to the revenue
accounts on a straight- line basis over the term of the lease.
Finance Leases: the council has no finance leases.

14.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual
charges to the Income and Expenditure Account for interest payable are based on the carrying
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. This council is
debt free and therefore has no charge required.
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to
Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account in the year of
repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of
the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or
discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan
and the write-down to the Income and Expenditure Account is spread over the life of the loan by an
adjustment to the effective interest rate.
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Income and Expenditure Account,
regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years. The
council has a policy of spreading the gain/loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against
which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of
amounts charged to the Income and Expenditure Account to the net charge required against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment
Account in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance.

10

Page 202

15.

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:
• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not
quoted in an active market
• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed
or determinable payments.
Loans and Receivables: loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at
their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Income and Expenditure Account for interest receivable
are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the loans that the council has made, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable and interest credited to the
Income and Expenditure Account is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and charge made to
the Income and Expenditure Account.
Available-for-sale Assets
Available-for-sale assets comprise instruments with quoted market prices, other instruments with
fixed and determinable payments and equity shares. The Vale investments are held as bank
deposits and have been identified in the balance sheet as loans and receivables.

16.

Stocks and Work in Progress
Stocks are held at cost. This is a departure from the requirements of S.S.A.P. 9 which requires
stocks to be shown at actual cost or net realisable value if lower. The effect of this treatment has
been quantified and the view is taken that any difference would not be material. Work in progress
is preliminary work on capital schemes where there is no asset yet nor a firm commitment to one.

17.

Contingent Liabilities and events after the Balance Sheet date.
These are covered by notes 31 and 33 to the Core Financial Statements. Any disclosure covers
events up to the date the Statement of Accounts is authorised by the Chief Finance Officer as
shown on page 3.

11

Page 203

Income and Expenditure Account

2006/07

Gross
Expenditure

Gross
Income

Net
Expenditure

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000
1,731
10,286

Central services to the public
Cultural, environmental and planning

1,010

Highways, roads and transport services

1,489

Housing services

1,854

Corporate and democratic core

76
16,446
(164)
15
2,104
(1,853)
8
26
(1,229)
240

Non distributed costs (1)
Net Cost of Services

8,024

(6,409)

1,615

15,100

(4,162)

10,938

1,980

(880)

1,100

19,678

(18,269)

1,409

2,030

(82)

1,948

437

0

437

47,249

(29,802)

17,447

(Surplus) / Loss on the disposal of fixed assets
Prior Year Adjustment

(30)
0

Parish Precepts

2,181

(Surpluses)/deficits on trading undertakings not
included in Net Cost of Services - page 41
Contribution to housing pooled capital receipts
Provision for Bad Debts – Increase

(1,906)
3
36

Interest and investment income - note 36
Pensions interest costs and expected return on pensions assets - note 34

(1,556)
270

15,593

Net Operating Expenditure

16,445

(6,787)

Demand on the Collection Fund

(7,044)

(788)

Local Authority Business Growth Incentive grant

(237)

(1,081)

General government grants

(981)

(5,507)

Non-domestic rates redistribution

1,430

(5,844)

Deficit for the Year

2,339

(1) The increase in non-distributed costs for 2007/08 is predominantly an increase in past service
pensions costs as a consequence of the 2008 pension scheme as described in note 34 page 30.

12

Page 204

Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
The Income and Expenditure Account shows the council’s actual financial performance for the year,
measured in terms of the resources consumed and generated over the last twelve months. However,
the authority is required to raise council tax on a different accounting basis, the main differences
being:
•
•

Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are
consumed.
Retirement benefits are charged as amounts become payable to pension funds and pensioners,
rather than as future benefits are earned.

The General Fund Balance compares the council’s spending against the council tax that is raised for
the year, taking into account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves
earmarked for future expenditure.
This reconciliation statement summaries the differences between the outturn on the Income and
Expenditure Account and General Fund Balance.
2006/07
£’000

2007/08
£’000
Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account

2,339

(2,550)

Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory proper
practices to be debited and credited to the General Fund Balance
for the year

(3,449)

(1,120)

Increase in General Fund Balance for the Year

(1,110)

General Fund Balance brought forward

(1,844)

General Fund Balance carried forward

(2,954)

1,430

(724)
(1,844)

13

Page 205

Note of reconciling items for the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance
2006/07
£’000

2007/08
£’000
Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but
required by statute to be excluded when determining the Movement
on the General Fund Balance for the year

(329)
(1,217)
372
(910)
(164)
(1,560)

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets (note 19)
Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets (note 19)
Capital Grants Deferred amortisation (note 27)
Write down of deferred charges to be financed from capital resources
(note 26)

Net gain / (loss) on sale of assets
Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance with FRS 17
(note 34)

(3,480)

(247)
(1,291)
328
(1,590)
30
(2,010)
(4,780)

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but
required to be included by statute when determining the Movement
on the General Fund Balance for the year
250
(8)
1,420

Capital expenditure charged in-year to the General Fund Balance
Transfer from Usable Capital Receipts to meet payments to the Housing
Capital Receipts Pool (note 25)
Employer’s contributions payable to the Oxfordshire County Council
Pension Fund and retirement benefits direct to pensioners (note 34)

1,662

0
(3)
1,577
1,574

Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that are required to
be taken into account when determining the Movement on the
General Fund Balance for the year
(732)
(2,550)

Net transfer to or from earmarked reserves
Net additional amount required to be credited to the General Fund
balance for the year

(243)
(3,449)

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
This statement brings together all the gains and losses of the council for the year and shows the
aggregate increase in its net worth. In addition to the surplus generated on the Income and
Expenditure Account, it includes gains and losses relating to the revaluation of fixed assets and remeasurement of the net liability to cover the cost of retirement benefits.
2006/07
£’000

2007/08
£’000

1,430

Deficit for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account

(8,492)

Surplus arising on revaluation of fixed assets & financial instruments

(66)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on pension fund assets and liabilities

810

Change to Collection Fund

(73)

(110)
111
(7,061)

Total recognised (gains)/losses for the year

14

Page 206

2,339

3,010

BALANCE SHEET
2006/07
£’000
610

2007/08
£’000
Intangible Fixed Assets

- note 19

36,645
3,500
81,794

Tangible Fixed Assets
- note 19
Operational Assets
- Land and Buildings:
- Infrastructure
- Plant and Equipment
- Community Assets
Non-Operational Assets:
- Investment properties
- Surplus assets held for disposal
Total Fixed Assets

58
88
81,940

Long Term Debtors:
- Mortgages
- Other Loans
Total Long Term Assets

38,835
67
902
1,235

107
6,351
20,781
27,239
(558)
(1,000)
(4,613)
(4,347)
(10,518)
98,661

£’000
362

37,903
108
961
1,359
37,798
3,560

81,689
82,051

- note 20
40
122

Current Assets:
- Stocks and Work in Progress
- Debtors
- Temporary Investments

- note 21
- note 22
- note 23

162
82,213

118
4,824
19,168
24,110

Current Liabilities:
- Cash and Bank
- Short Term Borrowing
- Receipts in Advance
- Creditors

- note 24

(20)
0
(3,209)
(6,222)
(9,451)
96,872

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

(17,875)
(3,927)
76,859

Liabilities Relating to Defined Pension Scheme
Capital Grants Deferred
- note 27
Total Assets less Liabilities

(77,885)
0
(13,971)
(58)
17,875
(1,056)
(1,844)
80
(76,859)

Financed by:
Capital Adjustment Account
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Receipts Reserve
Deferred Capital Receipts
Pension Reserve
Earmarked Reserves
General Fund Balance
Collection Fund Balances
Total Equity

- note 26
- note 26
- note 25
- note 34
- note 28
- note 30
- CF note 1

(19,119)
(3,903)

(23,022)
73,850

(77,461)
0
(11,691)
(40)
19,119
(830)
(2,954)
7
(73,850)

15

Page 207

CASHFLOW STATEMENT 2007/08
2006/07
£’000

£’000

£’000

Revenue Activities
9,721
15,558
15,083
52,050
56,912
9
149,333
(57,231)
(5,507)
(56,216)
(1,081)
(14,190)
(8,081)
(6,547)
(148,853)

Cash Outflows
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Other operating cash payments
Housing benefit paid out
National non-domestic rate payments to national pool
Precept paid
Payments to Capital Receipts Pool

9,874
19,383
16,387
45,891
58,330
7
149,872

Cash Inflows
Council Tax receipts
Non-domestic rate receipts from national pool
Non-domestic rate receipts
Revenue Support Grant
DSS grants for benefits
Other government grants - note 40
Cash received for goods and services

(60,716)
(5,844)
(53,560)
(981)
(16,148)
(8,598)
(8,095)
(153,942)

480 Net Cash (Inflow)/Outflow from Revenue Activities – note 37

(4,070)

Return on Investments and Servicing of Finance
5 Cash outflows
(1,140) Cash inflows

Interest paid
Interest received

1
(1,473)

(1,472)

Capital Activities
1,430
1,105
5,535

Cash Outflows
Purchase of fixed assets
Other capital grant payments

2,093
1,411
3,504

Cash Inflows
Sale of fixed assets
Capital grants received

(1,115)
(723)
(1,838)
480 Net cash (inflow)/outflow before financing

1,380
0
1,380
(1,000)

Management of liquid resources
Increase/(decrease) in short term deposits
(Increase)/reduction in cash floats

(184)
(885)
(1,069)
(3,107)

2,570
(1)
2,569

Financing
Cash inflows

New loans raised

422 (Increase)/Decrease in Cash – note 38

16

Page 208

0
(538)

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.1

Authorisation of the Accounts for Issue
Events may occur between the Balance Sheet date and the date the accounts are authorised for
issue which might have a bearing upon the financial results of the past year. Local authority
th
financial statements are required to be approved by the authority by 30 June. For the 2007/08
accounts the Audit and Governance Committee and the responsible financial officer will sign, date
th
and certify the accounts for presentation to audit on Monday 30 June.

1.2

Restatement of Prior Period
There has been no restatement made to the prior period for the Statement of Accounts 2007/08.

2.

Grants – Capital
The Code of Practice requires capital grants and contributions to be accounted for using a deferred
credit method. The asset is capitalised at gross cost. Capital contributions are credited to a
Capital Grants Deferred Account in the Balance Sheet and released to the service revenue
accounts over the life of the asset to match any charges for depreciation; or in total if the asset is
not subject to depreciation. In the financial year 2007/08, grants have been received from the
Heritage Lottery Fund and from various government departments, and contributions have been
received from local businesses developing property and from other local authorities.

3.

Discretionary Expenditure
The Local Government Act 2000 granted powers to authorities in England and Wales to promote
wellbeing in their area. A local authority may incur expenditure which in its opinion is in the
interests of its area or part of its area, or all or some of its inhabitants and which is not otherwise
authorised. Expenditure incurred under these provisions (e.g. donations to charities, not-for-profit
bodies and mayoral appeals) amounted to £3,892. The largest of which was a payment of £600 to
Dalton Barracks to support the ceremony to welcome home troops from Iraq.

4.

Publicity
Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986 as applied by Local Authorities (Publicity Account)
Order 1987 requires local authorities to keep separate accounts for expenditure incurred on
advertising and publicity. Costs incurred in 2007/08 are as follows: 2006/07
£
24,780
70,718
110,056

Recruitment Advertising
General Publicity

5.

2007/08
£
23,708
87,896
111,604

Agency Work
The Authority undertook work for Oxfordshire County Council on an agency basis in respect of
maintenance of Highway Verges (Local Government Act 1972 s101). The value of work
undertaken this year was £43,605 (£41,948 in 2006/067).

6.

Pension Costs
In 2007/08 the District Council paid an employer's contribution of £1,295,097 into the Oxfordshire
County Council Pension Fund, representing
18.3% of the total pensionable pay of £7,064,100 (£6,996,000 in 2006/07). It also paid £218,272
(3.09% of pensionable pay) into that fund in respect of enhanced pensions for former employees.
In addition to those contributions, the District Council will pay £63,000 to the Royal County of
Berkshire Pension Fund, now administered by the Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead, for
enhanced pensions to former employees of the pre-1974 reorganisation authorities.

17

Page 209

Additional information regarding the Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund can be found in
note 34 to the Balance Sheet, on pages 28 to 30.
7.

Building Control Trading Account
The Building Control (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 1998 require the disclosure of
information regarding the setting of charges for the administration of the building control function –
“details of scheme for setting charges”. However, certain activities performed by the Building
Control Unit do not result in a charge, such as providing general advice and liaising with other
statutory authorities. The statement below shows the total cost of operating the building control unit
divided between the chargeable and non-chargeable activities.
Building Regulations - Charging Account 2007/08

Chargeable
2007/08
£

Non
Chargeable
2007/08
£

Total
Building Control
2007/08
£

Expenditure
Employee expenses
Premises expenses
Transport
Supplies and services
Third party payments
Central and support service charges
Capital financing charges

418,199
810
22,079
44,910
85
129,090
3,333

127,548
242
6,595
13,278
25
38,559
995

545,747
1,052
28,675
58,188
110
167,649
4,328

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

618,506

187,243

805,749

Income
Building regulations charges
Miscellaneous income

(615,661)
(440)

0
(132)

(615,661)
(572)

TOTAL INCOME

(616,101)

(132)

(616,233)

Deficit/(Surplus) for Year

2,405

3 year summary
2007/08 deficit/(surplus)
2006/07 deficit/(surplus)
2005/06 deficit/(surplus)
Total deficit/(surplus) over last 3 years

187,112

189,516

2,405
(57,203)
(25,858)
(80,656)

The deficit of £2,405 at 31 March 2008 has been transferred to an earmarked reserve. This
reserve will be used specifically for the future maintenance and enhancement of the Building
Control Service.
The cumulative surplus at 31 March 2008 stands at £150,187. The intention is to reduce this
surplus over the next three years and thereafter break even on the service.

18

Page 210

8.

Contributions to/from Earmarked Reserves through the Revenue Account
£’000

£’000

Community Grants Awards Fund
Election Equalisation Fund
Local Development Framework Fund
Self insurance fund

10
33
90
20

153

Building Regulations Trading Fund
Election Equalisation Fund
Local Development Framework Fund
Superannuation Revaluation Fund
Self insurance fund

3
113
50
205
8

379

To

From

Net use of Reserves
9.

226

Officers’ Emoluments
The numbers of employees whose total remuneration exceeded £50,000 in the financial year are
as detailed below:
2006/07

2007/08

£50,000 - £59,999

8

8

£60,000 - £69,999

0

2

£70,000 - £79,999

1

1

£80,000 - £89,999

1

1

£90,000 - £99,999

0

0

£100,000 - £109,999

1

1

Remuneration Band

10.

Operating Leases
The Council uses operating leases on a fairly limited basis. The majority of the expenditure is on
the Authority’s Automatic Public Conveniences (£51,748), the remainder on office equipment. The
amount paid under these arrangements in 2007/08 was £62,300 (2006/07 £53,463).
The Council is committed to making payments of £63,059 under these leases in 2008/2009. The
leases will expire over the next five years, as follows:

Leases expiring between 2008/09 and 2010/2011
Leases expiring after 2010/2011

£
10,552
52,507
63,059

11.

Related Party Transactions
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals
that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the
Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Council
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability
to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.
Related parties include:
Central Government
Central Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council – it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides a
large proportion of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the
transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. housing benefits). Details of transactions

19

Page 211

with Government departments are set out in a note to the Cash Flow Statement.
Precepts
Precept transactions in relation to Oxfordshire County Council, Thames Valley Police Authority and
the various Town and Parish Councils, are shown within a note to the Collection Fund.
Other local authorities
Payments to Oxfordshire County Council and the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead for
pension costs are included in note 6 to the Income and Expenditure Account.
Members of the Council
Members have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. During the year no
Members have undertaken any declarable, material transactions with the Council. Details of any
transactions (if they exist) are recorded in the register of Members’ Interests, open to public
inspection at the Council’s offices. This is in addition to a specific declaration obtained in respect of
Related Party Transactions.
Members represent the Council on various organisations. Appointments are reviewed annually,
unless a specific termination date for the term of office applies. None of these appointments places
the Member in a position to exert undue influence or control.
Officers of the Council
Officers are only required to be disclosed as related parties when they have been involved in
material transactions. During the year, no officers have declared any material transactions.
Other organisations
The Council awards grants to support a number of voluntary or charitable bodies and individuals. It
does not attempt to exert control through this.
12.

Trading Operations
The Council has adopted an Investment Policy for its funds that are surplus to operational needs.
Some are held as cash and accessible at short notice whilst some have been invested in property
for which rents are received. A property trading statement for the year is shown on page 41. The
interest received and the surplus on property investments is carried to the Income and Expenditure
Account below the net cost of services.

13.

Local Authority (Goods & Services) Act 1970
The Council is empowered by this Act to provide goods and services to other public bodies. In
2007/08, goods and services falling within the scope of this Act consisted of:
DSO services to South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale Housing Association – emptying of
septic tanks, blocked drains and other minor works: £184,000
CCTV services to South Oxfordshire District Council: £134,000
Grounds Maintenance work for Abingdon Town Council and Vale Housing Association: £163,000
Conveyancing services for Vale Housing Association: £11,500
The total value of work is deemed to be insignificant relative to the total budget of the Council. The
Council does not make a profit in providing these services and all of the costs are recovered. The
provision of these services to other public bodies helps to provide an economically viable service
and promotes partnership workings with our nearest neighbours.

20

Page 212

14.

Local Area Agreements
The Council is a participant in a local area agreement (LAA) – a partnership with other public
bodies involving the pooling of government grants to finance work towards jointly agreed objectives
for local public services. In 2007/08, the LAA has completed the 2nd year of its three-year
agreement. The council has received a share of the grant for Stronger, Safer Communities. This
amounted to £120,450 out of a total grant to the LAA of £853,000 The goals of this grant is to
reduce crime and disorder in the Vale area to support a community in which people feel safe
regardless of age or ethnic background.

15.

Audit Costs
During the year the Vale of White Horse District Council incurred the following fees relating to
external audit and inspection:2007/08
£
Fees payable to the Audit Commission with regard to external audit services
carried out by the Appointed Auditor
Fees payable to the Audit Commission for certification of grant claims
Total

161,630

These costs are accounted for within the Income and Expenditure Account.
16.

98,650
62,980

Members’ Allowances
During 2007/08 the total sum paid to members in respect of basic and special responsibility
allowances was as follows:-

Type of Allowance
Basic Allowance
Special Responsibility Allowance
Total

2006/07
£
182,735
124,616
307,351

These costs are accounted for within the Income and Expenditure Account.

21

Page 213

2007/08
£
187,877
127,611
315,488

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - BALANCE SHEET
17.

Fixed Assets
All of the Council’s property assets are re-valued every 5 years in a rolling programme, using inhouse qualified expertise in accordance with the Statements of Asset Valuation Practice and
Guidance Notes of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). The basis used is Open
Market Value, Existing Use Value (for properties used by the Council) or Depreciated Replacement
Cost (for specialised buildings where there is no market) as appropriate. Community Assets
(parks, open spaces etc) are included at historic cost, and vehicles, plant and equipment are
included at purchase price less depreciation. For the 2007/08 accounts a de minimis level of
£25,000 has been used for land and buildings, and £10,000 for new vehicles, plant and equipment.
Number of properties
at
31/3/2007
31/3/2008
1
1
1
1
5
5
3
3
12
12
5
5
10
10
2
2
1
1
4
4
13
11
1
1
1
1
1
11
13

Fixed assets with a book value include:
Council Offices, Abingdon
Local Services Point, Wantage
Leisure Centres* & sports facilities, Abingdon, Faringdon & Wantage
Public Halls, Abingdon, Faringdon & Wantage
Temporary accommodation, Abingdon, Faringdon & Wantage
Community Centres, Abingdon, Botley
Off-street Car Parks, Abingdon, Faringdon & Wantage
Mobile Home Parks, Radley
Multi-storey Car Park, Abingdon
Public Conveniences, Abingdon, Botley, Faringdon & Wantage
Properties/sites held for investment see page 42
Properties/sites held for development, Abingdon
Surplus properties
Agricultural land, let
Recreation Grounds and open spaces, throughout the Vale

*The Leisure Centres at Wantage and Faringdon are attached to educational establishments run
by Oxfordshire County Council and the District Council does not own the land. This line also
includes Abingdon open-air pool.
During the year the long lease of a shop unit in Abingdon was sold and one was vacated and is
being sold.
18.

Capital Expenditure 2007/08 and how funded
2006/07
£’000
Expenditure
Land & Buildings
Plant & Equipment
Community Assets
Infrastructure Assets
Non-Operational Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred Charges
Financed from
Capital Receipts
Revenue
Government Grants
Heritage lottery fund
Other grants and contributions

22

Page 214

2007/08
£’000

484
250
546
25
271
63
1,330
2,969

69
490
124
56
1,313
4
1,429
3,485

1,939
250
480
119
181
2,969

2,477
632
180
196
3,485

19.

Movement of Fixed Assets 2007/08

Operational Assets
Certified value at
31 March 2007
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment.
Net book value at
31 March 2007
Additional Expenditure
Revaluations and Restatements

Land &
Buildings
£’000

Infrastructure
£’000

Vehicles &
Plant
£’000

Community
Assets
£’000

38,835

67

902

1,235

41,039

69

56

490

124

739

(156)

0

(156)

Total
£’000

41,386
(2,551)

0

Depreciation in year

(1,001)

(15)

(275)

Value at 31 March 2008

37,903

108

961

Investment properties
Non-Operational Assets
£’000

(1,291)
1,359

Surplus held for
disposal
£’000

40,331

Total
£’000

Net book value at
31 March 2007

36,645

3,500

40,145

Additional Expenditure

1,313

0

1,313

Disposals
Revaluations and Restatements
Value at 31 March 2008

(170)

0

(170)

10

60

70

37,798

3,560

41,358

Software licences

Flood prevention
works
£’000

Intangible Assets
£’000

Total
£’000

Net book value at
31 March 2007

509

101

610

Additional Expenditure

4

18

22

Disposals

0

0

0

Revaluations and Restatements

0

0

0

Depreciation/written off in year
Value at 31 March 2008

(247)

(23)

(270)

266

96

362

23

Page 215

20.

Long Term Debtors
This represents outstanding loan advances granted by the Authority.
Mortgage Advances
Private
Former
Sector
Council
Tenants
£’000
£’000
Balance at 01/04/07
New Advances
Interest charged

&

Repayments
Balance at 31/03/08

21.

Other Advances
Other
Car Loans
Loans

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

16

42

15

76

149

0

0

0

70

70

0

(18)

0

(39)

(57)

16

24

15

107

162

Stocks and Work in Progress
31/03/07
£’000
19
88
107

Stocks
Work in Progress

31/03/08
£’000
23
95
118

Stock held on 31 March 2008 related to ICT consumable items, stationery, postage stamps, goods
for resale and bar stocks held at the Guildhall and Civic Hall. Work in Progress is preliminary work
on capital schemes where there is no asset yet nor firm commitment to one.
22.

Debtors can be classified as follows:
31/03.07
£’000
1,690
1,285
97
707
2,287
1,591
68
7,725

Council Tax payers
Business Rate payers
Investment Interest
Public Authorities
Government Depts
Other
Payments in Advance
Gross Debtors
Less provision for bad or doubtful debts:
Council Tax Payers
Business Rate Payers
Sundry Debtors
Housing Benefits
Housing Rents
Net Debtors

31/03/08
£’000
1,916
1,055
12
550
167
2,803
84
6,587

(632)
(390)
(113)
(202)
(37)
6,351

A full explanation as to how the bad debt provision has been calculated is provided in note 36.

24

Page 216

(734)
(516)
(166)
(253)
(94)
4,824

23.

Temporary Investments
With Fund
Manager
Investec Asset
Management
£’000
16,380
(4)
16,376
0
0
0
949
(23)
35

Opening balance 1 April 2007
Valuation adjustment
Adjusted opening balance 1 Apr 07
Previous year interest
Additional funds invested
Funds repaid
Interest earned in year
Interest drawn down
Change in capital value
Accrued interest at year end
[included in debtors]
Closing balance 31 March 2008

Managed
In-house
£’000
4,401
0
4,401
97
182,115
(184,685)
577
(662)
0

£’000
20,781
(4)
20,777
97
182,115
(184,685)
1,526
(685)
35

(12)

(12)

0
17,337

Total

1,831

19,168

Investment income due to the Authority has been included in the Income and Expenditure Account
on page 12 and in Note 22 - Debtors above.
Investments managed by the Fund Manager comprise cash deposits and gilts that can be recalled
at short notice. There may also be unrealised changes in capital value at the year-end. The Fund
Manager may have some long-term investments in their normal course of business.
Up to 31 March 2007 investments held by the Fund Manager were valued at ‘Mid Price’ but in
accordance with the 2007 SORP the valuation basis has been changed to ‘Bid Price’. Therefore
the opening balance has been adjusted to reflect this change.
24.

Creditors can be classified as follows:
31/03/07
£’000
13
136
1,351
75
2,760
12
4,613
8,960

Public Authorities
Council Tax payers
Business Rate payers
Royal Berkshire Pension Fund
Other Creditors
Government departments
Income in Advance

25.

31/03/08
£’000
396
334
1,140
63
4,289
0
3,209
9,431

Capital Receipts Reserve

Balance brought forward
Movements in the year
Sale of assets
Financing capital expenditure
Pooling Adjustment
Net increase/(decrease)
Balance carried forward

25

Page 217

2006/07
£’000
14,784

2007/08
£’000
13,971

1,134
(1,939)
(8)
(813)

200
(2,477)
(3)
(2,280)

13,971

11,691

26.

Capital Adjustment Account
Fixed Asset
Restatement
Account
2006/07
£’000
25,839

Balance brought forward
Adjustment to b/f balance (rounding)

Capital
Adjustment
Account
2007/08
£’000
77,885
(1)

Capital
Financing
Account
2006/07
£’000
44,418

plus

Upwards revaluations

11,230

70

less

Downwards revaluations

(2,738)

--

less

Disposals

(970)

(170)

plus

Capital Financing in year:
Capital receipts
Revenue
grants and contributions written down

plus
less:

Write down of deferred charges
Depreciation in year
Balance carried forward

33,361

1,939
250
372

2,477
-328

(910)
(1,545)
44,524

(1,590)
(1,538)
77,461

The Balance Sheet figures for 31 March 2007 have been adjusted from those in the Statement of
accounts for 2006-07 to accommodate the introduction of the Revaluation Reserve and the Capital
Adjustment Account (see accounting policy 4 on page 6). The credit balances of £33.361 million on
the Fixed Asset Restatement Account and £44.524 million on the Capital Financing Account at 31
March 2007 have been written off to the new Capital Adjustment Account with a credit balance of
£77.885 million. To prevent rounding variances throughout the accounts this has been adjusted
downwards by £1,000. A new Revaluation Reserve has been included in the Balance Sheet with a
zero balance. The closing balance on the Revaluation Reserve at 31 March 2008 only shows
unrealised revaluation gains since 1 April 2007.
27.

Capital Grants Deferred Account
2006/07
£'000
3,916

Balance b/fwd
Transfer to I&E account
Received in year
Written off to CAA in year
through service revenue accounts
Balance c/fwd

383
4,299

2007/08
£'000
3,927
(128)
432
4,231

(372)
3,927

(328)
3,903

Note: this account represents grants and contributions that have been received in respect of
various completed capital projects. The assets are recorded at gross value in the Balance Sheet
and the grant is written to the Capital Financing Account to reflect the contribution. Where the
asset is depreciated the grant is written down to the relevant service revenue account in proportion
to the depreciation, and then reversed through the Statement of Movement on the General Fund
Balance so that it has no impact on the amount to be met from council tax. The transfer to the
Income and Expenditure account relates to grant received in 2006/07 for which expenditure was
incurred in 2006/07 and the grant was due to have been written off to the service account in that
year.

26

Page 218

28.

Earmarked Reserves
Balance
31/03/07
£’000

Contribution
s to Funds
£’000

Use of
Funds
£’000

Balance
31/03/08
£’000

From Revenue Balances
Building Regulations Trading
DSO Vehicle Replacement
Community Grants Awards Fund
Election Equalisation Fund
Local Development Framework Fund
Rent Deposit Guarantee Scheme
Rent Advance Scheme Fund
Reservoir Fund
Self-Insurance Fund
Superannuation (Revaluation)
Classified as assets - sub-total

153
50
149
103
145
12
13
150
76
205
1,056

0
0
10
33
90
0
0
0
20
0
153

3
0
0
113
50
0
0
0
8
205
379

150
50
159
23
185
12
13
150
88
0
830

From External Contributions
Affordable housing, commuted sums
Developers’ contributions
Government Grants
Classified as liabilities* - sub-total

132
853
470
1,455

0
125
418
543

0
158
227
385

132
820
661
1,613

Total Funds & Reserves

2,511

696

764

2,443

* To comply with the Statement of Recommended Practice, contributions from developers towards
future services, such as grounds maintenance, or to capital works have been classified as liabilities
in the balance sheet (creditors) until the work is carried out. The Council does not expect to have
to repay any of these sums.
29.

Self Insurance Fund
At the end of 1995/96 a sum of £100,000 was transferred from General Fund balances to establish
a self-insurance reserve. Charges are made to cost centres in lieu of premiums and certain claims
(mainly agreed excesses) are met from the Fund.
This reserve is to cover the following:
Risk
Employer’s Liability
Fire and Perils (property)
Vehicles - accidental damage
Theft (property
Public Liability
Officials Indemnity
Libel and Slander
Fidelity Guarantee
Land Charges
Personal Accident
Professional Negligence
Cash in Transit
Misc. Equipment at request of Departments

Limit – up to £:
5,000
5,000
250
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
2,500
No Limit
No Limit

Claims above these limits are met by insurance companies.

27

Page 219

Movement of the Insurance Fund during the year:
£’000
(76)
8
(20)
(88)

Balance brought forward 1 April 2007
Claims met during the year
Internal premiums received
Balance carried forward 31 March 2008

30.

Revenue Balances
The analysis of revenue balances at 31 March 2008 is as follows:
31/03/07
£’000
(80)
1,844
1,764

Collection Fund
General Fund

31.

31/03/08
£’000
(7)
2,954
2,947

Contingent Liabilities
At the year end the Council was subject to a claim on behalf of an employee of a predecessor
authority (Abingdon Borough Council) which claimed that he was exposed to asbestos in the
course of his employment in 1962/63 and had contracted mesothelioma in 2006 and has since
died. Insurance companies generally have been unable to agree whether liability in these cases
should attach at the time of exposure or of manifestation of the illness or some point in between.
This matter is currently (June 2008) the subject of a court case. It is possible that the Council could
find itself liable for this claim and unable to recover from its insurers. No provision has been made
because of this uncertainty and because the amount of any liability is still unknown.

32.

Significant Commitments under Capital Contracts
At the year-end the Council was engaged in a small number of contracts relating to capital
projects, none of them significant.

33.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events may occur between the Balance Sheet date and the date the accounts are authorised for
issue which might have a bearing upon the financial results of the past year. There have been no
such events requiring disclosure to the 2007/08 accounts.

34.

Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund FRS 17 disclosures
In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 17 – Retirement Benefits (FRS 17), the Vale of
White Horse District Council is required to disclose certain information concerning assets, liabilities,
income and expenditure related to pension schemes for its employees.
Vale of White Horse District Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme which
is a defined benefit scheme based on final pensionable salary.
st

The most recent valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2007 and has been updated by
independent actuaries to the Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund (the Fund) to take account
of the requirements of FRS 17 in order to assess the liabilities of the Fund as at 31 March 2008.
Transactions Relating to Retirement Benefits
We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge
we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real
cost of retirement benefits is reversed out in the Statement of Movement in the General Fund

28

Page 220

Balance. The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and
Statement of Movement in the General Fund Balance during the year:
Local Government Pension Scheme
£m
2006/07
2007/08

Income & Expenditure Account
Net Cost of Services:
Current service cost
past service cost
losses on curtailments
Net Operating Expenditure:
• interest cost
• expected return on assets in the scheme
Net Charge to the Income & Expenditure Account
Statement of movement in the General Fund Balance
• reversal of net charges made for retirement
benefits in accordance with FRS17
Actual amount charged against the General Fund
Balance for pensions in the year:
• employers’ contributions payable to scheme

(1.32)
(0.09)
0.09

(1.30)
(0.44)
0

(2.69)
2.45
(1.56)

(2.99)
2.72
(2.01)

1.56

2.01

(1.42)

(1.58)

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Retirement Benefits
The underlying assets and liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the authority at 31 March
are as follows:
Local Government Pension Scheme
£m
31 March 2007
31 March 2008
Estimated liabilities in scheme
Estimated assets in scheme
Net asset/(liability)

(56.85)
38.98
(17.87)

(53.89)
34.77
(19.12)

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay
retirement benefits. The total liability of £19.12m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the
authority as recorded in the Balance Sheet. However, statutory arrangements for funding the
deficit mean that the financial position of the authority remains good and the deficit will be made
good by increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as assessed by the
scheme actuary.
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities are valued on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method which assesses the
future liabilities discounted to their present value. The annual investment return used to roll forward
the Employer’s asset share has been estimated from quarterly returns provided by the
Administering Authority from 1 April 2007 to 31 December 2007 and index returns appropriate to
the mix of assets to get the total return for the year to 31 March 2008.

29

Page 221

The main assumptions used in their calculations have been:
Local Government Pension Scheme
2006/07
2007/08
3.2%
3.7%
4.7%
5.2%
3.2%
3.7%
5.3%
6.8%

Rate of inflation
Rate of long-term increase in salaries
Rate of increase to pensions in payment
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
Actuarial Gains and Losses

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pensions Reserve in 2007/08 can be analysed
into the following categories, measured as absolute amounts and as a percentage of assets or
liabilities at 31 March 2007:

Differences between the expected
and actual return on assets
Differences between actuarial
assumptions about liabilities and
actual experience
Changes in the demographic and
financial assumptions used to
estimate liabilities
Net gains/(losses)

2005/06
£m
%

2006/07
£m
%

5.14

13.4

0.14

0.4

(6.31)

(18.2)

0.02

0.0

(0.13)

(0.2)

(1.06)

(2.0)

(3.72)

(6.6)

0.10

0.2

6.56

12.2

1.44

0.11

2007/08
£m
%

(0.81)

The 2008 Scheme
A new benefit structure was introduced in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) from 1
April 2008. This change affects both the value of benefits earned up to 31 March 2008 and the
cost going forward from that date.
The changes introduced in the 2008 scheme that affect the active members’ benefits earned before
1 April 2008 are:
• An increase in the period of the pension guarantee following retirement from 5 to 10 years.
• The introduction of contingent dependants’ benefits for co-habitees.
• An increase in the lump sum on death in deferment benefits following the member leaving
service from three times to five times the deferred pension.
• A change to service enhancements for ill-health and death in service pensions.
This change has been accounted for as a past service cost – this impacts significantly on the
charge to net services cost. The Pensions Administrator has calculated the appropriate past
service cost by calculating the cost of these benefit improvements as a percentage of the value
placed on the active member liabilities for the Fund as a whole. The percentage calculated was
1.6%. This percentage increase was applied in liabilities to the active liabilities of Vale of White
Horse District Council.
35.

Group Accounts
If the Council has access to benefits or is exposed to the risk of potential loss of another body; or
controls the majority of equity capital, voting rights, rights to appoint the board, or exercises a
dominant influence over an organisation, then there is a requirement to produce Group Accounts.
The Council has no material influence, benefit, exposure or rights over any other outside
organisation and therefore no Group Accounts have been produced for 2007/08.

30

Page 222

The Council makes substantial grants to various bodies but the grants do not provide the Council
with any controlling influence over the body or expose the Council to potential loss.
The Council appoints Members to a variety of different outside organisations, but these appointees
do not have a majority controlling influence within these organisations.
The Council has no wholly owned or partially owned subsidiaries or joint ventures.
In the past the Council has set up two companies to manage the common parts of properties where
it has sold off long leases but retained the freeholds. These are:
Wootton Road Flat Management Co. Ltd. and
Reynolds Way Flat Management Co. Ltd.
The Council provides the company officers and the only shareholders are the respective tenants.
The intention was that the companies (i.e. the tenants) would assume responsibility for managing
the common parts and meet the costs. This has not happened and the Council currently manages
the common parts and recharges the tenants through service charges in accordance with their
leases.
These companies currently have no assets or liabilities and are “dormant”.
36.

Financial Instruments
The Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 2007 requires local authorities to disclose new
information regarding their financial instruments. A financial instrument is defined as any contract
that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and
includes both the most straightforward financial assets and liabilities such as:
• Liabilities
Trade payables and other payables
Borrowings
Financial guarantees
• Assets
Bank deposits
Trade receivables
Loans receivable
Investments
The purpose of the new disclosures is to provide information that enables readers to evaluate:
• The significance of financial instruments for the authority’s financial position and
performance;
• The nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the authority is
exposed and how the authority manages those risks.
Categories of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following
categories of financial instruments:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Total borrowings

Long-Term
31 March 08
31 March 07
£000s
£000s
0
0
0
0

Loans & receivables at mid bid price
Revaluation to bid price
Loans and receivables (operational
debtors & bank deposits)
Total investments

Current
31 March 07
31 March 08
£000s
£000s
1,000
0
1,000
0
20,781
(4)

0

0

20,777

19,168

0

0

20,777

19,168

A current asset is one that satisfies any of the following criteria:
• It is expected to be realized, or is intended for sale or consumption, in the authority’s normal
operating cycle.
• It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

31

Page 223

•
•

It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.
It is cash or a cash equivalent, unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
at least 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.

Note 23 details the movements on temporary investments.
Financial Instrument Gains/Losses
The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account and Statement of Total
Recognised Gains & Losses in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:
2006/07

£000s
(5)

(5)
1,234

Interest expence
Losses on derecognition
Impairment losses
Interest payable and similar charges

1,234

Interest income
Gains on derecognition
Interest and investment income

1,229

Net gain/(loss) for the year

Financial
Liabilities
At amortised
cost
£000s
(1)
0
0
(1)

2007/08
Financial
Assets
Loans &
receivables
£000s
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

1,557
0
1,557

1,557
0
1,557

(1)

1,557

1,556

Total
£000s
(1)
0
0
(1)

Basis of Valuation
The valuation contains details of the investments that comprise the portfolio at the date of the valuation.
It may include investments that are the subject of transactions that have been effected but remain
unsettled at that date, and income that has been declared ex-dividend but not yet paid.
Investments have been valued using bid-market price information or supplemented by reputable sources
when not available. Standard market conventions have been used to calculate accrued interest due on
securities.
Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments and how the Authority manages
them
The Council is required to disclose the risk to which it is exposed in its dealings with financial instruments
and how they are managed. The main risks are:
•
•
•

Credit risk – the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to meet their contractual
obligations, causing a loss for the other party
Liquidity risk – the possibility that a party will be unable to raise funds to meet its commitments
associated with financial instruments.
Market risk – the possibility that the value of an instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates, market prices, foreign currency exchange rates, etc.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the
authority’s customers. The authority has adopted CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services:
Code of Practice and has set treasury management indicators to control key financial instrument risks in
accordance with CIPFA’s Prudential Code. The Treasury Management and Investment Strategy is
agreed by the Council’s Executive at the start of each financial year.

32

Page 224

The following analysis summarises the authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on
experience of default and uncollectability over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect current
market conditions.
Maximum exposure to credit risk:
Amount at
31 March
2008

Historical
experience
of default

£000s
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Bonds
Customers

%

Historical experience
adjusted for market
conditions at 31
March 2008
%

Estimated maximum
exposure to default
and uncollectability
£000s

19,167

0

0

0

0
6,587

0
18%

0
27%

0
1,763

The authority does not generally allow credit for customers and a provision is made for bad debt based
on the debtors information as at year end.
Provision for Bad Debts
The Council recognises that, for a variety of reasons, it will be not be successful in collecting all of the
debts that are owed to it and makes a provision in the accounts to reflect this. The provision is calculated
by analysing, for each type of debt, the period they have been outstanding and applying a percentage
based on experience as to the likely collection rate. As a consequence of the change of systems during
2007/08 the provision for bad debt has been completely reviewed and a provision of 27% of the total
debtors amount has been provided (18% in 2006/07).
The amount of the provision is shown as a credit against the total debtors position in note 22. Please
note that the total debtors position includes costs and reconciling items which are excluded for the
purposes of calculating the provision. This note provides a detailed breakdown of how the figures has
been arrived at as different criteria are applied to different types of debt. Provisions are round to the
nearest £1,000.
Council Tax – provision of £734,000 on outstanding debt of £1,765,623
The total debt is analysed by the year it was raised and a percentage applied as follows:
Period outstanding
Up to 1 year
1 – 3 years
3 – 4 years
4 – 5 years
5 – 6 years
Over 6 years

Debt outstanding

% applied

978,058
595,979
94,488
45,931
21,915
29,252

30%
50%
60%
80%
90%
100%

1,765,623

Amount of provision
293,417
297,990
56,693
36,745
19,723
29,252
733,820

Business Rates – provision of £516,000 on outstanding debt of £1,055,263
The total debt is analysed by the year it was raised and a percentage applied as follows:
Period outstanding
Up to 1 year
1 – 2 years
2 – 3 years
3 – 4 years
Over 4 years

Debt outstanding

% applied

362,211
385,792
153,001
78,803
75,456

15%
50%
80%
90%
100%

1,055,263

Amount of provision
54,331
192,896
122,401
70,923
75,456
516,007

Housing Benefits – provision of £253,000 on outstanding debt of £826,868
This represents overpayment of Housing Benefit where a claimant has not told the Council about a
change in circumstances that will affect their benefit entitlement. Where the claimant is still receiving

33

Page 225

benefit the overpayments are recovered by deduction from benefit. Where the claimant is no longer
entitled to benefit the normal debt recovery process is used. The provision calculation recognises that
there is a greater chance of recovery in the former case than in the latter.
Provision for debt subject to recovery from entitlement:
Period outstanding
Up to 6 months
6 m – 1 year
1 – 2 years
Over 2 years

Debt outstanding

% applied

73,808
40,070
22,292
6,641

Amount of provision

10.3%
54.4%
70.0%
48.5%

7,602
21,798
15,604
3221

142,811

48,225

Provision for debt NOT subject to recovery from entitlement:
Period outstanding
Up to 6 months
6 m – 1 year
1 – 2 years
Over 2 years

Debt outstanding

% applied

163,144
410,495
76,038
34,379

Amount of provision

43.5%
8.9%
82.8%
99.7%

70,968
36,534
62,960
34,276

684,057

204,738

Note: the percentages are based on recovery rates achieved by Capita in 2007/08
Sundry Debtors – provision of £149,000 on outstanding debt of £1,134,904
Period outstanding
Up to 1 year
1 – 3 years
3 – 6 years
Over 6 years

Debt outstanding

% applied

971,456
103,262
45,543
14,643

Amount of provision

5%
50%
75%
100%

48,573
51,631
34,157
14,643

1,134,904

149,004

Temporary Accommodation – provision of £93,860 on outstanding debt of £115,877
This represents rents due on temporary accommodation provided by the Council to homeless persons.
The rent accounting system, which is operated by the Housing Section, does not provide an aged debt
analysis so the percentage applied is dependent on whether the debt relates to clients still in receipt of a
service or not.
Period outstanding
Current clients
Former clients

Debt outstanding

% applied

44,134
71,743

50%
100%

115,877

Amount of provision
22,117
71,743
93,860

Garden waste wheeled containers (Brown Bins) – provision of £17,000 on outstanding debt of
£73,950
The Council makes a charge for the hire/emptying of brown bins. New customers pay for the first year
before a bin is delivered by cash, cheque, credit card or direct debit. Those not paying by direct debit
should then receive an invoice near to the anniversary date for collections to continue.

34

Page 226

In early 2008 the decision was made to transfer all invoicing for brown bins to the Agresso debtors
system. As a result a large number of invoices were raised in March and April 2008. Normally these
would have been included as part of the sundry debtor provision but as many of these related to 2006/07
it was considered prudent to exclude them from the sundry debtor calculation and to make a separate
provision. Recognising the potential difficulty in recovering these smaller amounts (£29) relating to
2006/07, a provision of 60% has been applied.
Period outstanding
2007/08
2006/07

Debt outstanding

% applied

54,375
19,575

10%
60%

73,950

Amount of provision
5,438
11,745
17,183

Liquidity risk
The authority has no debt to finance and is currently able to meet all its ongoing commitments, all trade
and other payables due to be paid in less than one year, from cash balances.
Market risk
The authority is exposed to some risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its
investments. A rise or fall of 1% in interest rates on the total investments for the year would result in a
rise or fall in income to the Council of approximately £300,000. For this reason the Council has a
diversified investment holding in property and temporary investment and maintains a level of reserve at
least equal to 5% of the annual budget requirement.
The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds
into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to update the budget quarterly during the year.
This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new
borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.
Price risk
The authority does not invest in equity shares owns no shareholdings in joint ventures or local industry
and consequently has no exposure to loss arising from movements in the prices of shares.
Foreign Exchange risk
The authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no
exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

35

Page 227

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CASHFLOW STATEMENT

37.

Reconciliation of Net Revenue Deficit to Cashflow from Revenue Activities
£’000
2,339
(659)

Deficit on Income & Expenditure Account
Collection Fund
Non Cash Transactions
Contribution to Provision for Bad Debts
Government Grants Deferred
Gain on sale of assets
Depreciation and Impairment of Fixed Assets
Write down of Deferred Charges
Net Charges for Retirement Benefits
Pooling of Capital Receipts
Other adjustments
Transfer to Funds and Reserves

£’000
1,680

(198)
328
30
(1,538)
(1,590)
(704)
3
(4)
(243)

(3,916)

Items Classified elsewhere in the Cashflow Statement
Add interest received

1,557

Items Accrued
Increase/(decrease) of Stock and Work in Progress
Increase/(decrease) in Debtors
(Increase)/decrease in Creditors

11
(1,527)
(1,875)

(3,391)

Net cash flow from revenue activities
38.

(4,070)

Movement in Cash
Balance at
01/04/07
£’000
Cash in hand

39.

558

Balance at
31/03/08
£’000
(20)

Movements
in year
£’000
(538)

Movement in Liquid Resources
Balance at
01/04/07
£’000
Short Term Deposits

4,401

Balance at
31/03/08
£’000
1,831

Movements
in year
£’000
(2,570)

An explanation of what the authority includes in the liquid resources and any changes in its
policy
As in previous years, the above figures comprise cash balances held in call and short term notice
deposit accounts, as well as fixed term cash investments with a maturity date not greater than one
year from the balance sheet date.

36

Page 228

40.

Analysis of Government Grants (actual cash received)

Community Strategy
Assisted Transport
Council Tax Benefit
NNDR Cost of Collection
Private Sector Grants
Recycling Grants
Planning Delivery Grant
Council Tax Admin Grant
Homelessness
Performance Reward Grant
Implementation of the Health Act 2006
Part 2A Contaminated Land
Flood Recovery Grant
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive
Total Revenue Grants received

37

Page 229

£’000
120
156
5,027
196
1,097
53
418
885
76
35
47
1
250
237
8,598

COLLECTION FUND 2007/08

Income and Expenditure Account
2006/07
£’000
(57,021)
(3,800)
(50,824)
(4)
(111,649)

Income

£’000

Council Tax Payers

£’000
(59,636)

Transfers from General Fund
Council Tax Benefits

(4,248)

Income from Business Ratepayers

(46,079)

Adjustments
Council Tax Transitional Reduction Scheme grant
Total Income

(7)
(109,970)

Expenditure
Precepts
48,087
6,320
6,738

- Oxfordshire County Council
- Thames Valley Police Authority
- Vale of White Horse D C (inc. Parishes)

49,976
6,631
7,044

63,650

45,883
196

46,079

Business Rates
50,639
185

- Payment to National Pool
- Cost of Collection

243

Provision for bad debts – Council Tax

354
46
49

Contribution towards previous year’s estimated Collection Fund
surplus
- Previous years estimated surplus\(deficit) on CT OCC
- Previous years estimated surplus\(deficit) on CT TVPA
- Previous years estimated surplus\(deficit) on CT VWHDC

112,661
1,012
(288)
724

95

Total Expenditure
(Surplus)/deficit for the year
Balance on the Collection Fund brought forward
Balance on the Collection Fund carried forward

38

Page 230

(404)
(53)
(57)

(514)
109,311
(659)
724
65

NOTES TO THE NON-CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND
1.

Any surplus or deficit in respect of council tax at the year end is, during the next year, apportioned
between the Council, Oxfordshire County Council and the Thames Valley Police Authority in
proportion to their precepts in the year the surplus or deficit occurred.
The following amounts are included within debtors/creditors in respect of the share of the deficit
/(surplus) due to the major precepting authorities:2006/07
£’000
569
75
644
80
724

2007/08
£’000
51
7
58

Oxfordshire County Council
Thames Valley Police Authority
Debtors/Creditors
The Balance appears in the Council’s reserves

7
65

st

2.

The total non-domestic rateable value at the 31 March 2008 was £131,727,367. The standard
non domestic rate multiplier for 2007/08 was 44.4 pence in the pound. The small business non
domestic rate multiplier was 44.1 pence in the pound.

3.

The number of chargeable dwellings in each Council Tax Band after adjustment for exemption,
discounts etc:
Weighting
Band D Equivalent
No of Properties
Band A
Band B
Band C
Band D
Band E
Band F
Band G
Band H

1,522
4,657
14,473
11,384
8,596
4,712
3,676
377

6/9
7/9
8/9
1
11/9
13/9
15/9
2

49,397

53,079

Discounts and exemptions
Class O exempt properties
Year end adjustment, appeals and losses on collection

(6,002)
1,041
(481)

Council Tax Base (properties)

47,637

i.e. a levy of £1 would raise
4.

5.

1,015
3,622
12,865
11,384
10,506
6,806
6,127
754

£47,637

Precepts payable to parishes in 2007/08 amounted to £2,181,141 (2006/07 £2,103,741). Parish
precepts are minor precepts and are deemed to be part of the precept levied on the Collection
Fund by the District Council.
The average band D Council Tax for the year was made up as follows:-

Oxfordshire County Council
Vale of White Horse District Council
Thames Valley Police Authority
Parish Council (Average)

39

Page 231

2006/07
£
1,008.75
97.22
132.58
1,238.55
44.13
1,282.68

2007/08
£
1,049.10
102.07
139.19
1,290.36
45.79
1,336.15

STATEMENT OF TOTAL MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

Balance as at 1 April 2007
Adjustment to b/f balance
(rounding)
Movement of DCR 1 April 2007

Capital
Adjustment
Account

Deferred
Capital
Receipts

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

Earmarked
Reserves

Pension
Reserve

General
Fund

Collection
Fund

TOTAL

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

(77,885)

17,875

(1,844)

80

(58)

Page42232

18

(58)
3

(1,110)

(73)

2,800

100

2,477

Balance as at 31 March 2008

(77,461)

(1,580)

(1,733)

(200)

Use of funds
(2,477)

(1,162)
2,800

(153)

Financing of fixed assets
(see notes)

(76,801)
1

Contributions
Disposals of fixed assets

(1,056)

1

Repayments in year
Net (surplus)/deficit for year

(13,971)

(100)
379

2,824

5,680
(2,477)

(40)

(11,691)

(830)

19,119

(2,954)

7

(73,850)

TRADING STATEMENT FOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2007/08
2006/07
£’000
Total
Income
Rent due
Expenditure
Non-recoverable expenses
Surplus in year
Surplus from developing plots at mobile
home parks
Total surplus from trading shown on
Income & Expenditure Account

2007/08
£’000

(1,847)

(1,944)

27
(1,820)

89
(1,855)

(32)

(51)

(1,852)

(1,906)

List of investment properties
Bury Street precinct, Abingdon
Charter Complex, Abingdon
Emcor House, Hatfield
Napier Court, Abingdon
Old Abbey House, Abingdon
Old Magistrates Court, Abingdon
8 & 9 The Parade, Canterbury
1 & 2 Roysse Court, Abingdon
Telfer House, Range Road, Witney
Upper Reaches Hotel site, Abingdon
West Way, Botley

site only, shops let by tenant
offices and day centre
offices
offices
offices
offices
3 shop units
offices
offices and warehouse
hotel site
26 shop units, some with flats over

41

Page 233

The following report is the previous year’s updated. To be confirmed by the auditor.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VALE OF WHITE HORSE
DISTRICT COUNCIL
OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I have audited the financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council for the year ended 31 March
2008 under the Audit Commission Act 1998, which comprise the Explanatory Foreword, Income and
Expenditure Account, Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balance, the Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund and the
related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within
them.
This report is made solely to Vale of White Horse District Council in accordance with Part II of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 36 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and of Audited Bodies prepared by the Audit Commission.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER AND AUDITORS
The Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities for preparing the financial statements in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations and the Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2007 are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities.
My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
I report to you my opinion as to whether the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the
Authority in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and the Statement of Recommended Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2007.
I review whether the statement on internal control reflects compliance with CIPFA’s guidance ’The statement
on internal control in local government: meeting the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2003’ issued in April 2004. I report if it does not comply with proper practices specified by CIPFA or if the
statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit of the financial
statements. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether the statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls. I am also not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures
I read other information published with the financial statements, and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. This other information comprises only the Explanatory Foreword. I consider the
implications for my report if I become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with
the financial statements. My responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION
I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit Practice issued
by the Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the Authority in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which I considered
necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements.

42

Page 234

OPINION
In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and
the Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2007, the
financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2008 and its income and expenditure for the year then
ended.

Maria Grindley
District Auditor
Unit 5, Isis Business Centre,
Horspath Road
Cowley,
Oxford OX4 2RD
30 September 2008

43

Page 235

The following report is the previous year’s updated. To be confirmed by the auditor.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VALE OF WHITE HORSE
DISTRICT COUNCIL
CONCLUSION ON ARRANGEMENTS FOR SECURING ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS
IN THE USE OF RESOURCES
AUTHORITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES
The authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to regularly review
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Under the Local Government Act 1999, the authority is required to prepare and publish a best value
performance plan summarising the authority’s assessment of its performance and position in relation to its
statutory duty to make arrangements to ensure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
I am required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been made by
the authority for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit
Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires me to report to you my conclusion in relation to proper
arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission for principal local
authorities. I report if significant matters have come to my attention which prevent me from concluding that the
authority has made such proper arrangements. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether
all aspects of the authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.
I am required by section 7 of the Local Government Act 1999 to carry out an audit of the authority’s best value
performance plan and issue a report:
•

certifying that I have done so;

•

stating whether I believe that the plan has been prepared and published in accordance with statutory
requirements set out in section 6 of the Local Government Act 1999 and statutory guidance; and

•

where relevant, making any recommendations under section 7 of the Local Government Act 1999.

CONCLUSION
I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and having regard to the criteria for
principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in December 2006, I am satisfied
that, in all significant respects, Vale of White Horse District Council made proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2008 except for
the arrangements to maintain a sound system of internal control.

BEST VALUE PERFORMANCE PLAN
I issued my statutory report on the audit of the authority’s best value performance plan for the financial year
2007/08 in December 2006. I did not identify any matters to be reported to the authority and did not make any
recommendations on procedures in relation to the plan.

44

Page 236

CERTIFICATE
I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Maria Grindley
District Auditor
Unit 5, Isis Business Centre,
Horspath Road
Cowley,
Oxford OX4 2RD
30 September 2008

45

Page 237

EXPLANATION OF FINANCIAL TERMS
ACOP – Accounting Code of Practice
ACCRUAL - An amount included in the accounts to cover income or expenditure for goods and
services received within the accounting period but for which payment has not been received/made.
ASSET - The creation or purchase of an item/building that has a monetary value. Those assets of the
Council which are readily marketable are valued at market value. Those which have a specialised use,
such as leisure centres, are valued at depreciated replacement cost, which assesses the cost of
providing a similar facility as a replacement but also allows a discount for the age of the asset. Plant,
equipment and community assets are valued at historic cost.
CAPITAL FINANCING - Assembling the money to pay for capital expenditure. The majority of the
resources necessary to finance this Council’s capital programme is capital receipts. Other significant
sources are Government grants and contributions from developers. Also available are revenue monies
and borrowing. The Authority does not currently borrow to finance capital expenditure.
CAPITAL RECEIPTS - Proceeds from the sale of an asset, e.g. land, buildings, equipment, vehicles.
CENTRAL SUPPORT SERVICES - The costs of providing those central functions which are concerned
with the whole range of services and undertakings of the Council and are not in the main identifiable
with any particular service, e.g. the cost of office accommodation.
CONTINGENT LIABILITY – A potential liability that has arisen from past events. It will be confirmed
by the occurrence of an event in the future that is not wholly within the Council’s control.
COUNCIL TAX - A charge levied by all councils on domestic property values to contribute to the cost of
providing local services. Council tax for the County Council, the Police Authority and local parishes is
collected by this Authority and paid over to them throughout the year.
CREDITOR - The amount owed by an Authority for work done, goods received or services rendered to
the Authority within the accounting period but for which payment has not been made.
DEBTOR - An amount due to an Authority within the accounting period but not received by the end of
the financial year.
DEBT REDEMPTION - The repayment of loans raised to finance capital expenditure.
DEFERRED CHARGES - A deferred charge arises where capital expenditure has been incurred but
there is no tangible asset. A good example is house renovation grants. Since there are no long-term
economic benefits in the control of the Council, these are written off to revenue in the year incurred and
no longer feature as assets in the balance sheet. See Intangible Fixed Assets.
DIRECT REVENUE FINANCING - The financing of capital expenditure from the current year’s revenue
income.

46

Page 238

DIRECT SERVICE ORGANISATION (DSO) - An internally organised structure that manages a
particular service area for the Authority. With the extension of competitive tendering there is an
increasing trend to manage whole areas of the Council's activities along these lines with a clearer
definition of 'client' and 'customer' being established. At the time of writing the Council does not have
any statutory DSOs as the Housing Maintenance DSO transferred to the Vale Housing Association
upon LSVT and the Grounds Maintenance DSO was wound up at the end of its first, unprofitable, year.
The Council operates a non statutory team of technical operatives which it calls its “DSO”.
FINANCE LEASE – This is a lease, usually of land or buildings, which is treated as capital borrowing.
FRS 17 – Financial Reporting Standard 17 requires the Authority to account for assets and liabilities in
the pension fund administered by Oxfordshire County Council, but relating to this authority, in the
accounts of this authority.
GENERAL FUND - The main revenue account of the Authority incorporating all those services that
make up the cost of the Council Tax.
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - The main revenue account dealing with an Authority's housing
activities with its tenants. This Authority’s HRA was closed on 31 March 1995 after its housing stock
had been disposed of.
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS – Some capital expenditure does not give rise to a physical asset but
the benefits last a number of years. These can be carried in the balance sheet as assets and written off
over their useful life. An example is computer software.
OPERATING LEASE – This is a lease where ownership of the fixed asset remains with the lessor.
PRECEPT – The levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the latter to collect
income from council taxpayers on their behalf. Precepts are paid from the Collection Fund.
SSAP – Statement of Standard Accounting Practice
SORP – Statement of Recommended Practice. Part of the accounting standards
TRADING ACCOUNT – A method of matching income and expenditure for a particular activity or group
of activities. An example of this is Building Control.

47

Page 239

EXPLANATION OF FUNDS AND RESERVES
The purpose of each of the Council’s earmarked funds and reserves is explained below.
AFFORDABLE HOUSING, COMMUTED SUMS – Funds received from developers, who are unable to
meet their obligations to provide affordable housing, which will be used to support local housing
associations to provide instead.
COMMUNITY GRANTS AWARDS FUND – To meet the cost of grants awarded in the current year that
will not be paid to the beneficiaries until later years
DSO REPLACEMENT VEHICLE RESERVE – This is to provide resources for the future purchases of
vehicles and plant used by the Council’s DSO.
ELECTION EQUALISATION FUND – To even out the expenditure peaks and troughs created by
Council elections being held every 4 years.
LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK FUND – To even out the expenditure peaks and
troughs created by the work involved in producing the Local Plan which is the framework against
which planning applications will be judged.
RENT ADVANCE SCHEME FUND – Resources to provide an advance for private tenants so that
they are able to rent accommodation until they receive their housing benefit payments.
RENT DEPOSIT GUARANTEE FUND – Resources to provide a bond for private tenants on low
income who otherwise could not raise a deposit to rent accommodation.
RESERVOIR FUND - To meet sudden and unexpected costs arising from Thames Water’s plan
to create a new reservoir in the Vale.
SELF INSURANCE FUND – Built up from recharges to service areas, this provides resources to
meet small compensation claims not covered under the Council’s insurance policies and to meet
the voluntary excess on insurance cover.
SUPERANNUATION (REVALUATION) FUND – Resources to meet increases in the cost of
employer pension contributions arising from the 3-yearly revaluation of the fund.

48

Page 240

Agenda Item 13
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report No. 39/08
Wards Affected – All

REPORT OF THE AUDIT MANAGER
TO THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
30 JUNE 2008
Internal Audit Annual Report 2007/2008
1.0

Introduction and Report Summary

1.1

The purpose of this report is to report on the work of Internal Audit in the year ended
31st March 2008, and to advise the Committee of the Audit Manager’s opinion on the
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment.

1.2

The Contact Officer for this report is Adrianna Penn, Audit Manager for South
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, telephone
(SODC) 01491 823544 and (VWHDC) 01235 547615.

2.0

Recommendations
that Members note the content of the report.

3.0

Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies
(a) Vision strand E.
(b) No specific strategy; although audit work underpins all Strategies indirectly.
(c) Anti Fraud & Corruption Policy; and all Policies indirectly.

4.0

Background

4.1

Standard 10 of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in
the UK 2006 (CIPFA Code) states that the Head of Internal Audit (Audit Manager)
must produce an annual report that:
• includes his or her opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s control environment;
• discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason(s) for the
qualification;
• presents a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived, including
reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies;
• draws attention to any issues the Head of Internal Audit judges particularly
relevant to the preparation of the Statement of Internal Control (now Annual
Governance Statement);
• compares the work actually undertaken to the work that was planned and
summarises the performance of the internal audit function against its performance
measures and targets; and
• comments on compliance with the CIPFA standards and communicates the result
of the internal audit quality assurance programme.

4.2

The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk management and
internal control. The key elements of the control environment include:
• establishing and monitoring the achievement of the organisation’s objectives;

Page 241

•
•

•

•
•

ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations
ensuring risk management is embedded in the activity of the organisation, that
leadership is given to the risk management process, and staff are trained or
equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority and duties;
ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for securing
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness;
the financial management of the organisation and the reporting of financial
management; and
the performance management of the organisation and the reporting of
performance management.

5.0

Overall Opinion

5.1

The Audit Manager is satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken
to allow a reasonable conclusion to be drawn as to the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Vale of White Horse District Council’s risk management, control and governance
processes. The Audit Manager’s opinion is based on the risk-based audits carried out
during the year and other unplanned work on control systems. No reliance has been
placed on the work of other assurance bodies.

5.2

It is the Audit Manager’s unqualified opinion that satisfactory assurance can be placed
on the Council’s risk management, control and governance processes. There is
basically a sound system of internal control but there are some weaknesses which
may put some system objectives at risk. Areas of concern in the control environment
mainly centre on key financial systems, where Internal Audit identified significant
weaknesses which require remedial action. Notwithstanding the Audit Manager’s
overall opinion, Internal Audit identified a number of opportunities for improving
controls and procedures across the Council which officers generally responded to
positively.

5.3

A summary of all Internal Audit opinions is attached as Appendix 1.

6.0

Summary of Audit Work

6.1

For 2007/2008, Internal Audit completed 608 audit work days. 299.25 days for South
Oxfordshire District Council and 308.75 days for the Vale of White Horse District
Council. This includes planned audit work, consultancy work and contingency work
(i.e. investigations).

6.2

A total of 55 planned audits were completed within 2007/2008, and a further five
reports are pending finalisation. From those, 31 relate to the Vale of White Horse
District Council and one out of the five pending relate to the Council. From the 31
completed audits, five (16%) achieved a full assurance rating. In most cases (18
audits / 58%) a satisfactory assurance rating was achieved. Limited assurances were
appropriate for eight (26%) audits and no reviews resulted in nil assurance being
given. In total 213 recommendations to improve controls and procedures within the
Council were made. 22 (10%) were classified as high, 131 (62%) as medium and 60
(28%) as low. Only 15 (7%) recommendations were not agreed by management.

6.3

No investigations were completed during 2007/2008 for the Council, however Internal
Audit was asked to assist in a review of how the Council responded to the July 2007
floods. This work amounted to 12.5 days.

Page 242

the year end 31st
Due to prioritising
within the target
is included in the

6.4

Six formal follow-up reviews should have been undertaken before
March 2008 in accordance with Internal Audit’s performance target.
the completion of key financial audits, none were completed
timeframe. Follow up on the remainder of 2007/2008 audit work
2008/2009 annual audit plan.

7.0

Issues Relevant to the Annual Governance Statement

7.1

Specific audit reviews on risk management, corporate governance and the fraud and
corruption policy and response plan were not included within the 2007/2008 annual
audit plan. However, the Audit Manager considers that significant improvements need
to be made in the Council’s risk management approach and the fraud and corruption
policy and response plan needs to be revised and updated. Specific reviews in all
three areas have been included within the 2008/2009 annual internal audit plan.

7.2

During 2007/2008 a number of system performance issues were identified with the
conversion to the Agresso 5.5 financial management system. An action plan was
implemented during the year which was closely monitored by officers, but the issues
resulted in control weaknesses being identified in the majority of the key financial
system audits.
The majority of the recommendations made were accepted by
management, and these recommendations will be subject to follow up in 2008/2009.

8.0

Internal Audit’s Performance

8.1

The performance of Internal Audit is measured against a number of indicators. The
out-turn for 2007/2008 is as follows:
Target

Year Ending 31/03/08

Chargeable

63%

52%

Non-Chargeable

20%

25.5%

Lost

17%

22.5%

Performance Targets

8.2

Year Ending 31/03/08

PT1 To issue 90% of audit notifications at least 10 working days
before start of audit fieldwork

90%

PT2 To issue 90% of draft audit reports within 10 working days of
completion of audit fieldwork.

74%

PT3 To issue 90% of final audit reports within 10 working days of
receipt of the auditees final reposes to draft report and
recommendations.

90%

PT4 To issue Post Audit Questionnaire within 1 month of issue of
final report.

100%

PT5 To follow up 80% of final reports within 6 months of completion
of audit.

0%

PT6 To complete the audit fieldwork and issue draft reports on 87%
of all fundamental system audits within the audit plan.

87.5%

PT7 To complete the audit fieldwork and issue draft reports on 75%
of all non-fundamental system audits within the audit plan.

70%

Less than half of the performance targets set for 2007/2008 were achieved. However,
it is the Audit Manager’s opinion that the section performed well given the lack of an
Audit Manager for 17 weeks, two Auditor vacancies amounting to 38 weeks and

Page 243

significant staff absence in quarter 3. Time was also taken ensuring the successful
harmonisation of the two teams and working practices.
8.3

During the year Internal Audit harmonised its working practices and consulted with
senior managers on the performance and value of the internal audit service. Their
comments were considered in the adoption of the new working approach and areas
identified by officers for review were included in the 2008/2009 internal audit plan
where possible. Frequent meetings were also established in the year with the Audit
Commission, to ensure that moving forward greater reliance can be placed on internal
audit’s work.

8.4

In January 2008, the Internal Audit Charter was approved by the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee setting out the definition and purpose of the internal audit
function, where the internal audit function derives its authority from, its rights of access
and the responsibilities of the function.

9.0

Compliance with CIPFA Code

9.1

Based on the improvements to working practices that have been made following the
harmonisation of the section and the quality assurance programme introduced from
August 2007, it is the Audit Manager’s opinion that internal audit work has complied
with the CIPFA standards. However, it is acknowledged that there are areas for
improvement, and a self-assessment of the section against CIPFA requirements will
be carried out by the end of July 2008. This will be verified by the Section 151 Officers
at both Councils, and an improvement action plan will be documented.

9.2

As part of the quality assurance programme and to assist in monitoring and improving
the quality and value of service provided, auditees are requested to complete an Audit
Feedback Questionnaire on Internal Audit’s performance. Response rates do need to
improve, but on the responses received in 2007/2008 the general perceptions of the
service provided is good. A summary of all the responses received and general
comments is attached as Appendix 2.

9.3

All feedback received by the Audit Manager is discussed with the Senior Auditor and
relevant Auditor. Where appropriate, the Audit Manager meets the officer to discuss
their comments in more details.
ADRIANNA PENN
AUDIT MANAGER

Page 244

9

Council Tax
SODC
VWHDC
Creditors Payments
SODC
VWHDC
Data Protection
SODC
VWHDC
Elections
SODC
VWHDC
Finance PIR
SODC
VWHDC
Housing & Council Tax Benefits
SODC
VWHDC
ICT
SODC
VWHDC
NNDR
SODC
VWHDC
Payroll
SODC
VWHDC
Proactive Anti-Fraud
SODC

Completed

20

20

Completed

20

Completed

12

Completed

20

Total Not
Agreed

12

No. Agreed

Completed

Low

18.5

No. Agreed

20

Medium

Completed

High

Capital Accounting
SODC
VWHDC
Concessionary Fares (VWHDC)

Audit
Opinion

No. of Recs

Exception Issues
Total Days
Used

Status
Audit
Allocation

System Name

APPENDIX 1
No. Agreed

SUMMARY OF 2007/2008 AUDIT WORK

JOINT

Page 245

VWHDC

12
Draft out
Completed
Completed

20

Completed

18

Completed

20

Completed

20

20
Draft out
Not Finalised

SODC request for postponement
agreed
by
SODC
ACGC
Chairman.

Satisfactory
Satisfactory
Satisfactory

6
1
6

0
0
0

N/A
N/A
N/A

3
0
2

3
N/A
2

3
1
4

3
1
4

0
0
0

Satisfactory
Satisfactory

8
10

0
0

N/A
N/A

6
6

5
5

2
4

2
4

1
1

Satisfactory
Limited

11
18

0
3

N/A
2

6
7

6
7

5
8

5
8

0
1

Limited
Limited

6
6

0
3

N/A
3

5
3

5
3

1
0

1
N/A

0
0

Limited
Satisfactory

14
6

3
0

3
N/A

6
4

6
4

5
2

5
2

0
0

Pending
Full

0

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Limited
Satisfactory

6
6

1
0

1
N/A

4
5

4
5

1
1

1
1

0
0

Satisfactory
Satisfactory

6
11

0
0

N/A
N/A

0
4

N/A
3

6
7

6
6

0
2

Limited
Limited

9
7

0
0

N/A
N/A

6
6

2
2

3
1

2
1

5
4

Satisfactory
Limited

10
10

0
3

0
3

5
5

4
4

5
2

4
2

2
1

Pending

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

22

12

24.5

New IA staff member.

8.5

19

10

19.5

19

13

Strategic Director requested
extension to deadline.
Strategic
Director
with
responsibility
left
prior
to
commencement of audit. No
lead officer, Deputy Director
(Org Change and Dev requested
more detailed audit work be
undertaken before report is

finalised.
Revenues – PIR
SODC
VWHDC

In progress

12

Sundry Debtors
SODC
VWHDC
Treasury Management
SODC
VWHDC
JOINT TOTALS

Completed

20

Completed

18

-

264

8.5
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Limited
Limited

8
5

4
2

4
2

1
0

1
N/A

3
3

3
3

0
0

Satisfactory
Full

7
0

0
0

N/A
N/A

1
0

1
N/A

6
0

5
N/A

1
N/A

91

8

8

43

37

40

37

9

86

11

10

42

25

33

32

9

Satisfactory

1

1

1

0

N/A

0

N/A

0

20

20

243.5

24

SODC

VWHDC

Page 246

Pending
Pending

Full

0

Satisfactory

6

Limited

5

Nil

0

Full

2

Satisfactory

6

Limited

5

Nil

0

SODC
Bank Contract and Arrangements

Completed

10

4

Bank Reconciliation

Only half of the scope reviewed
due to officer absence.
New IA staff member

Completed

10

13.5

Limited

10

3

3

2

2

5

5

0

Budgetary Control

Completed

10

9

Satisfactory

10

0

N/A

6

6

4

4

0

Building Control (inclu. Dangerous
Structures)
Business Continuity Planning

Completed

10

9

Satisfactory

3

0

N/A

2

2

1

1

0

Completed

10

10.5

Satisfactory

9

0

N/A

6

6

3

3

0

Cleansing Service

Completed

10

6.5

Satisfactory

1

0

N/A

1

1

0

N/A

0

Completed

10

12.5

Satisfactory

5

0

N/A

2

2

3

3

0

Limited

9

2

2

6

6

1

1

0

Pending

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Didcot Wave & Leisure Centre
Contract
Dog Control

Discussion on recommendations

Completed

10

4

Housing Development

Draft out

10

14

Land Charges

Completed

10

9.5

Satisfactory

8

2

2

4

4

2

2

0

Officers Travelling & Subsistence
Expenses
Planning Control

Completed

10

8.5

Satisfactory

9

1

1

5

5

3

3

0

Completed

10

8.5

Good (Full)

3

0

0

0

0

3

3

0

Waste Management

Completed

10

6.5

Full

1

0

N/A

0

N/A

1

1

0

Housing Allocations

Completed

10

11.5

Satisfactory

7

0

N/A

4

3

3

2

2

SODC TOTALS

-

140

127.5

2

76

9

9

38

37

29

28

2

Time spent chasing requested
evidence

13
Full

9
Satisfactory

Limited

2

Nil

0

VWHDC
10

13.5

New IA staff member

Satisfactory

11

0

N/A

9

9

2

2

0

Satisfactory

5

0

N/A

3

2

2

1

2

Abingdon LSP
Affordable Housing

Completed

Benefit Counter Fraud

Completed

7

7

Completed

8

18

Completed

7

6

Environmental Protection

Completed

7

7

Excess Charges

Completed

5

5

Good (Full)

2

1

1

1

1

0

N/A

0

Health & Safety (Council)
Homelessness & Temporary
Accommodation
Oxfordshire Waste Partnership

Completed

8

8

Satisfactory

17

0

N/A

15

15

2

2

0

Completed

6

9.5

Investigation of specific issues

Satisfactory

1

1

1

0

N/A

0

N/A

0

Completed

10

12

Time spent discussing scope
with OWP Co-Ordinator

Satisfactory

3

0

N/A

1

1

2

2

0

Insurance
ISO Audits

Completed

7

7

Completed

8

5

Land & Property

Cash
Discretionary Grants

Completed

7

9.5
Scope of audit too extensive

Satisfactory

4

0

0

2

2

2

2

0

Satisfactory

23

0

0

22

20

1

1

2

Full

0

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Good (Full)

4

0

N/A

1

1

3

3

0

Satisfactory

3

1

1

2

2

0

N/A

0

Corporate Role

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Page 247

Completed

8

9.5

Discussion on recommendations

Limited

5

1

1

4

4

0

0

0

Main Accounting

Completed

10

11.5

Difficulties assessing Agresso
information

Satisfactory

5

0

N/A

0

N/A

5

5

0

Recycling

Completed

8

8

Satisfactory

12

0

N/A

10

10

2

2

0

Refuse & Street Cleansing
Rent Accounting

Completed

8

8

Satisfactory

8

0

N/A

5

5

3

3

0

Completed

6

14

14

7

7

7

7

0

N/A

0

SOLL Leisure

Completed

10

10

Unsatisfactory
(Limited)
Satisfactory

6

0

N/A

4

4

2

2

0

White Horse LC Contract

Completed

6

6

Limited

4

0

N/A

3

2

1

0

2

VWHDC TOTALS

-

146

174.5

3

127

11

11

89

85

27

25

6

380

39

38

212

194

129

122

26

167

17

17

81

74

69

65

11

Investigation of specific issues

18
Full

12
Satisfactory
Limited

3
0

Nil
PLANNED RSSP TOTALS

-

550

545.5

55
Full

7
33
Satisfactory
Limited

15
0

Nil
PLANNED SODC TOTALS

272

249.25

24
Full

2
15
Satisfactory
Limited

7
0

Nil
PLANNED VWHDC TOTALS

278

296.25

31
Full

5

213

22

21

131

18
Satisfactory
Limited

8
0

Nil

UNPLANNED WORK 2007/2008
CONSULTANCY

System Name

Status

Audit Allocation

Total Days Used

Requested By

Outstanding Q208/09
Outstanding Q308/09

20 Days
20 Days

-

Audit Manager
Audit Manager
Audit Manager

Completed
Limited 7H 5M 2L
In Progress

10 Days

4 Days

Completed

10 Days

11 days

Head of Legal and Democratic
Services / Head of Leisure

-

-

-

JOINT
Anti Fraud and Corruption
Corporate Governance
Risk Management
SODC

Page 248

10 Days

VWHDC

SODC
Tender Review

Limited 2H 9M 1L

VWHDC
None

-

CONSULTANCY SODC TOTALS
CONSULTANCY VWHDC TOTALS

15
0

CONTINGENCY

System Name

Status

Audit Allocation

Total Days Used

Requested By

-

-

-

-

Investigation 1

Completed

N/A

15.5 Days

Chief Executive

Investigation 2

Completed

N/A

17.5 Days

Head of Planning

Investigation 3

Completed

N/A

0.5 Day

Head
of
Services

Environmental

Investigation 4

Completed

N/A

1.5 Days

Head
of
Services

Environmental

Joint
None

SODC

120

60

57

15

VWHDC
Flood Review

Completed

N/A

12.5 Days

CONTINGENCY SODC TOTALS

35

CONTINGENCY VWHDC TOTALS

12.5

SODC TOTAL AUDIT WORK: 299.25 days
VWHDC TOTAL AUDIT WORK: 308.75 days

Strategic Director

Page 249

INTERNAL AUDIT FEEDBACK

APPENDIX 2

14 Audit Feedback questionnaires were returned for work completed in 2007/2008.
comments were received from:

Responses and general

SODC
Building Control
VWHDC
Accountancy, Corporate Management Team, Elections, Environmental Protection, Health and Safety, Housing,
Leisure, LSP, Waste Management and Revenues and Benefits.
AUDIT PLANNING AND SCOPE OF WORK
Very Good
2

Good
7

Satisfactory
4

Poor
1

Very Poor
0

4

5

5

0

0

Very Good
5

Good
3

Satisfactory
4

Poor
2

Very Poor
0

4

5

5

0

0

5. Clarity and conciseness of the audit report

Very Good
2

Good
6

Satisfactory
6

Poor
0

Very Poor
0

6. Fulfilment of the audit scope and objectives

3

5

6

0

0

7. Accuracy, validity and significance of the
audit findings
8. Audit recommendations – constructive,
practical and logical

2

5

5

2

0

2

8

4

0

0

9. Professionalism of the auditor(s)

Very Good
5

Good
4

Satisfactory
5

Poor
0

Very Poor
0

10. Advice given by the auditor(s)

4

4

6

0

0

Very Good
2

Good
4

Satisfactory
6

Poor
1

Very Poor
1

2

7

4

1

0

Very Good
37

Good
63

Satisfactory
60

Poor
7

Very Poor
1

1. Consultation on the scope and coverage of
the audit
2. Minimal disruption to daily activities

COMMUNICATION

3. Consultation and communication during the
audit
4. Communication of audit findings and
recommendations
QUALITY OF AUDIT REPORT

PROFESSIONAL PROFICIENCY

GENERAL

11. Usefulness of audit in identifying risks and
improving controls
12. Overall evaluation of the quality of the
audit service provided
TOTALS

OTHER COMMENTS RECEIVED

•
•
•

•
•

Thank you for a good piece of work delivered on time.
This was a difficult audit which covered a very wide remit. It would have been better and more effective to cover a
limited part of the contract. The assistance in gaining a monitoring post was helpful.
It was felt that the need operationally was insufficient to warrant the use of audit resources and the benefits are
minimal. Whilst appreciating that the system used to prioritise risk identifies this contract as high it perhaps
highlights a need to review the risk criteria.
This was a split audit. The initial process was demotivating, but the Audit Manager’s professionalism and direct
approach has pulled this situation round.
Initial meetings with the internal auditor were somewhat muddled and I was concerned that the right information
was being requested to assist with relevant points. I provided a considerable amount of information but received
no feedback at all on its usefulness or otherwise until reading the resulting report.

Page 250

Agenda Item 14
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report No. 40/08
Wards Affected – All

REPORT OF THE AUDIT MANAGER
TO THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
30 JUNE 2008
Internal Audit Management Report Quarter 1 2008/2009
1.0

Introduction and Report Summary

1.1

The purpose of this report is:
• to report on management issues
• to summarise the progress of internal audit against the 2008/2009 audit plan up to
the 16th June 2008.
• to summarise the priorities and planned audit work for quarter 2 2008/2009.

1.2

The Contact Officer for this report is Adrianna Penn, Audit Manager for South
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, telephone
(SODC) 01491 823544 and (VWHDC) 01235 547615.

2.0

Recommendations
that Members note the content of the report.

3.0

Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies
(a) Vision strand E.
(b) No specific strategy; although the Audit Plan will underpin all Strategies indirectly.
(c) Anti Fraud & Corruption Policy; and all Policies indirectly.

4.0

Background

4.1

The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 2006
states that the Head of Internal Audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, which
should outline the assignments to be carried out and the broad resources required to
deliver the plan.

4.2

The CIPFA Code also states that the Audit Committee should approve the annual
Internal Audit Plan and monitor progress against the plan. This Committee approved
the annual Internal Audit Plan on the 19th March 2008.

5.0

Management Issues

5.1

The Auditor based at VWHDC from the 2nd January 2008, handed in his notice in April
2008 to take up a position in London. The position was re-advertised and the post
was filled on the 2nd June 2008.

5.2

Mazars have been appointed as the contractors to supplement the in-house team.
They have been allocated 60 days from the annual audit plan 2008/2009, and
commence their first planned audit on the 16th June 2008. A working protocol has
been agreed with Mazars to ensure a consistent approach, and their performance in
accordance with the contract will be monitored by the Audit Manager.

Page 251

6.0

Progress against the 2008/2009 Audit Plan

6.1

Progress against the approved audit plan has been calculated for the quarter up to the
16th June 2008 and year to date and is summarised in Appendix 1 attached.

6.2

Performance figures are as follows:
Target
Chargeable

Q4 07/08

Q1 08/09

Q2

Q3

71.5%

65%

54%

65%

-

-

10%

14%

21%

14%

-

-

18.5%

21%

25%

21%

-

-

Non-Chargeable
Lost

YTD

0

3

9

38

0

0

8

27

7

0

1

0

6

VWHDC

8

0

2

1

5

ADHOC

1

1

0

0

0

Joint

0

0

0

0

0

SODC

1

1

0

0

0

VWHDC

0

0

0

0

0

FOLLOW - UP

40

7

0

0

33

Joint

11

0

0

0

11

SODC

13

1

0

0

12

VWHDC

16

6

0

0

10

Planned

To commence

As at the 16th June 2008, the status of audit work is as follows:

In progress

6.4

Draft

The significant sickness absence incurred by the section within quarter 4 2007/2008 is
no longer a factor and good progress against individual quarterly plans is being made
by each member of the section. 9 planned audits were in progress at the year end,
but all 2007/2008 work has now been completed/issued in draft and the section is on
track with 2008/2009 planned audit work. There has been a significant reduction in
the level of time spent on non-chargeable work within quarter 1, which will have a
positive impact on the level of chargeable work once annual leave is utilised through
the year. The Audit Manager remains confident the targets can be achieved.

Complete

6.3

PLANNED

50

Joint

35

SODC

7.0

Priorities for 2008/2009 Quarter 2 (July 2008 – September 2008)

7.1

The priority for quarter 2 is:
• to complete a self-assessment of the section against the CIPFA requirements and
draft an improvement action plan;
• to review Internal Audit’s presence on the Councils’ intranet and internet;
• to develop a money laundering training programme.

7.2

Planned audit work which is currently ongoing and has been scheduled for quarter 2 is
as follows:

Page 252

Joint Audits
Brown Bins
Gifts & Hospitality
Out of Hours Arrangements
Petty Cash
Receipt of Income Arrangements
Risk Management
SOLL Leisure
Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy
Contract Monitoring
Council Charges
Creditor Payments
Payroll
Stock Control
Sundry Debtors
Treasury Management

SODC Audits
Car Park Income
Complaints Process
Concessionary Fares

ADRIANNA PENN
AUDIT MANAGER

Page 253

VWHDC Audits
Business Continuity Planning
DSO
Gazatteer Unit
Rent Accounting
Tender Process

JOINT

Page 254

Academy
SODC
VWHDC
Agresso
SODC
VWHDC
Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
SODC
VWHDC
Brown Bin Scheme
SODC
VWHDC
Budgetary Control
SODC
VWHDC
Capital Accounting
SODC
VWHDC
Consultation (Public and Staff)
SODC
VWHDC
Contract Monitoring
SODC
VWHDC
Corporate Governance
SODC
VWHDC
Council Charges
SODC
VWHDC
Council Tax
SODC
VWHDC
Creditor Payments
SODC
VWHDC
Disaster Recovery
SODC
VWHDC

Outstanding Q3

20

Outstanding Q3

20

TOR Sent

20

In Progress

20

Outstanding Q4

20

Outstanding Q3

20

TOR Sent

20

Outstanding Q2

20

Outstanding Q3

20

Outstanding Q2

20

Outstanding Q3

20

Outstanding Q2

20

Outstanding Q4

20

Total Not
Agreed

No. Agreed

Low

No. Agreed

Medium

No. Agreed

Audit
Opinion

High

Exception Issues
Total Days
Used

Status
Audit
Allocation

System Name

APPENDIX 1
No. of Recs

PLANNED AUDITS 2008/2009

Page 255

Emergency Planning
SODC
VWHDC
Freedom of Information
SODC
VWHDC
General Ledger
SODC
VWHDC
Gifts and Hospitality
SODC
VWHDC
GIS
SODC
VWHDC
Housing & Council Tax Benefits
SODC
VWHDC
Human Resources
SODC
VWHDC
ICT
SODC
VWHDC
Internal Recharges
SODC
VWHDC
NNDR
SODC
VWHDC
Out of Hours Arrangements
SODC
VWHDC
Payroll
SODC
VWHDC
Petty Cash Procedures
SODC
VWHDC
Petty Cash Spot Checks
SODC
VWHDC
Performance Management
SODC
VWHDC
Post Room
SODC
VWHDC
Receipt of Income Arrangements
SODC
VWHDC

Outstanding Q4

20

Outstanding Q3

20

Outstanding Q3

20

In Progress

10

Outstanding Q3

10

Outstanding Q3

20

Outstanding Q4

20

Outstanding Q3

20

Outstanding Q4

20

Outstanding Q3

20

In Progress

20

Outstanding Q2

20

In Progress

10

In Progress

6

Outstanding Q4

16

Outstanding Q4

20

In Progress

20

Risk Management
SODC
VWHDC
SOLL Leisure
SODC
VWHDC
Stock Control
SODC
VWHDC
Sundry Debtors
SODC
VWHDC
Treasury Management
SODC
VWHDC

In Progress

20

In Progress

20

TOR Sent

20

Outstanding Q2

20

Outstanding Q2

20

Car Park Income

Outstanding Q2

10

Complaints Process

TOR Sent

10

Concessionary Fares

TOR Sent

10

Didcot Arts Centre

Outstanding Q4

15

Licensing

Draft Out

10

Pest Control

Outstanding Q3

10

Tourism (Marketing Contract)

Outstanding Q4

10

SODC

Page 256

8.5

VWHDC
Bar Management

Draft Out

10

Business Continuity Planning

In Progress

10

DSO

Outstanding Q2

8

Gazatteer Unit

TOR Sent

7

Guildhall

Draft Out

10

Oxfordshire Waste Partnership

Outstanding Q3

10

Rent Accounting

TOR Sent

10

Tender Process

TOR Sent

10

TOTALS

-

812

8.5

7.5

24.5

Full
Satisfactory
Limited
Nil

Audit Opinion Issued

Total No. of
Recs
Agreed

0.5

Satisfactory

3

1

2

0

0

Refuse Collection and Street
Cleansing
Recyling

1

Satisfactory

8

3

2

3

0

1.5

Satisfactory

12

5

3

4

0

Excess Charges

Ongoing

Days

Not
Implemented

Total
Used

Partly
Implemented

System Name

Implemented

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2007/2008

SODC
Building Control

VWHDC

0.5

Good (now Full)

2

2

0

0

0

Health and Safety

2

Satisfactory

17

10

5

2

0

Insurance

Satisfactory

5

1

0

4

0

1

Satisfactory

7

0

2

0

SOLL Leisure

0.5

Satisfactory

23 (14 review in
08/09 work, 9
followed up)
6

6

0

0

0

Environmental Protection

0.5

Good (now Full)

4

3

1

0

0

TOTALS

8

-

63

37

11

15

0

Audit Opinion Issued

Total No. of
Recs
Agreed

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Days

Ongoing

Total
Used

Not
Implemented

System Name

Partly
Implemented

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2008/2009
Implemented

Page 257

1

Cash

SODC
-

VWHDC
-

TOTALS

UNPLANNED WORK 2008/2009
CONSULTANCY
System Name

Status

Audit Allocation

Total Days Used

Requested By

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Status

Audit Allocation

Total Days Used

Requested By

-

-

-

-

Completed

10

15

Chief Executive

-

-

-

-

Status

Audit Allocation

Total Days Used

Requested By

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

JOINT
None

SODC
None

VWHDC
None

CONTINGENCY

Page 258

System Name
JOINT
None

SODC
Investigation 1

VWHDC
None

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
System Name
JOINT
None

SODC
None

VWHDC
None

